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Resilient portfolio in large and expanding Governance, Risk and Compliance {(“GRC") market

Purpose driven

We empower our customers to do the right business in the right way, by providing them with a
complementary range of information, and data and training and education solutions via single technology
platforms. Our unique offering is underpinned by a set of core competencies that, in combination, drive
sustainable value creation for our shareholders.

Investment Case

Unigque GRC platform

Powerful combination of well-recognised brands in intelligence, training and education, serving the resilient
and growing Governance, Risk and Compliance market.

More than 28 years experience

High conversion of aperating profit into cash
Strongly cash generative business reflected by
138% conversion of operating profit into cash

Agile and customer led
Strong customer-led product management culture, reinforced by agile approach to hybrid delivery formats.

Responsible business culture
Commitment to customers echoed by the responsible business culture embedded across the Group.

Diverse and resilient
The resilience of our portfolic is enhanced by a diverse customer base and low customer concentration.

Single technology platforms and digital innovation
Attractive porttolio of digital-tirst data and intormation assets and innovative digital learning solutions
delivered via single technology pilatforms.

High proportion of recurring revenues

Cansistent and sustainable revenue streams, with a focus on recurring subscription and membership
revenues with high renewal rates.

39% subscription and membership revenue

Commitment to dividends
10.0p total dividend

In this annual report reference is made to adjusted results as well as the equivalent statutory measures. The Directors make use of
adjusted results, which are not considered to be a substitute for or superior to IFRS measures, to provide stakeholders with a
clearer understanding of the group's performance, additional relevant information and enable an alternative comparison of
performance over time. Adjusted results exclude amortisation of intangible assets (excluding computer software), impairments,
other income (when material or of a significant nature) and other adjusting items. Adjusted results are reconciled to statutory
measures in note 2 to the financial statements. Reference is also made to variances described as ‘organic’: these are calculated
by adjusting the revenue change achieved year-on-year to exclude the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and
also to exclude the impact of changes in the portfolio from acquisitions and disposals — many shareholders ask about these effects
and while this measure is not required by applicable accounting standards, it makes the figures more understandable to readers.
Finally, we use the term ‘continuing’ to describe our businesses, their revenues and profits, this term means we are excluding the
impact of disposals to show performance of, and to describe, the businesses we still have — again this is at investors’ request.
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Financial performance

2023 2022 Change
Continuing resuits’
Revenue £1221m £111.9m 9%
Adjusted PBT? £24.1m £18.6m 30%
Adjusted PBT margin 19.7% 16.6% 18%
Adjusted basic EPS? 21.27p 16.72p 27.2%
Net cash* £42.2m £20.5m
Total dividend 10.0p 8.20p 22.0%
Statutory results
Revenue £123.5m £121.0m
PBT incl. disposals £24.0m £36.1m
Basic EPS 22.94p 37.46p

* 9% revenue growth from continuing businesses. Organic growth of 7%.
¢ Training & Education division delivered 15% organic growth
¢ Intelligence divisicn delivered 3% organic growth

« Annual recurring revenues up 7%, now 39% (2022 37%) of Group revenues

» Adjusted profit before tax from continuing businesses up 30% to £24.1m {2022: £18.6m) reflecting continuing efficiencies
of digital-first model

s« Operating profit margins continue to increase with Intelligence division reaching 23% (2022: 19%)
*» Netcash at 30 June 2023 £42.2m (2022: £20.5m) reflecting strong trading performance and cash conversion
« Continued to streamline and enhance portfolio with disposal of Inese

« [nvestment in the development of single technology platforms in each division

Mark Milner, Chief Executive Officer, commented:

“Since the strategic review we have delivered lwo years of quarter-on-quarter profits growth, despite the challenging
macro-economic backdrop. Last year's results were our strongest fo date with continuing revenues up by 8% and
profits up 30%. Other notable developments have been the growth in our recurring revenues and strong cash
conversion of profits, further strengthening our bafance sheet, which are a result of improvement in our overaif
operational performance.

“We help our customers 1o do the right business, in the right way. As Governments, Regulators, businesses and
individuals respond to increasing Governance, Risk and Compliance requirements, they are globally becoming
increasingly aware of the need to ensure the data they rely on for themselves and their custaomers is credible,
accurate and current; and the training to ensure they are knowledgeable and meet current standards - all must be
relevant, measurable and independently assessed.

“We now transact with over 8,000 customers and gather data from around 250 geographies. We have increased our
geographic presence and now operate in the UK, Ireland, USA. France, Singapore, Hong Kong, Malaysia. Indonesia,
India, and the MENA region. Our increasing global reach provides us with opportunities to develop and provide our
services across a broader international customer hase, whilst our single technology platforms will be instrumental in
helping us scale in both existing markets and in new territories.

“The current financial year has started in line with our expectalions with continued organic revenue growth and improved
profits and cash.”

" Continuing - efiminating the effects of the impact of disposals Qrganic — Continuing eliminating exchange rate fluctuations.

2 Continuing adjusted profit before tax — see note 2.

* Continuing adjusted basic earnings per share — see page 25° Adjusted basic earnings per share — see note 9.

¢ Net eash includes cash and cash equivalents, bank loans (excluding capialised loan arrangement fees) and bank overdrafts but excludes lease liabilties.
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At a glance
Effectively navigating the Regulatory Compliance landscape

Wilmington is a scalable platform operating m the resilient and expanding GRC market, providing solutions to enterprise customers
and professionals from a broad range of industries.

Qur customers operate within a complex array of legal, political, and regulatory frameworks, all dictated by the ever-evglving
compliance landscape. We help them to navigate this complexity and respond to emerging areas aof risk by providing a
complementary range of solutions which are delivered via single technology platforms. Our intelligence gives customers the
detailed insight they need to understand the regulatory landscape, and our specialist training equips them to navigate it
successfully.

Our solutions are focussed on real-world outcomes and are based on significant and defendable intellectual property built up over
many years. Our teams of experienced industry practitioners and talented subject matter experts are central to our unigue offering,
We are proud to be recognised by our customers as a trusted and valued partner as we help them navigate their business
challenges.

Wilmington is a digital-first business with strong capabilities in online and hybrid learning, and in the management and provision of
mission-critical information and data. The strength of cur portfolio is underpinned by an operating model which allows our portfolio
of brands to leverage the value of the Group's technology platforms to deliver urtique solutions to their customers. We invest in the
core competencies that drive quality in our products to enable our brands to exhibit a unique set of characteristics that define our
competitive advantage.

The products that Wilmington's two divisions offer focus on three main sub-categories of Governance, Risk and Compliance:

Governance Risk
» Conduct « Ethics » Corporate « Prudential « Information Sharing
Governance + Risk Management « Risk Management « Reputational
Architecture Risk
= Operational Resilience
Compliance

= Financial Crime Prevention « AML & CTF « Sanctions » Anti-bribery &
Corruption « Fraud « Information & Data Security » Market Abuse/Insider Trading
¢ Cyber-crime « Conduct of Business » Healthcare Regulations
» Diversity, Equity & Inclusion

The GRC markets are underpinned by strong macro drivers, which are closely aligned to the Group's core offering and inform our
strategy to increase brand presence in this market:

Increasing volume of regulation;

Increasing fraud and cyber risk;

Evolving role of compliance;

Escalating regulatory enforcement;

Increasing importance of responsible business practice;
Increasing adoption of technology solutions; and
Complex geopolitical landscape.

One business, two divisions

We are operating as one business, with two divisions that each have a single technology platform, supporting multiple market-
facing brands.

Revenue analysis

Revenue can be analysed by segment as follows:
Total Revenue

% of Group revenue 2023 2022

Intelligence 47%  49%
Training & Education 53% 51%
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Revenue can be analysed by geography as follows:

Total Revenue

% of Group revenue 2023 2022
UK 57% 53%
USA 20% 18%
Europe (excluding the UK) 16% 21%
Rest of the World 7% 8%
Intelligence

Wilmington's Intelligence divisicn consists of businesses which provide must-have, autharitative risk and compliance data to a
range of industries globally, including insurance, pensions, and healthcare. The information and data solutions provided by our
brands in this division represent the gold standard in accuracy and timeliness, and this capability is enhanced by the expertise of
our research analysts and industry practitioners, 1o ensure that we provide actionable insight to customers. Much of our data is
developed by our own teams, and we own the associated intellectual property. Our Intelligence brands/businesses are: Axco,
Pendragon and Compliance Week in Financial Services, Wilmington Healthcare/HSJ and APM in Healthcare and MiExact. Please
see the Divisional Review for further details.

Training & Education

This division provides compliance training and technical support for customers across a range of industries including financial
services, accouniancy, and healthcare. We offer a wide product range, including formail qualifications, continuing education, and
mandatory training, through instructor-led and self-guided formats. Our excellence in this area is underpinned by world-class and
engaging course content, developed in house by our team of experienced subject matter experts, and enhanced by Wilmington’s
strong digital subscription management and dynamic delivery platform. Our Training & Education brands/businesses are: ICA and
CLTi in Global, Mercia and Bond Solon in UK & Ireland and FRA in North America. Please see the Divisional Review for further
details.

Strategy

Wilmington's streamlined operating model is increasingly underpinned by single technology platforms across each division, and its
success is driven by the synergistic potential of its unique portfolio of brands. We are continuing to achieve our strategic objective
of detivering organic growth, and to cement our position in the large and growing GRC markets by investing in operatianal
efficiencies and in the core competencies that drive our competitive advantage.

Grow

Generate growth and
cement our position in
the GRC markets

Invest

Invest in our businesses to
facilitate new product
develocpment, provide

innovative salutions to our

customers, and fuel growth

By drawing on our core competencies we have embedded a set of defining characteristics into all of our brands which, in

Manage

Manage our portfolio to
ensure that all businesses
exhibit the unigue
characteristics that drive
our competitive advantage

combination, drive progress against our three integrated strategic objectives.
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Wilmington characteristics: what makes us unigue

Digital capabilities and data enabled
Our digital-first model demonstrates best in class digital
capabilities incfuding:

s Delivery platform agnostic

«  Excellence in User Experience (‘'UX'} and User
Interface ('UI'} solutions

Our businesses are data enabled, allowing them to provide
unigue insight and innovative solutions to their customers,
driven by:

+ Efficient data collection, accurate measurement,
integration and analysis, suppoerted by dynamic
user interfaces

=« Proprietary data and bespoke services

A focus on the GRC sector

Following our strategy review two years ago, all our
businesses now operate in the Governance, Risk and
Compliance sector, providing data and training in areas
focussed on:

« Financial services, including retail banking,
investment banking, private equity, insurance,
accountancy

s Legal services, providing training in areas of law to
non-lawyers, including Expert Witness fraining,
Witness Familiansation, Health & Social Care
regulatory training, Investigations training

e Healthcare data and information, currently
focussed on French and UK markets, and the US
Medicare Advantage sector

Differentiated offering
Our businesses occupy strang positicns in the markets they
serve, exhibited via the following credentials:

* Market leaders — within the top three

s Unigue products with owned IP

» Strong brands valued highly by customers

Attractive markets

The markets in which we operate present opportunities for

sustained growth:

« Macro fit with Wilmington's core markets

» Micro fit with a growing end-user base in which our
solutions are integrated into customer systems

Strong product and revenue model
Our preduct and revenue model drives value by targeting
the following actions:
» Identifying attractive economics
» Prioritising repeatable revenue streams
e Leveraging success across the portfolio to
maximise the benefit of synergistic potential

Strong leadership
Our businesses are led by individuals who are best placed
to accelerate their growth, evidenced by their core
competencies:
+« Experts in their field, aligning sector specific knowledge
to product development and delivery
« Innovators seeking to embrace change to deliver
bespoke customer solutions

Delivering growth

Our organic growth strategy has continued to deliver by embedding the unique combination of characteristics that define our
competitive advantage in each of our brands. Applying a common framework across the Group, we have focused our investment
efforts in two main areas’ operational excellence and single technology platforms. These efforts have continued to be informed by
our commitment to a responsible business culture across the Group, supporting cur people to make decisions in a way that delivers
long term value. Full details of the progress we have made against our sustainability strategy objectives during the year are outlined
in the Sustainability report on pages 15 to 23.

Investment focus: Operational excellence

Over the past three years we have invested heavily in operational excellence to accelerate our growth ambitions. We have sought
to apply a best-in-class approach to managing technology and data, sales and marketing, talent, and product development across
our Group, This wark includes the investments we have made across all aspects of employee experience and helps ensure that we
are attracting and developing the diverse, talented workforce that is central to our ongoing success.

investment focus: Developing single technology platforms

In addition to our People strategy, the investments we made in operational excellence focussed heavily on enhancing our product,
technelogy, and data capabilities, as the key mechanisms to deliver high quality solutions to our customers. This year has seen
very strong progress towards our goal of establishing single technology platforms for each division.

Training & Education division — single Digital Learning Platform

The Platform integrates cloud-based technelogies to a single solution, creating a personalised ecosystem in which customers can
sign up to programmes, consume course materials through multi-media formats, complete assignments, and tasks, and repeat
visits to access additional content.

Intelligence division — single Data Connect Platform

QOur Data Connect Platform is a single, common data platform, deploying Snowflake® technaology to bring together all our assets,

allowing us to offer a greater data set to our clients delivered through intuitive data dashboards. We are offering APls as standard
to our clients to enable the use of our data as an integrai part of their business processes.
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Investment focus; Future progress

Qur ongoing investment in operational excelience and single technology platforms is at the heart of our plan to ensure that
Wilmington continues to demanstrate the agility to adapt and grow, both crganically and through acquisition, as customer demands
evolve and new market opportunities arise. By embedding common infrastructure and processes, the Group is well placed to
effectively enhance and expand its unique offering.

Chair’'s statement

| am pleased to present the Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2023. Once again, we have performed in line with our
strategy which has resulted in strong underlying revenue growth and margin expansion. Building on the benefits of our digital-first
madel, we are now realising additional efficiencies as we move to single platforms.

The Group has achieved revenue growth from its cantinuing businesses of 9%, with recurring revenue up 7%, demonstrating the
strength of our product offering and customer refationships.

This revenue growth, continued focus on cost management and improvement in operational perfarmance generally resulted in profit
increases at all levels. We have continued to strengthen our balance sheet, with an increase in our net cash paosition as a result of
the conversion to cash of these higher profits and the strategic disposal of Inese in late 2022.

We have increased our dividend payments this year by 22% with a final dividend of 7.3p, resulting in a total dividend for FY23
higher than at any time in our history as a listed company..

In June 2021 we put in place a new group structure and operating model to focus the business cn the resilient and growing GRC
markets. This Annual Report therefore represents the second year of this strategy, and we report here on our excellent progress
and on the success of our investment in the business and the technology supporting it.

We have the hard work and dedication of our talented teams to thank for our strong financial results and the good progress we
made in delivering our strategy. | am proud of the outstanding quality of work delivered by our people, as well as their commitment
to customer service and their ingenuity and resilience in managing change. | would like to take this opportunity to thank all of them
for their hard work over the past financial year.

Current trading and outlook

Trading has been encouraging in the first quarter, with good demand in all areas generating revenues and profits in line with
expectation.

Martin Morgan
Chair
22 September 2023
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CEO’s review

Introduction

In 2021, Wilmington completed its strategic review and we took the decisive steps to refocus the Group on the Governance, Risk
and Compliance markets. We invested in our digital first activities. We restructured to operate as two divisions in one company,
committing to investment in our operational growth levers of sales, marketing and product. We outlined the decisive steps needed
to improve our technology capabilities to accelerate our shift to single technalogy platforms and tackled our legacy technology debt.
We committed to maturing our measures assessing and improving customer satisfaction and employee engagement, designing
and investing in a new people programme and committing to meaningful ESG commitments.

Since 2021, Wilmington has delivered against each of these strategic aims. This structured, measured and progressive
transfarmation programme is delivering results, changing the shape of our business, increasing value for our customers, delivering
growth for our shareholders and creating growth momentum across the Group.

Results

For the year ending 30 June 2023, the Group saw overall organic revenue growth of 9%, with growth across all parts of cur
business except our healthcare unit. Qur training and education division achieved a particularly impressive 15% growth in organic
revenue, while aur intelligence brands reported 3% growth, with strong performance from our Axco, Pendragon and APM
businesses offset by the UK healthcare business' decline. We have also achieved a 7% growth in recurring revenue!, which now
represents 39% of total revenue. Currency movement had a minimal impact on the Group’s overall results.

The increased revenues and a continued focus on operational efficiency and cost management resulted in adjusted PBT growth
from continuing businesses of 30% to £24.1m (2022: £18.6m) and a corresponding improvement in adjusted PBT margin to 19.7%
(2022: 16.6%). This resulted in adjusted basic eamings per share being up 27.0%. We also are proposing a final dividend of 7.3p
(total of 10.0p). The Group strengthened its balance sheet, increasing its net cash position (excluding lease liabilities) to £42.2m
(2022: £20.5m) after a strong year of converting profits to cash.

Strategy

We continued to focus on consolidating our already strong presence in the large, growing and rapidly evolving GRC markets,
following the 2021 strategic review. These markets are underpinned by strong macro drivers, particularly the increasing volume and
enforcement of regulation, complex geopolitical landscape, increased importance of ESG and widespread adoption of technological
and data-driven compliance solutions, all of which align strongly to Wilmington’s core offering.

At the heart of this focus on the GRC markets is our ambition to help our customers to do the right business in the right way, by
providing a complementary range of information & data and training & education solutions. Our operating madel mirrors this core
purpose. Qur Intelligence division provides specialist data and analytics that give customers the detailed insight they need to
understand the regulatory landscape, and cur Training & Education division delivers specialist training that equips them to navigate
it successfully. As planned, we completed the disposal of our non-core Spanish insurance information business in the first half of
the financial year.

' Recurning revenues — thase contracted at least one year ahead.
Investment programme

Our investment approach across the Group continues to be targeted at embedding the unigue characteristics that define our
competitive advantage into each of our brands. | am pleased with the progress we have made in developing single technology
platforms in each of our divisions, providing the foundation to accelerate our growth ambitions and enabling us to provide an
improved user experience to our customers, resulting in an increased competitive advantage. It will also give us the agility to
respond to their ever-changing needs in the rapidly evolving GRC markets, enhancing our growth potential. The implementation of
single platforms in each division will also allow us to efficiently expand our offering by creating a scalable portfolio to enhance our
growth potential.

Version 1.0 of the Digital Leaming Platform was successfully released at the end of FY22. We are taking the learnings from this
version to improve both the design and product features, with version 2.0 on track to be delivered by June 2024, A new technology
leader has joined the Group to spearhead the version 2.0 design and delivery, and increase the speed of development.

We continue to invest organically in new praducts and strengthen our existing product offerings, with the scope to monetise our
solutions greatly enhanced hy our single platform approach. This strategy for maximising the value of our technology and data
assets, combined with our streamlined operating model, provides the strong base to actively consider acquisition targets which
complement and/or extend our capabilities.

Artificial Intelligence

The advent of artificial intelligence {Al) has created immense potential for efficiency and Al enhanced products within the GRC
domain. The realm of Al, wherein machines strive to replicate intricate human cognitive functions, holds the promise of averhauling
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industries and reshaping entire work processes and value streams. The disruptive prowess of Al technology is rooted in its ability to
mechanise tasks, optimise decisiocn-making protocols and unlock uncharted pathways across an array of sectors.

By orchestrating the automation of repetitive tasks and routine processes, Al holds the potential to fine-tune operations, curtail
expenditures and strategically allocate resources to endeavours of higher value. Furthermore, the analytical capabiiities of Al can
bestow invaluable insights, paving the way for informed, data-driven decision-making and astute strategic optimisation.

Within the strategic framework of Wilmington, deliberate measures are being put inte action to navigate the risks that accompany Al
technology while simultaneously harnessing its opportunities.

A working group has been created to take a risk and opportunity-based approach to Al. This group has meticuiously crafted a
series of recommendations encompassing risk mitigation strategies, operational efficiency enhancements and augmentation of
products. Diligent actions to mitigate risks are already underway, encompassing fortifying our digital assets with robust protective
layers to thwart unauthorised scraping by extemal entities.

Simultaneously, revised policies governing the utilisation of Al technology have been devised, covering both our internal staff and
the interactions with our valued customers. Given Al's remarkable capacity to generate content from vast reservoirs of data,
inadvertent infringement of copyrighted material looms as a notable concern. The implementation of comprehensive protective
protocols and mechanisms becomes imperative in safeguarding the sanctity of intellectual property rights.

Beyond these operational facets, Al stands as a catalyst for elevated product development, providing the capability for predictive
analytics, tailored recommendations, and intelligent automation. This transformative potential empowers us to furnish clients with
products that are not only more personalised, but also mare resourceful and innovative. For example, in our Training and Education
division we will be exploring course recommendation, automated grading and feedback and translation services, and in our
Intelligence Division the enhancement of our proprietary data, which is protected within our secure environment.

Scale

Wilmington is helping our customers to do the right business, in the right way. Governments, Regulators, businesses, and
individuals are globally becoming increasingly aware of the requirements and benefits of implementing appropriate Govemnance,
Risk and Compliance training and of ensuring data and intelligence sources are as current and accurate as possible.

This global market movement provides Wilmington with an increasing opportunity to develop and provide services across a broader
international customer base. Alongside existing core operation centres in the UK, Ireland, USA, France, Singapore, Hong Kong,
and Malaysia, we are also building an increasing presence in Indonesia, We now have a commercial presence in India and have
invested further in the MENA region. We expect soon to expand our offering, through partners, in China.

Operating efficiency is maintained by our product offering in these new territories being built on our existing capabilities and
content, with a small degree of customisation of materials to reflect the differing characteristics of each domestic market.

The investment in commercial and customer service functions was made in FY23, enabling us to measure performance and fine-
tune our offering throughout FY24. No further significant investment in this area is expected throughout FY24. Our development of
single technology platforms will be instrumental in helping us scale in both existing markets and in new territories.

A growth mindset

We began the process of pivoting the Group to a digital first strategy in FY20 and FY21 and this has enabled us to deliver two
years of quarter-on-quarter arganic revenue and profit growth. Our revised strategic focus, consolidating our strong presence in the
large, growing and rapidly evolving GRC markets, provides the Group with many growth opportunities.

Wilmington now transacts with over 8,000 customers and gathers data from around 250 geographies, and has new opportunities in
new markets. Whilst Wilmington cannoct claim to be a global business, we are certainly well on the way to becoming a truly
international business.

Key to this erganic and geographic progress is developing and maintaining a strong growth mindset across all parts of our Group.
We invested in new leaders for many of our businesses and our shared services in FY22, specifically recruiting or promating
individuals with a proven track record of implementing and delivering growth strategies. The changes and expertise these
individuals have brought have been one of the reasons why we have reported another strong set of results.

A key part of our growth mindset is to focus on the many drivers of employee engagement, which ingreased year on year as
measured by our annual engagement survey. Development is actioned by activities such as regular Town Halls, the building and
support of communities, and development of Working Groups to focus on keys areas such as diversity and inclusion, reward
strategies, talent development and others.

Instrumental in the development of our people culture was the recruitment of a Chief People Officer in November 2021, who has
significantly developed our people activities across a very broad spectrum of activities including, but not limited to, a refreshed
wellpeing strategy and services, a complete review of our reward and benefits strategy, the creation of job families across selected
disciplines, investment in our learning and development services, and development of diversity and inclusion policies, practices and
initiatives, More details can be found in our Sustainahbility report.
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Responsible business

We are committed to investing in the initiatives that support cur own responsible business culture. We have achieved progress
against our targets in all four areas of our sustainability strategy, and this work continues to underpin our broader strategic
objectives and risk management processes. Full details of this work can be found in our Sustainability report.

We implemented the Taskforce for Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) recommendations in full [ast year. We conciuded
that we must continue to monitor the impacts of climate change on the Group’s risk profile, but that the potential opportunities that
may arise from the transition to a low-carbon ecenomy are well aligned to our core offering. We have committed to net-zero carban
targets, with an ambition of absolute zero, producing no greenhouse gas emissions, in respect of Scope 1 and 2 emissions by
2028, and net zero in respect of Scope 3 emissions by 2045,

Portfolio update

In December 2022, we completed the disposal of Inese, a media and event business based in Madrid, Spain. We had flagged the
business as held for sale from February 2020, with the disposal process significantly hampered by the Covid-19 pandemic.

We continue to review all parts of the Group assessing businesses against six key charactenstics: organic growth opportunities;
attractive markets; digital and data capabilities; strong leadership; strategic fit to the GRC marketplaces; and attractive product,
revenue, and profitability characteristics.

We continue to seek businesses to join the Wilmington Group, with a highly active M&A function exploring many options. To date,
whilst we have identified numerous businesses which meet our required characteristics, valuation expectations continue to remain
high and we continue with our disciplined approach. We will continue to explore inarganic opportunities, whilst remaining focussed
on our organic growth.

Summary

Wilmington has transformed over the last four years to become a digital first business, focussed on the attractive GRC sector,
reinvigorating and innovating our products and services to develop deeper and longer-term relationships with clients, focussed an
the Intelligence and Training & Education markets, with a growth mindset at our core.

This new strategy is delivering, and key to this transformation are our people and supporting businesses who work tirelessly to
constantly develop and improve many aspects of what we do, how we do it, and deliver increasing value to our customers.

The current financial year has started in line with our expectations with continued organic revenue growth and improved profits and
cash.

Thank you to each and every one of my colleagues for their commitment to Wilmington, for their passion and expertise in their
chosen areas, and for the energy they bring to our many growth projects. Our recently launched company values of Inclusivity,
Ambition, Curiosity, and Integrity resonate well with our strategic ambitions and, with a mindful eye on the geopalitical and
economic uncertainty, we look forward to delivering aur plans for FY24 and beyond.

Mark Miuer
Mark Miiner

Chief Executive
22 September 2023
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Review of operations
Training & Education
2023 2022 Absolute variance Organic variance’

. £m £'m Yo %
Revenue

Glopal? 24.5 23.2 6% 4%
UK and Ireland?® 247 221 12% 12%
North America* 15.7 11.0 43% 31%
Continuing' revenue 64.9 56.3 15% 12%
Continuing operating profit 16.1 14.4 11% 8%
Margin % 25% 26%

Statutory revenue 64.9 61.4 6% 12%
Statutory operating profit 16.1 16.0 0% 8%

The revenue split shown in this table is not a geographic split of revenues, the split shows revenues of our business groupings within Training and
Education which are described below,

Business model and markets

The Global business comprises two units that cperate in Compliance markets. The largest business, which was developed
organically within Wilmington, is the Intematicnal Compliance Association ('ICA’). Itis an industry body and training business that
was created in 2002 which offers professicnal development and support to compliance officers predominantly in the financial
services sector. It has offices in the UK, Singapore, Malaysia and Dubai, and a new presence in India. ICA primarily serves the
financial services industry. The material for ICA courses is developed by our own internal R&D team, and external specialists. We
own the associated intellectual property.

Revenue eamned by ICA is primarily training income complemented by subscriptions paid by the professional members for their ICA
accreditations. The courses ICA run usually extend over several weeks or even months. They traditionally mix distance learning
with face-to-face sessions. The distance learning element has transitioned to online and digital variants, and virtual programmes
have been offered in place of face-to-face sessions. To support the move to virtual training in ICA a new Digital Learning Platform
(‘hub’) is being built — it was launched at the start of 2021 and further developments are due for release in the coming months.

The other Global business, CLTi, eams revenue from running professional development programmes for wealth managers.
Wilmingten has an international presence, with centres in the UK, Europe, and Asia Pacific. Our consistent investment programme
in content and technology is maintaining our competitive positioning.

The UK and Irefand business predominantly provides training for accountants in practice and in business, and individuals involved
in the legal system, including lawyers. It runs a mix of face-to-face, online, and blended leaming for these communities. It provides
training at various levels including providing continuing professional development for existing qualified accountants and, in the case
of the legal profession, helping them train their clients for interaction with the legal system. Additionally, it provides technical support
to accountancy firms which enables them to keep abreast of technical developments and changes to regulation, as well as
supporting them to promote the services they then offer to their clients,

Mercia (accauntancy) and Bond Solon (legal) are predominantly UK and Ireland based, reflecting the country specific laws and
accounting standards that govern their profession. Revenue in the unit is earned through clients subscribing for ongoing training
support and other related activities over a period of time (usually twelve months), with the rest through one off course attendance
fees. Courses are typically single or half day events, and content is a mix of owned and third-party intellectual property. Courses
are delivered either by in-house experts or a network of independent tutors who are paid per course that they deliver.

The Law for Non-Lawyers market is strong, with good ongoing demand for existing products as well as successful launches of new
training courses. The Accountancy market has returned to growth following a dip due to Covid-19 and demand is expected to
benefit from upcoming regulation change in the UK.

The North America business, FRA, is predominantly events based. It serves the US Healthcare and Health Insurance markets and,
to a lesser extent, the US financial and legal service communities. The prime brand is the RISE series of events that addresses the
Medicare and Medicaid markets and is attended by health plans, physician groups and solution partners. The flagship event is
RISE Natioral which normally takes place in March each year. Revenue from the US events is generated from both sponsorship
and delegate sales.

Trading performance
Revenues grew 15%, 12% if currency gains are excluded. All five of the businesses within the division grew organically and
recurring subscription revenues grew 11%.

ICA revenues were up 6% as double-digit growth in the UK was offset by a further drop in Singapore revenues after the exceptional
growth there in FY21. UK saw double digit growth. CLTi grew 4% and is focussed on increasing business in new territories in FY24.
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Bond Solon saw double-digit growth in FY23, driven by a strong increase in demand across the year. Mercia revenues grew 11% in
the year and moved above its pre-Covid-19 revenues.

In the US, FRA increased revenues by 43% (31% if currency gains are excluded) as demand from both delegates and sponsors
grew strongly in the face of continuing regulatory change.

Qverall divisional operating profit increased by 11%, mainly due tc increased revenues. The operating profit margin was slightly
down to 25% (2022: 26%) following increased technology investment.

Intelligence

2023 2022 Absolute variance Organic variance
£'m £'m % %
Revenue
Healthcare® 30.5 30.8 -1% -1%
Financial Services and Other® 21.7 19.8 9% 5%
MiExact 5.0 5.0 1% 1%
Continuing revenue §7.2 55.6 3% 1%
Continuing operating profit 13.0 10.8 20% 20%
Margin % 23% 19%
Statutory revenue 58.6 59.6 -2% 1%
Statutory operating profit 13.3 11.4 17% 20%

Business model and markets

Wilmington offers a wide range of products and services through its Healthcare businesses predominantly around the provision of
market and customer intelligence. The core of the data supplied comes primarily from publicly available sources. The value
generated by our services is based around its collation, verification, combination with other complementary data sources and then
its ease of presentation and usage. In some areas we provide proprietary analysis of the data and editorial comment which
constitute our own intellectual property.

Wilmington's Healthcare businesses operate mainly in the UK and France and provide deep insight information on practitioners,
facilities and treatments in the UK and French health sector markets that enable suppliers into those markets, including
phammaceutical companies, to understand and connect better with their customers. Revenue is mainly earned through sales of
discrete packages of data or through subscription services for the ongeing provision of information. Additionally, in the UK we
publish the Health Service Journal (‘HSJ'), the leading online publication in the UK for healthcare leaders, with revenue generated
through providing subscriptions to NHS foundation trusts, Clinical Commissioning Groups, and suppliers ta the NHS.

The Financial Services/Other businesses operate in the Insurance, Pensions and Compliance markets. These businesses provide
a broad range of information products and services with revenues generated primarily through subscription but also sponsorship,
lead generation and event attendance. Inese, the Spanish insurance business, was sold in December 2022.

The MiExact business consists of a portfolio of data products including charity fundraising information, and marketing data
suppression tools. They include services that are used by organisations to help prevent identify fraud. Revenue is predominantly
subscription based.

Trading performance
Overall Intelligence revenues from continuing businesses grew 3%, 1% if currency gains are excluded. All businesses except UK
Healthcare grew. Recurring subscription revenues grew 8% with strong retention rates.

Healthcare revenues declined 1%, with UK revenues down 4% offset by growth in France of 8% (6% excluding currency gains).
Market uncertainty fed to a loss of data revenue in the UK.

Financial Services revenues grew by 9%, 5% if currency gains are excluded. Subscription revenues grew 10% and were
particularly strong in Axco. Compliance Week grew sterling revenues but dollar revenues slipped back 4%.

MiExact revenues grew 1% after a siow first half was followed by a strong finai quarter. Subscription revenues grew 6% and had a
retention rate of 98%.

Intelligence divisional operating profit from continuing businesses grew by 20%, helped by continuing focus on its cost base and
automation of its processes. Operating margins improved to 23% from 19%.

lOr’gar‘lic — eliminating the effects of exchange rate fluctuations and the impact of acquisitions and disposals; Continuing — eliminating the effects of the impact of
disposals;

4G A businesses and CLTi.

3Mercia and Bond Solan.

“FRA.

5UK Healthcare and APM.

GPendragom Axco and Compliance \Week.
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Stakeholder engagement and non-financial information statement

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006

The 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code highlights the importance of Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006, requiring Directors
to act in a way that promotes the success of the Company for the benefit of shareholders whilst simultaneously showing regard for
the interest of its other stakeholders.

The Board follows a robust decision-making process, which is designed to ensure that any decisions made reflect Wilmingtan's
respansible business culture. The key reference points for decision making by the Board are: the impact on the Group’s overall
strategic objectives; consideration of its principal risks and uncertainties; and positive alignment with the core values underpinning
the Group's sustainability strategy. At the heart of all of these factors is consideration of the Group’s stakeholders, because it is
these groups who have the greatest potential to create positive outcomes for the Group as it strives to create long term value.
Further details on this decision making process can be found in the Corporate governance report on pages 43 to 48.

Stakeholder Engagement

Qur people Qur employee engagement strategy focusses on providing our
The delivery of the Group’s strategic people with platforms to actively participate in the Group's decision
objectives is dependent on our ability to making processes, and we are also committed to transparency
attract, develop and retain a highly skilled around the issues that matter most to them:

and motivated workforce. We strive to » Employee engagement survey results directly inform the
create an inclusive culture in which deveiopment of the Group People strategy.

diversity of thought, skills and perspectives » Global and brand level town halls provide a forum for leaders
helps us thrive. We are committed to across the business to engage with all employees.

strong recognition and reward strategies » Our internal intranet acts as a central palicy and guidance

that fairly reflect the contributions our portal, and also a communication platform for our employees to
people make to help us progress. share experiences and network across the Group.

+ We are developing 'Wilmington Communities’: networks of
people which stretch across diversity dimensions that will
actively inform our work to create an inclusive workplace.

+ Our performance development review process encourages
honest and open conversations about personal development.

» We are an accredited Living Wage employer and are committed
to a fair and transparent reward and recognition structure.

Several decisions are made every year that affect our people, read

more: p. 16-19
Shareholders We maintain a strong reporting process with regular digital content
Support from our sharehelders underpins updates for shareholders via our website throughout the year. Our
the success of our strategy. We aim to interim and year end reporting periods conclude with analyst briefing
provide fair, balanced, and understandable | sessicns and investor roadshows, and our Annual General Meeting.
information to shareholders to cleary The Executive Directors maintain close contact with shareholders
demonstrate strategic progress. and maintain strong relationships to facilitate one-to-one

engagements and conference calls. One decision in the year which
impacted shareholders is dividends, see page 25.

Read more: p. 47

Customers We strive to put our customers at the heart of our product

Qur customer-driven product management | management process, and this means working hard to find solutions
culture is key to our success and ensuring to meet their needs. Qur key communication channels come in the
that we truly understand the needs of our form of Customer Advisory Groups (‘CAGs’), feedback surveys and
customers is critical to the viability of cur maintaining strong relationships with key account contacts. Central
future plans. to our ambition of delivering excellent customer experience is the
progression of our accessibility strategy, ensuring anyone wha
needs our products and services can access them effectively.

Read more: p. 19-20

Suppliers We maintain strong and accessible communication channels with
Strong relaticnships with our suppliers are suppliers, to promote good relationships and to set clear

crucial to ensure that the services we expectations of the products and services we require. Our supplier
receive support the delivery of our own code of conduct clearly communicates to ali our suppliers the high
products effectively. We are also standards of responsible business practice we expect from them.

committed to ensuring mutually high

Read more: p. 20
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standards of responsible business from our |
suppliers. ‘

The environment and communities we
operate within

We have a responsibility to have a positive
impact on the environment and the
communities we operate within. This
responsibility plays an important part in
protecting the wellbeing of our people, and
in contributing to the future health of our
planet for the benefit of all our
stakeholders.

We are committed to carbon emission reductions, demonstrated by
the reduction in absolute emissions since our baseline year, and our
net-Zero fargets for future progress. Our carbon neutral commitment
allows us to contribute further to carbon reduction initiatives,
including a certified biodiversity protection programme that facilitates
long term carbon storage.

Our community and charity policy encourages our employees to
engage positively with the communities we work within and gives all
our people the opportunity to take paid volunteering leave.

Read more: p. 20-23, 34-38

to the

financial

KPls disclosed on page 12, the Group assesses performance using a range of non-financial KPIs relevant te each brand and
function. The Group also uses non-financial KPls to assess its progress in relation to its sustainability strategy, as outlined on

pages 15-23.

Non-Financial Information and Sustainability Statement

This index constitutes Wilmington's Non-Financial Information and Sustainability Statement, produced to comply with

Sections 414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006,

Reporting requirement Policies, processes and standards which govern our approach Page(s)
Carbort reduction plan, environmental management policy, risk 20-23, 34-
Environmental matiers management process and approach to TCFD 38
Conduct and compliance policies, diversity and inclusion statement of 16-19, 30-
People intent, employee engagement strategy and risk management process 31, 44
Respect for human rights Modem slavery staterment and risk management process 28-38, 20,
13, 15-23,
Social matters Stakeholder engagement strategy and sustainability strategy 43
13, 20, 27-

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery  ABC policy, risk management process and supplier code of conduct 29

Business model Business madel, KPIs and stakehaolder engagement strategy 10-14

In addition
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Sustainability report

Responsible business culture
Wilmington exists to empower its customers to do the right business in the right way. At the heart of this commitment to customers

is our own ambiticn to embed a responsible business culture that informs the way we work. Our sustainability strategy is
underpinned by four core values that, collectively, reflect this ambition.

As we successfully drive progress against our broader strategic objectives, we remain committed to making sustainable business
decisions by taking an iterative approach ta materiality. By continuing to listen to our key stakeholders, via the channels cutlined on
pages 13 and 14, we continue to refine our sustainability strategy to ensure that it drives long term value for all of them.

During 2023 we have made significant progress against the targets we set in 2022 for each strategic pillar of our sustainability
strategy. Our iterative approach has led us to further refining the priority initiatives in each of the four strategic pillars, which is
helping us to make progress and continue to set challenging targets for the future.

Led by our Head of Inclusion & Sustainability, we have built on our existing governance framework by establishing our Global
Sustainability Council. The Council is Chaired by the Chief Executive Officer, with each strategic pillar being led by the Executive
Committee. This provides strategic aversight and direction to the delivering of priority initiatives, while ensuring our sustainability
strategy is embedded into everything we do.

Board Oversight
Chair

GLOBAL SUSTAINABILITY COUNCIL
Chief Executive Officer

Cultural Customer fiv Environmental
positivity empowerment ¥ responsibility

Chief Peopte Officer Chief Operating Officer Chief Operating CMcer Chlef Financial OMcer

Reporting and Communication

Core value and strategic pillar
Cultural Customer Proactive Environmental
positivity empowerment assurance responsibility
Create an inclusive Deliver products that are [Uphold high standards iﬁ;r:ed:;ebenmvm:nrg?:tal
Core warkplace that supports, accessible, high value, [related to digital protection,cafbon fgot rint an dg
objective empowers, develops, and |up to date and move regulatory requirements, committin ?o responsible
fairly rewards all our people. with industry trends. ethics, and production. 9 P
procurement.
Fostering a positive culture . -
will attra?:t agd retain the Empowering our . e C°”.‘"““'”9 to
; customers ensures our| Responsible digitisation | environmental
best talent, accelerating . T
delivery of our strate products are closely and ethical conduct eche| responsibility protects the
Delivering ry 9y. aligned to their needs. | our core purpose and future of our people and
stakeholder Investing in our peaple underpin our digital-first | demonstrates to
value g peope Our customer driven approach delivering the | customers that we strive
benefits the communities : ) X L . X
. - approach to innovation | best-in-class digital to deliver products with
we operate in by delivering o e ;
. helps us stay agile in products. minimal environmental
exceptional employee .
] the face of change. impact.
experience.
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Meeting our
2023 targets

» Progress against our
Diversity & Inclusion
Strategy.

» Diversity data collected
for 75% of employees
glabally.

« Improved employee
engagement scores
against previous years.

» Increased number of
Mental Health First
Aiders (MHFA).

» Volunteer hours and
fundraising matching
baselined.

¢ Digital Accessibility
Campaign Phase 2
delivered.

« Quality Assurance
Fundamentals
training rolled out.

« Progress against
roadmap to WCAG
2.1 AA standard.

e >98% acceptance of
cyber security paolicy.

« G ICO reportable
phishing incidents
resulting in the loss of
data.

* 100% of products
subject to continuous
penetration testing.

« Carbon reduction plan
published, and carbon
reduction initiatives
progressed

« Salary sacrifice electric
and hybrid company car
scheme introduced as
carbgn lowering
employee benefi.

The ongoing work to drive progress against the core objective of each pillar is discussed on pages 15 to 23.

Cultural positivity
"We have the best people working for Wilmington, doing their best work with us. We care ahout them, include them, and
empower them. Our people are supported, developed, recognised and rewarded fairly.”

During the year we continued to make progress against our People Strategy, delivering initiatives and making changes to the way

that we work, so that we cantinue io create an inclusive workplace to support, empower, develop and fairly reward all our people.

This is reflected in our progress implementing aur Diversity and Inclusion strategy and by qur investments in resqurces ta create a
positive environment for all our peaple to reach their full potential at Wiimington.

Commitment to inclusivity
“Qur people have rich diversity, experiences, knowledge, and perspectives which powers our innovation and creativity to
help our customers to do the right business in the right way”

Our Head of Inclusion and Sustainability leads our work to embed a culture of inclusivity at Wilmington, which celebrates
everything that makes our people unigue.,

This is underpinned by the data we collect about our people, which enables us to understand and measure diversity and inclusion

at Wilmington; using data to guide our strategy and areas of focus. As part of our target for regular data collection and analysis, we
continued to collect rich diversity data to help us better understand the composition of our workforce. By asking our people to
disclose this data as part of our annual employee engagement survey, we are able to better understand the diversity characteristics
of 75% of our global workforce, which reflects a 94% response rate to existing diversity monitoring questions from those who

received the survey in locations where legislation allows the collection of this information. OQur data collection approach was fully
corpliant with the relevant regulations in each jurisdiction. By harmessing this data to measure diversity at Wilmington, we are
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better equipped to build a waorkforce that reflects the diversity of the communities we serve and work within. Further details of the
gender and ethnicity balance within senior management specifically are disclosed in the Corporate governance report on page 44.

What makes our people unique?

Gender identity Disability or long term health condit:ion

Profer not "0 say (rher FERTOE AT 10 Sy Yos
7,

2% 1%

AL

Male
345%
Famale
a2
b
] A§§24 Ethnicity
O+ -, Arry aather Astan
§558 5% 2% 2529 "x g mamen

"M%

8% '.

SC-54
14%

3% e
. rPrafer nar o say
/_m A
<4
4

30-34
14%

45-49
14%
~ 35-39 e
19% o
4044
16%

How are we driving progress

We have made significant progress in delivering the impactful initiatives we set out to in our Diversity & Inclusion strategy, across
the whole of Wilmington. These aren’t just one-off projects, but initiatives that are focussed on changing the way we work, creating
lasting impact, and weaving diversity and inclusion into everything we do. In 2023, we have made the following progress:

Every brand and function within our portfolio has a dedicated Diversity & Inclusion champion. Having worked with their
team to lpcalise the global strategy to make sure it is most effective for their area, they are delivering against their plans,
Buiiding on the internal networks we established for Race and Ethnicity and Gender, we have launched a campaign to
build mare Wilmington Communities.

All advertisements for career opportunities are developed using a specialised augmented writing platform, ensuring that
our language is inclusive and that we appeal to a diverse audience.

We adapted our existing tools and processes to anonymise the CVs/resumes of applicants to the career oppertunities we
advertise, reducing the opportunity for bias in the process.

We have developed our own hiring manager training to ensure our hiring managers are fully equipped to reduce bias in
the hiring process and to hire the best people to join us.

Inclusive Leadership has been built into our People Leader Programme, part of our leadership and management
development suite.

More people have joined our #WeAreWilmingtonPlc campaign, encouraging our peaple to share what is important to them
and what makes them unique, so we can celebrate the diversity of our people.

We launched our Menopause Palicy, setting out how we support people experiencing perimengpausal or menopausal
symptoms, and provided information and awareness sessions to everyone.

We launched our Early Careers Programme, attracting and recruiting a diverse range of talent not limited by university
education.

The collection of diversity data has been expanded further, to include socio-economic status and neurodiversity, giving us
greater insight into our people and influencing cur future nitiatives.
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We recognise the power of collaboration and shared expertise. Therefore, we work with external networks, community and
advocacy groups, and charities, to ensure that our work incorporates emerging thinking and best practice, responds to what is
important to our people, and fosters accountability. We are proud to:

+ Be a Committed Member of Inclusive Employers, collaborating with other employers to share best practice.

« Continue to fellow our roadmap to meet the commitments we made when we signed the Business In the Community
(BITC) Race at Work Charter.

» Be a member of the Business Disability Forum to acceierate our pregress from peing Disability Confident Committed to
becoming a Disability Confident Employer.

+ Have joined the Employers Initiative on Domestic Abuse {EIDA), to take action on domestic abuse.

« Be an accredited Living Wage Employer, because we believe our people deserve a wage which meets their everyday
needs.

« Have signed the Menopause Workplace Pledge, committing to taking positive action to make sure everyane gomng through
the menopause is supported.

« Have participated in the 10,000 Black Interns programme, offering three paid internships for Black students and
graduates.

Investing in our people

Our ambition to create a positive culture is also aligned to our commitment to our customers, who trust us because we are experts
in our field and help them overcome their complex business challenges in GRC. To continue to support ocur people to deliver
excellent customer vaiue, our People Strategy takes a holistic approach to attracting, developing, and investing in talented people.

Investing in...

Learning and development Wellbeing Recognition and reward

Expanded our leadership and Invested in providing dedicated focus to Caontinued embedding our pay fairly and

management develapment suite of wellbeing with the appointment of our pay for performance philosophy by

learning to provide for aspiring managers Engagement & Wellbeing Officer. providing managers a set of tools to

through to our most experienced leaders. apply our pay principles consistently and
Implemented a Continued Professional without bias.

Introduced a Wilmington mentoring Development accredited programme for all  Maintained Accredited Living Wage

scheme to nurture our talent, carefully leaders and managers focused on Wellbeing, Employer status.

structured to cater to the diverse needs as well as continuing to develop and support
and aspirations of our pecple, offering both our Mental Health First Aiders and Wellbeing Completed in-depth global gender pay

formal and informal mentoring Champions. gap reporting as part of our strategy for
opportunities. closing the gap.

Offering extensive wellbeing-orientated
Set standards of capability for sales, benefits including global employee Completed a comprehensive review of
product, technical training, and customer assistance programme, digital GP and employee benefits, enhancing our
success roles, providing visibility of what  healthcare support. offering.

excellence looks like at every level.

Monitoring progress

We continue to grow and evolve cultural positivity throughout Wilmington, and our approach highly values engagement and

invalvement fram our people to help us to shape and enhanced their experience at work. In FY23 89% of our people globally |
participated in our annual employee engagement survey, sharing valuable insights into the issues that matter most to them. This

feedback is one of the tools we use to monitor our performance in respect of strong employee experience, and infiuences our

People Strategy.

Additionally, data collected around diversity demographics as disclosed on page 16 and 17 allows us to monitor the diversity of our
people. We use this data to view the insights provided in the employee engagement survey through a diversity lens, to measure
inclusion.

We are pleased to have met our target to maintain or improve cur engagement scores against key areas of focus since the FY20
baseline year. Where a score has been maintained but not improved against the prior year, we have focussed on accelerating the
drivers of this change identified in our People strategy. We have also given increased focus to communicating the progress against
our People Strategy to our people, to ensure that our that our people know their feedback has been heard, acted upon, and can
see and feel the impact of our commitment to cultural positivity.

Driver Outcome FY20 | FY21 | FY22 | FY23
score | score | score | score
Diversity and [nclusion | At Wilmingtan. peaple of all
" backgrounds are accepted for who a.1 8.4 8.3 8.4
they are'
Training and Develgpment My manager or mentor encourages 7.4 7.7 Lo 8 7.9
and supports my development ) ’ )
Health and Wellbeing Emplayee health and wellbeing is a 6.3 78 74 74

priority at Wilmington
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'FY 20-22: “People from all backgrounds are treated fairly at Wilmington®
In FY23, we overhauled our employee engagement survey to streamline the format, making it easier to understand and simpler for our people to complete. As a result,
the outcomes we measure were also refined.

Further details of our approach to employee engagement can be found in the Section 172 statement on page 13.

Qur work in this area contributes to: SDG 3 Good health and wellbeing, SDG 5 Gender equality and SDG 8 Decent work and
economic growth, with a focus on the below sub-indicators:

3.4 By 2030, reduce by one-third premature mortality from non-communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and

promote mental health and wellbeing.

5.8 Ensure women's full and effective participation and equal opportunities for leadership at alf levels of decision making in political,
economic and public life.

8.5 By 2030, achieve full and productive employment and decent work for alf women and men, including for young people and
persons with disabilities, and equal pay for work of equal value.

Customer empowerment

“We are committed to embedding a customer-led approach to prodiict development and delivery. Our customers directly
inform our agenda, and by creating accessible, high value and up to date products we empower them to realise maximum
value from our offering.”

We have continued to invest in initiatives that further build our customer empowerment culture, in which every individual involved in
the product cycle is mindful of custorner needs, and those needs are reflected from development to delivery. The underlying
principles of this product cycle are accessibility, innovation and agility, and strong customer engagement.

How we are driving progress

Principles Outcomes
Accessibility Qur products are accessible to all.
Innovation and agility An embedded dynamic product management

approach that can respond rapidly to change
whilst maintaining high quality outputs.
Strong customer engagement Customers directly inform new product
development, and we facilitate strong
communication channels for customer

feedback.
Investing in....
Accessibility innovation and agility Strong customer engagement

e Sourced digital accessibility + Implemented a single e  Further enhanced data analytic
scanning tools and developing technology platform in each capabilities to provide high
processes to increase WCAG division, with a shared quality insight into our
2.1 compliance across all infrastructure and common custorners through real-time
sites, products, and hest practice. performance monitoring and
associated collateral. « Qur Wilmington Product real-time user analytics.

» Delivered Phase 2 of the Academy delivered »  Customer Advisory Groups
Digital Accessihility Campaign, bespoke product training to {'CAGs’) and customer
providing live product audits, our people. feedback mechanisms
accessibility discovery « Embedded a philosophy of deployed for all key product
sessions, snapshot product iterative product roll-outs te groups, with customer insight
audits, and awareness raising produce relevant updates driving our development
events and stay close to change. approach.

Our ambition to create an inclusive culture at Wilmington extends beyond our own peaple, to the clients and customers we serve
with products that are accessible to all. At the heart of this ambition, and key to the ongoing success of our digital-first model, is a
high standard of digital accessibility across our product portfolio. Therefore, as well as delivering our second successful Digital
Accessibility Campaign, we have progressed along our roadmap to achieving WCAG 2.1 AA standards across our product portfelio.
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Our accessibility agenda extends far beyond aur digital assets, and is an integral part of our wider Diversity and Inclusion strategy
as discussed on page 16.

Digital Accessibility Campaign Phase 2 Highlights

e  Fourlive product audits, led by digital accessibility experts

» 14 accessibility discovery sessicns, exploring accessibility best practice relating to our products
+ Six 'snapshot’ audits of digital products, providing insightful recommendatians for improvements
* Three awareness events with thought leaders and subject matter experts.

Our work in this area contributes to the UN goal SDG 10 Reduced inequalities, with focus on sub-indicator 19.2: By 2030, empower
and promate the secial, economic and political inclusion of all, irrespective of age, sex, disability, race, ethnicity, origin, religion or
econamiic or other status.

Proactive assurance

Ethical compliance

Responsible business practice is at the heart of our strategy, and therefore we aim to instil a culture of strong ethical compliance
across the portfolio, Our ethics policies are designed to provide clear and consistent guidance to our people to ensure they
contribute to these high standards of ethical conduct, and are outlined for all employees in our internal policies.

One of the key elements of our core value of cultural positivity is that Wilmington reflects a safe and inclusive working environment
that encourages strong employee engagement and participation by all. Management encourages this by advocating universal
openness and transparency in respect of reporting non-compliance of any form, with clear guidelines provided in the Group’'s ABC
and whistleblowing policies. As we advocate high standards of integrity internally, we echo this sentiment in respect of our external
stakeholders by taking a zero-tolerance approach to any forms of unethical behaviour within our wider operations and supply
chains.

During the year we have:

Reviewed and maintained the mandatory policy acceptance process;,

Achieved >98% target for palicy acceptance rate;

Streamlined the content included in mandatory compliance training to make it even mare impactfut and effective; and
Maintained the requirement to demaonstrate a commitment to responsible behaviour into our supplier cnboarding process.

Responsible digitisation

Qur customers rely heavily on quality data and advanced analytics provided by our Intelligence division, and on reliable and
engaging delivery formats in our Training & Education division. This reliance comes with positive assurance from our teams that we
take a proactive approach to uphold the highest standards of cyber security and data privacy.

Our digital assurance process is govermed by skilled individuals who maintain high levels of contral and compliance and implement
best practice in this area. We are also dedicated to helping our technology experts continue to stay ahead of the ever-evaiving risk
of cyber security, with continuous update training and dedicated resources to enhance awareness.

We remain committed to the highest standards of compliance in this area and in the year we achieved our goals to deliver:

« >98% acceptance of cyber security, acceptable use and data protection policies
s« 0ICO reportable phishing incidents resulting in the loss of data; and
* 100% of internal products undergo continuous penetration testing.

Our work in this area contributes to the UN goal SDG 16 Peace, justice and strong institutions, with focus on sub-indicator 16.6:
Develop effective. accauntable and transparent institutions at all levels.

Environmental responsihility

Our commitment to environmentally responsible eperations is an essential part of our confribution to creating a healthy planet for
our people, our partners and our local communities to prosper. Qur biggest direct impacts on the planet come from resource use
and emissions from our offices, and we continue to focus on transitioning to sustainable materials and methadclogies to reduce this
impact.

Climate change, energy and carbon reporting

In response to the climate crisis, we also recognise the need to accelerate action to ensure that our business plays an active role in
the global effort to address the impacts of climate change and the transition to a low carbon economy.
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We maintain our commitment to carbon neutrality by offsetting our Scope 1, 2 and controllable Scope 3 emissions, through high
quality accredited carbon offset schemes focussed on biediversity protection and innovation in renewable energy technologies.

We have set net-zero carbon targets with a 2019 baseline year, aligned to a 1.5°C trajectory, and have published our carbon
reduction plan to progress against these goals. We have set ambitious reduction targets in respect of Scope 1 and 2 emissions well
in advance of 2050 and have worked hard to set challenging targets in respect of Scope 3 emissions despite the challenge of
managing emissions from sources we do not directly control.

Our targets

Scope 1 and 2 emissions:
s  Absolute! zero by 2028

Scope 3 emissions:

s Near term: reduce by 52% from baseline by 2030
s« Long term: Net zero by 2045

Our reporting on energy use and GHG emissions is in line with the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting { SECR'} legislation.
To reflect our commitment to monitor, report and reduce our environmental impact, we have also increased the scope of our GHG
reparting to include Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions in line with Science Based Targets initiative recommendations.

Energy use and GHG emissions have been assessed following the I1SO 14064-1:2018 standard and using the 2022 emission
conversion factors published by the Department for Envirenment, Food and Rural Affairs ('Defra’} and the Department far Business,
Energy, and Industrial Strategy {'BEIS’). The assessment follows the market-based approach for assessing Scope 2 emissions
from electricity usage. The operational control approach has been used. All Group entities have been included in the assessment.
Assurance over the data used to calculate emissions has been obtained from a reputable third-party carbon assessment analyst.
The use of employee and turnover ratios is important to reflect Wilmington's relative performance in relation to two of the measures
that fluctuate in line with strategic business change.

lconsumption (kWh)

30 June 2019 | 30 June 2021 30 June 2022} 30 June 2023 Change| Change inthe
Global carbon footprint Baseline Tonnes of Tonnes of Tonnes of since year %
assessment Tonnes of CO2e CO2e CO2e CO2e (baseline %
Emissions from:
Scope 1 — direct emissions 77.45 32.21 8.14 6.30 (81.9) {22.6)
Scope 2 - indirect emissions 42214 168.74 28.80 33.15 (92.1) 15.1
Total Scope 1 and 2 emissions 499.5% 200.95 36.94 39.45 {92.1) 6.8
CO:2 employee ratio Scope 1 and 2
[tonnes of COz per employee) 0.59 0.24 0.04 0.05 {91.9) 25.0
CO:2 turmgver ratio Scope 1 and 2
tonnes of CO:z per £m revenue) 3.89 1.70 0.31 0.32 (91.8) 32
Scope 3 - other indirect emissions 3,400.20 983.87 1,399.51 1,411.32 {58.5) 08
Total {all Scope 1, 2 and 3) 3,899.79 1,184.82 1,436.45 1,450.77 {62.8) 1.0
;I'kc‘);’a;)UK energy consumption 1,111,892 607,645 461,319 575147 (48.3) 247
Total glabal energy 1,417,512 774,666 570,049 699,987 (50.8) 22.8

The CO2 emission have not been split out between UK and offshere, as it is impractical to do s0.

Reducing our environrmental impact
Our Group strateqgy to drive investment in our technological and data capabilities, continues to have a significant impact on our
ability to work in inngvative ways that reduce our environmental impact. As we continue to balance and embed our hybrid working
capabilities and our ability to operate remotely whilst maintaining strong personal connections and high preduct quality, we have
seen some fluctuation in our environmental footprint. Qur progress over time is positive, but we are also working to reduce the
impact of our digital footprint on the environment through energy consumption. We have significantly reduced our emissions from
travel since our base year, but in 2023 our emissions from travel have increased compared to 2022. We are therefore closely
manitoring this, and considering further initiatives to adapt our approach to travel in a way that allows us to reap the benefits of
face-to-face interaction whilst minimising the associated carbon footprint.

We are also committed to reducing waste, and to minimising the carbon footprint associated with the disposal of waste we do
produce. Along with the measures set out in our waste management policy on the Wilmington plc website, we are also continually
reviewing waste management with our landlerds to reduce the amount of our office waste going to landfill to 0%. Since 2021 we

have reduced the proportion of our waste that goes to landfill fram 10% to 6% of our total.
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2021 waste disposal routes 2022 waste disposal routes

Incineration with
energy recovery
30%

Landfill 10% Recycling 65%

Recycling: 63%
Incineration with energy
recovery: 31% Landfill:
6%

incineration

with energy
recavery 29%

Recycling 60%

' Nil carbon emissions achieved without associated carbon offset.

The key activities we have implemented, and continue to develop, to reduce our environmental impact since our 2019 baseline
year include:

« Performed a cemprehensive review of office premises to consolidate our operations and improve efficiency, reviewing this
regularly;

Secured renewable tariffs for energy use at 100% of our occupied UK sites;

Collaborated with landlords and fellow tenants to consider solutions to further reduce environmental impact, far example,
the instailation of solar panels at one of our UK occupied sites;

Refurbished office sites to upgrade to energy efficient lighting solutions;

Consolidated resource use with a focus on reducing single use plastic, and facilitated more effective waste management;
Sustained the digitalisation of products to reduce the need for travel and improve efficiency of delivery;

Increased the scope of employee engagement activities to raise awareness of sustainability and encourage positive
collective action;

+ Updated our business travel policy to encourage the use of low carbon modes of transport;

« Introduced an electric and hybrid salary sacrifice car scheme as an employee benefit; and

* Introduced environmental commitments into our supplier code of conduct.

» »

* & & @

Further details of our response to climate change are outlined in our TCFD reporting index on page 34-35.

Qur work in this area contnbutes to SDG 12 Responsible consumption and production, and SDG 13 Climate action, specifically
12.2: By 2030, achieve the sustainable management and efficient use of natural resources and 12.8: By 2030, substantially reduce
waste generation through prevention, reduction, recycling and reuse.

We provide our pecple with volunteer leave to support causes important to them.

“l used my volunteer days to be able to volunteer at the Commonwealth Games in Birmingham in the summer, | was based in the
main Alexandra Stadium and worked as an Honorary Steward which included meeting & greeting spectators, carrying out safety
checks and generally doing all | could to create a great atmosphere for people to watch the events. Being based there also meant
could watch some world class athletes competing which was a highlight too. — David Povey, ICA

We engage our customers in projects to support focal communities

Many hands make light work — just ask the RISE conference attendees who spent a productive hour, prior to the kick-off our
conferences, packing meals as part of a commitment to make a difference in local communities. With music blaring, the volunteers
waorked in an assembly-line fashion to pack thousands of meals for local families facing food insecurity. Roughly 40 volunteers
joined in for the first packing event at the Social Determinants of Health Policy Forum held in Washington, D.C. in late November
2022. In one hour, volunteers packed 15,684 meals that were sent to the Capital Area Food Bank. The second one-hour food
packing event took place in early April at the Summit on Social Determinants of Health. Thirty volunteers helped to pack 15,120
meals for the people of Chicagoe.

We work with suppliers who have innovative approaches to sustainability

Our colieagues visited the apiary of the supplier of cleaning services to our London office, whose landmark and most popular
sustainability fnitiative is adepting a beehive with every new client. This initiative means that we support a bigger urban bee
population in London and enhance biodiversity further.
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We pravide opportunities for all

“| am very thaniful to everyone who spent time with me during this experience; your knowledge and advice have been so valuable
and some | will never forget. | would also like to thank 10,000 Black interns for connecting me with Wilmington plc and offering an
unforgettable experience.” — Taya Tijani, People Team intem, and participant in the 10,000 Black Intern pragramme
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Financial review

Overview
The Group perfarmance was strong during the year, driving organic growth in revenue and profit and reinforcing the strength of the
balance sheet, reflected by the closing net cash position.

Adjusting items, measures, and adjusted results

In this Financial review reference is made to adjusted results as well as the equivalent statutory measures. The Directors make use
of adjusted results, which are not considered to be a substitute for or superior to IFRS measures, to provide stakehalders with
additional relevant information and enable an alternative comparison of performance over time. Adjusted results exclude
amaortisation of intangible assets (excluding computer software), impairments, other income (when material or of a significant
nature) and other adjusting items.

Organic
2023 2022 Absolute variance variance
£'m £'m £m % %
Revenue 123.5 121.¢ 2.5 2.0% 6.7%
Adjusted profit before tax 243 20.7 36 17.6% 13.3%

Adjusted profit margin % 19.7% 17.1%

Variances described as 'organic’ are calculated by adjusting the revenue change achieved year-on-year to exclude the impact of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and also to exclude the impact of changes in the portfolio from acquisitichs and
disposals.

Revenue
Group revenue increased 2.0% overall and 6.7% on an organic basis, the overall increase reflecting £0.3m of fareign currency
downside and the impact of disposals. Full details can be feund in the Review of Operations.

QOperating expenses hefore amortisation of intangible assets (excluding computer software} and impairments
Operating expenses before amortisation of intangible assets (excluding computer software) and impairments were £59.4m (2022:
£99.4m), flat year on year.

Within operating expenses, staff costs increased £1.1m to £56.3m (2022: £55.2m). This net increase reflects the inflationary pay
rise at the beginning of the year. The increases were partly offset by salary cost savings generated from a reducticn in headcount
post disposals. Share based payment costs increased £0.3m due to the 2023 SAYE scheme which cormmenced in the year.

Non-staff costs decreased by £1.1m to £43.1m (2022: £44.2m), reflecting the costs saved due to the sale of Inese and the
reduction in amortisation of computer software within intangible assets year on year.

Unallocated central overheads
Unallocated central overheads, representing Board costs and head office salaries, as well as other centrally incurred costs not
recharged to the businesses, decreased £0.8m year-on-year to £3.7m (2022: £4.5mj).

Adjusted profit before tax (‘adjusted PBT’)

As a result of increased revenue and a continued focus on operational efficiency and cost management, adjusted profit before tax,
which eliminates the impact of amortisation of intangible assets (excluding computer software), impaiments, other income and
other adjusting items, was up 17.6% to £24.3m (2022: £20.7m}.

Adjusted profit margin (adjusted PBT expressed as a percentage of revenue) also increased to 19.7% (2022: 17.1%).

Amortisation excluding computer software, impairment charge and other income
Amortisation of intangible assets {excluding computer software) was £2.4m (2022: £2.4m) representing intangible assets acquired
as part of priar year acquisitions.

Other income represents the net gain of £2.2m from the disposal of Inese.

Adjusting items within operating expenses
Adjusting items within operating expenses of £0.1m (2022: £0.1m) are those items that are one off in nature and which de not
represent the ongaoing trading perfarmance of the business.

Operating profit (‘EBITA’)
Operating profit was £23.8m (2022: £37.0m). The |large decrease is driven by the £16.3m gain of the sale of AMT and La Touche
(Inese sale: £2.2m for FY23 comparison} and the adjusting other income (profits on sale of property) all in the prior year.

Net finance income
Net finance income up £1.2m to £0.2m (2022: net finance costs of £0.9m}, primarily related to the interest received on the large cash
balance the Group maintained during the full year.
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Profit before taxation
Profit before taxation was £24.0m (2022: £36.1m); a reconciliation of this to adjusted profit before tax can be found in note 2.

Taxation

The tax charge for the year was £3.8m (2022: £3.3m) reflecting an effective tax rate of 15.8% (2022: 9.1%). The increase in the tax
rate year-on-year reflects the nature of other operating income and adjusting items, specifically the gain on disposal of businesses
in 2022 vs 2023 which were not subject to corporation tax.

The underlying tax rate which ignores the tax effects of adjusting items has risen slightly to 22.3% (2022: 21.0%). The increase
reflects the UK corporation tax increase from 18% to 25% in April 2023, one quarter of which applies to FY23.

Earnings per share

Adjusted basic earnings per share increased by 15.2% to 21.49p (2022: 18.66p), due to the increase in adjusted profit before tax,
offset by a slight increase in the underlying tax rate (see above) and an essentially unchanged number of issued ordinary shares
{see below). Basic eamings per share was 22.94p (2022: 37.46p) in the prior year, reflecting the decrease in profit after tax.

Continuing adjusted basic earnings per share, excluding the results of sold and closed businesses, increased by 27.2% to 21.27p
(2022: 16.72p), see reconciliation below.

2023 2022

£'m £m

Adjusted earnings (hote 9) 18.9 16.3

Remove profit after tax of sold and closed busingsses {0.2) (1.7)

Continuing adjusted earnings 18.7 14.6
Number Number  Variance

Weighted average number of orginary shares (note 5) 88,027,119 87,632,022
Continuing adjusted basic earnings per share 21.27p 16.72p 27.2%

Dividend
A final dividend of 7.3p per share (2022: 5.8p) will be proposed at the AGM. This will give a full year dividend up 22% te 10.0p

(2022: 8.2p) and dividend cover of 2.1 times (2022: 2.3 times).

if approved it will be paid on 28 November 2023 to shareholders an the register as at 28 October 2023 with an associated ex-
dividend date of 27 October 2023.

Balance sheet
Non-current assets
Goodwill at 30 June 2023 was £60.6m {2022: £61.1m). A weakening US Dollar led to a decrease in the Sterling value of the US

Dollar portion of the Group’s goodwill.

Intangible assets decreased by £3.7m to £5.7m (2022: £9.4m) due to amortisation of £4.1m, partly offset by additions of £0.6m
within computer software reflecting the Group’s continued strategy to invest in the existing businesses to fuel organic growth.
Additions reflect the continued investment in Wilmington's digital transformation. The remaining decrease reflects exchange
translation differences.

Property, plant and equipment increased by £0.1m to £7.0m (2022: £6.9m). This is attributable to the £1.9m increase in the right of
use assets due to the new France and USA leases entered into during the year, together with £0.5m of other additions, offset by
depreciation of £2.3m.

Deferred consideration receivable
The deferred consideration receivable balance of £1.9m {2022: £1.7m) relates to the disposal of ICP in July 2018 and the deferred
consideration from the sale of Inese (see note 10}, with £1.1m recognised within non-current assets and the remaining £0.8m

recognised within current assets.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables remained relatively constant at £27.4m (2022 £27.1m).

Current tax liability
At 30 June 2023 the Group recognised a liability relating to current tax of £0.1m (2022: asset £1.3m). The net liability position

reflects a slight net underpayment position.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables increase by £5.7m to £56.0m (2022: £50.3m). Within this, subscriptions and deferred revenue increased
by £2.3m or 7.1% to £33.7m (2022: £31.4m), the rest of the increase is due to payment timings. This increase in subscripttons and
deferred revenue was driven mostly by the growth of subscription services in the year.
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Provisions
Provisions were £1.2m (2022: £1.5m), relating wholly to future committed costs associated with the closed portion of the head

office space.

Net cash, lease liabilities and cash flow

Net cash, which includes cash and cash eguivalents, cash classified as held for sale, bank loans and bank overdrafts, and lease
liabilities, was £35.0m (2022: £13.0m). This significant net cash pasition is driven by a strong trading perfarmance delivering
improved profits and effective cash management as well as a cash inflow associated with the sale of Inese.

Lease liabilities decreased to £7.2m (2022 £7.5m). £2.1m cash payments in refation to contractual lease obligations were made
during the year reducing the balance, offset by the new France and USA leases mentioned abave and £0.2m of notional interest on
lease liabilities reported within net finance costs.

Cash conversion remained strong at 138% (2022: 114%}.

Share capital
in October 2022 Wilmington issued 340,052 ardinary voting shares to satisfy the Company's obligations under its Performance

Share Plan.

During the year 30,215 shares heid by the Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT’) were used to satisfy the Company’s
obligations under the SAYE Plan. At 30 June 2023, the ESOT held 352,651 shares (2022: 403,782) in the Company, which
represents 0.4% (2022: 0.5%) of the called up share capital.

60,762 shares held in treasury were used to satisfy the Company’s obligations under the SAYE Plan during the year. At 30 June
2023, 5,208 shares (2022: 65,970) were held in treasury, which represents 0.1% (2022: 0.1%) of the share capital of the Company.

AT Millward

Guy Millward
Chief Financial Officer
22 September 2023
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Risks and uncertainties facing the business

Identifying and managing our risks

Responsibility for the Group's system of risk management and internal controls ultimately lies with the Board. Risk identification,
assessment and management are central to the Group's internal control environment, and risk management is recognised as an
integral element of the Group’s operating activities.

The Board is also responsible for determining the Group's appetite for risk, and the acceptable level of risk that can be taken on by
the Group and its individual operating entities when assessing its strategic objectives ('Wilmington risk appetite’). The Board sets
and clearly communicates its local risk appetite to the business leaders respansible for executing their activities in various locations
across the global portfolio. The guidelines set in response to the Group's risk appetite are complemented by the Group's
comprehensive portfolio of policies governing conduct, including its Anti-Bribery and Corruption (ABC’) and Modern Slavery
guidelines, and in accordance with delegated authority limits. The Group's risk assessment covers a three year period, as is
consistent with the period of assessment used in its strategic planning process and viability review.

The Wilmington Executive Committee coordinates and facilitates the risk assessment process on behalf of the Board. The
Executive Committee reports directly to the Board using a combination of structured formal interviews, monthly operational
updates, site visits, ‘bottom up’ reporting and registers {together, the ‘risk assessment’). The risk assessment covers both external
and internal factors and the potential impact and likelihood of those risks occurring. Twice per annum the Audit Committee
discusses the report received from the external auditor regarding their review and audit procedures, which include, comments on
their findings on internal control and risks.

Once identified, risks are reviewed and then incorporated into formal risk registers held at both a Group and entity level, which
evolve to reflect any changes to identified risks and the emergence of any new risks. Where it is considered that a risk can be
actively mitigated to the benefit of the business, respansibilities are assigned, and action plans are agreed.

As well as assessing ongoing risks the Executive Committee considers how the business could be affected by any emerging risks
over the long term. Emerging risks are those which may develop but have a greater uncertainty attached to them. Twice per annum
Managing Directors (‘MDs’"), and Heads of Group Functions are asked to highlight any new or emerging new risks; these are then
reported to the Board and maonitored cn an ongoing basis.

Our risk assessment process provides a clear framework for identifying and managing risk, both at an operational and strategic
level, and has been designed to be appropriate to the ever-changing environments in which we operate.

Risk management structure, roles and responsibilities

The Board regularly reviews the Group’s key risks and is supported in the discharge of this responsibility by various committees,
specifically the Audit Committee. The risk management roles and responsibilities of the Board, its committees and business
management are set out below, and all these responsibilities have been met during the year.

Responsibilities Actions
Board = Approve the Group's strategy and objectives = Assess managements strategic decisions in the
Ultimate = Determine Group appetite for risk in achieving its context of the Group’s risk appetite

responsibility for Receive regular risk updates from the businesses

risk management =

strategic objectives -
Establish the Group's systems of risk management
and internal control

Audit Committee = Supports the Board by monitoring risk and = Receive regular reporis on the internal and external
Supporting the reviewing the effectiveness of Group internal audit and other assurance activities
Board controls, including systermns to identify, assess, * Determine the nature and extent of the principal
manage and monitor risks Group risks and assess the effectiveness of
mitigations
= At least annually review the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems
* Review the adequacy of the Group’s key conduct
policies
Executive = Strategic leadership of the Group’s operations * Review of risk management and assurance
Committee » Ensure that the Group's risk management and other  activities and processes
Ongoing review policies are implemented and embedded » Respond to notifications of changing and emerging
and control * Consider emerging risks in the context of the risks within its area of business responsibility

Group's strategic objectives * Govern monthly/quarterly finance and performance
= Monitar the application of risk appetite and the reviews

effectiveness of risk management processes = Review key risks and mitigation plans and
= Monitar the discharge of responsibilities by consolidate Group risks

operating entities -

Review the three year strategic plan
Review results of assurance activities
Escalate key risks to the Board

27



DacuSign Envelape ID: 170E7873-B454-4EA7-B371-35DD042E9327

Strategic report — Wilmington plc 30 June 2023

Senior = Maintain an effective system of risk management = Regularly review operational, project, functional
Leadership and internal control within their function/operating and strategic risks

Team company = Review mitigation plans

Ongoing risk * Maintain strong and timely communication with the = Plan, execute and report on assurance activities as
assessment Executive Committee in respect of emerging and required by entity, region or group

changing risks

Wilmington risk appetite
The Group's approach is to minimise expesure 10 reputational, financial and operational risk, whilst accepting and recognising a
risk/reward trade-off in the pursuit of its strategic and commercial objectives.

The provision of solutions primarily to the Governance, Risk and Compliance markets means that the integrity of the business and
its brands is crucial and cannot be put at risk. Consequently, it has zero tolerance for risks relating to non-adherence to laws and
regulations (‘unacceptable risk'). The business, however, operates in a challenging and highly competitive marketplace that is
constantly changing not just in regulation and legistation but also for new technolegy and process innavation.

It is therefore part of day-to-day planning to make certain financial and operational investments in pursuit of growth objectives,
accepting the risk that the anticipated benefits from these investments may not always be fully realised. Its acceptance of risk is
subject to ensuring that potential benefits and risks are fully understood and sensible measures to mitigate risk are established.

Climate change
The Group recognises that the global climate crisis is a significant driver of future socio-economic and environmental change, and
accordingly presents potential risk to the Group's ability to deliver its strategic objectives.

In the 2022 risk assessment and strategic planning processes, the Group conducted a detailed review of the potential risks that
may arise as a result of climate change. Following the review management concluded that impacts of climate change should
continue to be high on the agenda of its strategic planning and risk assessment processes, but should not be classified as a
discrete principal risk, justified by two key outcomes:

1. The review demonstrated that the Group’s business model and strategy have an inherent resilience to the impacts of climate
change for the following reasons:

= Lack of direct reliance on the natural resources impacted most heavily by climate change to deliver its products;

» Proven agility and resources to facilitate relocation of operations and events or transition to digital alternatives if an
extreme climate event occurs;

» Presence across different markets in different locations and no significant customer concentration in the sectors at most
risk of severe disruption from climate change; and

« Strong alignment of its core offering to potential transition impacts specifically in relation to new policy, regulatory change,
and data and infermation insights and analysis.

2. The business risks associated with climate impacts identified in the review are strongly aligned to those that already sit on
the Group's risk register. The potential for climate change to significantly disrupt the Group’s operations would manifest itself
either through physical disruption to our people, customers, suppliers and their working environments or through market
disruption triggered by the transition to a low carbon economy. The risks associated with these disruptions are specifically
addressed by our existing principal risks, and therefore the Board gained comfort that the management of climate change
risks is well aligned to, and can be effectively integrated with, the existing principal risk mitigation strategies.

Details of the specific impacts considered and how these align to our existing principal risk mitigation strategies are disclosed on
pages 28 to 33.

Principal risks and uncertainties

During the year the Directors have carried out an assessment of the principal risks facing the Group — including those that would
threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or reputation. The ten key risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s
operations, along with their patential impact and the mitigations in place, are set out below. There may be other risks and
uncertainties besides those listed below which may also adversely affect the Group and its performance. More detail can be found
in the Audit Committee report on pages 4% to 50.

As part of their assessment, the Directors reviewed the principal risks in the context of their potential impact an the Group’s ability
to achieve its strategic objectives as set out on pages 4 to 6.

The Group’'s sustainability strategy defines the responsible business culture advocated by the Board that directly contributes to the
effective management of the Group's risks, helping to enhance the delivery of its broader strategic objectives. Therefore the four
pillars of the sustainability strategy have been mapped to any principal risks for which the assaciated activities contribute a valuable
element of the mitigative action, being: Cultural positivity ('CP’), Customer empowerment ('CE"), Envircnmental responsibility (ER’)
and Proactive Assurance ('PA’).

In summary, our principal risks in the context of the strategic goals and viability review are mapped over a three year period as
follows:
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KEY RISK 1:

Market and innovation

Supporting sustainability pillar(s): CE / PA

Change since 2022: Same risk

Description

The specialist markets we serve are highly
competitive; these markets experience growth,
decline, consolidation and disruption which change
customer needs and preferences.

These factors combined mean that if we do not
continually inngvate and invest in cur business we
will not deliver the organic growth required to
maintain acceptable margins and best in class
returns over the long term.

KEY RISK 2:

Lack of changes to regulations and legislation
Suppaorting sustainability pillar(s): CE / PA
Change since 2022: Same risk

Description

Wilmington's businesses ogperate in the GRC
markets. The product portfolio is therefore heavily
centred around helping customers manage the
operational complexity and increased risk caused by
wide-ranging laws, regulations and legislation.

Changes to the regulatory landscape offer
opportunities for Wimington to leverage its
knowledge and expertise to assist clients and
customers with the change.

A lack of regulatory change would reduce new
opportunities for growth and demand for existing
products and services.

KEY RISK 3:

People

Suppeorting sustainability pillar(s). CP/ ER
Change since 2022: Same risk

Description

The implementation and execution of our strategies
and business plans depend heavily on our ability ta
recruit, motivate and retain a diverse werkforce of
skilled empleyees and management — particularly

Mitigation

Product management is a key area of focus for the progression of
the Group's strategic objectives.

The Group has a dedicated New Product Development ({NPD")
framework, managed by an Investment Committee. The objectives of
the Committee are to actively encourage innovation whilst
maintaining strong governance and rigour around internal investment
and provide detailed post-investment appraisal.

Depending on the size of the initiatives, Board or Investment
Committee approval is required to ensure that the Group’s significant
projects are aligned to the overall strategy.

Within the NPD framework, we have implemented a methedology
which involves stripping back requirements to the ‘minimum viable
product’ which serves the fundamental needs of our customers and
then adopting ‘Customer Advisory Groups' ta learn what additional
features would be of value to our customers. This iterative roll-out
process ensures more effective and focussed product development
that continually responds to customer needs.

This approach has proven highly effective in the ongoing
development of our hybrid delivery madel, and in respect of product
enhancements that differentiate our offering and define our
competitive advantage.

Mitigation

We actively monitor Government regulatory bodies and relevant
cemmittees to ensure that we understand the future landscape. This
enables us to position both our existing and new products and
services to help better deliver to our clients and customers.

Local plans are updated as part of the internal strategic planning
process to enable us to respond quickly to market information and
economic trends. Continual monitoring of market conditions and
market changes against our Group strategy, supperted by the
reforecasting and reporting in all of our businesses, is key to our
ability to respond rapidly te changes in our operating environment.

The ongoing volatility of the global economy, and associated societal
impacts, indicates that continued regulatory and legisiative change is
hikely in the short {o medium term. However, the Group continues to
innovate and diversify its product portfolio by offering more value-
added products which are less dependent on changes in regulation.
A core focus of our model, and a key characteristic of our business,
is our ability to leverage our strengths to quickly adapt to changing
customer requirements, This agility has underpinned the agility of our
business model to continue 1o deliver growth during pericds of
significant uncertainty and change.

Mitigation

We advocate positive employee experience as a core pricrity for all
parts of our business, and we have a comprehensive People
strategy to support this ambition.
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senior management, subject matter experts and
those with technology and data analytics capabilities.

An inability to recruit, motivate or retain such people
could adversely affect our business performance.

Failure to recruit and develop a diverse talent base
for the Group that does not reflect the diversity of the
customers we serve could also adversely affect our
reputation and business performance.

KEY RISK 4:

Intellectual property rights infringement
Supporting sustainability pillar{s). PA
Change since 2022: Same risk

Description

Protection of our intellectual property builds
competitive advantage by strengthening barriers to
entry. Our intangible resources include data,
processes, technological know-how, branding and
our workforce.

Inlelleclual prupeity righls aire inleyial tu the
Group's success.

KEY RISK 5:

The work of our People team covers an extensive range of issues
that contribute to the development of a positive culture that is vital as
we attract, retain and develop talent.

The work of the People team, with the sponsarship of the Board and
the Executive Committee, delivers a wide range of services to
enhance employee experience, These are underpinned by dedicated
strategies that drive progress across the following key areas of
focus:

Diversity and Inclusion;

Reward and recognition;

Talent acquisition and development;
Wellbeing; and

Engagement.

The Group operates a competitive remuneration package that is
enhanced by share plans for certain senior management, and also
operates a Save As You Earn scheme for UK employees to further
align the interests of employees and shareholders.

Mitigation

We take a zero tolerance approach to any intellectual property
infringement and will take all necessary action to enforce our rights
and proactively identify infringements.

Wilmington’s policy is to litigate against any infringement of our
intellectual property rights.

Operating businesses are actively encouraged to
develop and protect the know-how in local jurisdictions.

Failure or significant interruption to IT systems causing disruption to client service

Supporting sustainability pillar(s): PA
Change since 2022: Same risk

Description

Major failures in our IT systems may result in client
service being interrupted or data being lost/corrupted
causing damage to our reputation and/or a decline in
revenue.

There is a risk that a cyber attack on our
infrastructure by a malicious individual or group
could be successful and impact critical systems used
across the Group.

Mitigation

Our IT infrastructure is supported by a UK based third-party
specialist, and is consistently reviewed and improved to ensure the
best quality experience for both our employees and our customers.
As part of the management strategy we have a shared hosting
facility for our internal systems, giving us Tier 3 and 1SO 27001 data
centres for extra security and a common disaster recovery position.

We continued to focus on recruitment, retention and training of highly
skilled internal IT and data specialists to ensure we demonstrate best
practice service management.

We continue to roll-out mandatcry cyber security training for all staff
to increase the awareness of this increasing threat. In addition, our
outsourced IT infrastructure partner proactively monitors our network
periphery for potential cyber-attacks. We also run education and
simulations of cyber-attacks for staff to further increase awareness
and reduce this risk.

Specific back-up and resilience requirements are built into our
systems and we are increasingly becoming more cloud based.

Qur critical infrastructure is set up so far as is reasonably practical to
prevent unauthorised access and reduce the likelihood and impact of
a successful attack.
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KEY RISK 6:

Technology and speed of change

Supporting sustainability pillar(s): PA

Change since 2022: Same risk

Description

Digital and technological transformation is now
moving at a fast pace across the globe, disrupting
value chains and transcending the traditional ways of
conducting business.

Digitisation continues to drive significant change in
our customers’ business models, and in their
appetite for products that align to these changes.
Although digital and technolcgical transformation
offers Wilmington opportunities for growth and value
creation, it comes with its own set of challenges and
rigsks.

The emergence of generative Al tools to create
appealing products poses a risk. The power of Al to
swiftly generate innovative offerings that some
customers find attractive poses a threat for
Wilmington.

KEY RISK 7:

Remoteness of operations and globalisation
Supporting sustainability pillar(s): PA

Change since 2022. Same risk

Description

A key operational risk emanates from the
remoteness of operations away from key
management personnel, and from the increasing
global spread of our businesses.

There is a currency risk from operating in a large
number of countries.

KEY RISK 8:

Dependency on key data sources
Supporting sustainability pillar(s): PA
Change since 2022. Same risk

Description

Wilmington generates a significant amount of
revenue from the sale of, or the licensed access to,
data. This data is often sourced from third parties
wha provide to Wilmington either exclusive or non-
exclusive licences to use the data.

There could be a significant decrease in the Group's
revenue if Wilmington were to lose these licences
completely or in the case of exclusive arrangements
if we were to lose the exclusive rights.

Business continuity and disaster recovery plans are in place and are
assessed continually to ensure that they cover the residual risks that
cannot be mitigated.

The Group also outsources the hosting of all websites improving
resilience, efficiency and scalability.

Mitigation

Our NPD process described in key risk 1 enables and encourages
product innovation throughout our business. This has improved our
rate of inngvation to deliver ‘client centric’ products.

Qur Technology and Data teams have a significant range of valuable
experience, including that gained in mature digital organisations. We
actively deliver prejects in an 'agile’ fashion using strong product
management methodologies.

The rapid digitisation of our business in response {o the Covid-19
pandemic demonstrated our ability to rapidly adapt to change in this
area. The lessons learnt in that period of rapid transformation
continue to guide aur strategies for future development and effective
mitigation of the risk that we will be challenged by rapid technological
change.

Mitigation

Control is exercised locally in accordance with the Group's policy of
autonomous management. We seek to employ high quality locat
experis.

The Executive Committee ensures that overall Group strategy is
fulfilled through ongoing review of the businesses. The creation of
centrally managed and divisional level oversight of finance,
technology and people strategies provides a central insight into local
operations and allows more central control than would be possible
with geographically distributed functions.

We manage currency risk in local operations

by matching revenue and costs in the same currency, closely
monitoring our cash position and, where applicable, taking a low risk
approach when applying treasury policy.

Mitigation

We monitor key data licence contracts across the business to ensure
that all key contracts that are close to expiring are identified as early
as possible.

We have close working relationships wrth the third parties ta these
contracts and aim to start negotiations to extend the contracts at an
early stage to give Wilmington the best possible chance of
renegotiating and extending the contracts.
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KEY RISK 9:

Major incidents

Supporting sustainability pillar{s). PA/ CP
Change since 2022: Same risk

Description

We operate internationally and are exposed to major
incidents and global events. These can be caused by
extreme weather, natural disasters, major disease
outbreak, military action, civil unrest or terrorism.

In most cases, there is relatively little businesses can
do to control causes of major incidents. Major
incidents have the potential to cause harm and injury
to people, venues and facilities and severely
interrupt business. Qur face-to-face events and
training business is particularly vulnerable to this
type of risk.

KEY RISK 10

Reputational risk

Supporting sustainability pillar(s): CP / PA

Change since 2022. Same risk

Description

Much of the Group's revenue is generated by
training clients in matters of Regulatory Compliance,
or by hosting events that debate such topics.

If the Group were to suffer a compliance breach itself
then prospective clients may call into guestion its
fitness to provide such training or host such events.
The overseas entities in the Group are exposed to
bribery and compliance breaches. Non-compliance
with the territortes legislation could cause
reputational damage to the Group.

Mitigation

The Group continues to carefully manage the proportion of its
income generated from large face-to-face events to reduce exposure
to this risk. It also continues to focus on a hybrid delivery modet for
all of its products to allow adaptation in the event of a major incident.

The Group's events function also has event-specific strategies to
mitigate the risk of disruption from major incidents, including
selecting well-connected locations with reliable infrastructure
systems and seeking flexible agreements with venues to increase
the potential to transfer or postpone events if disruption does occur.

The Covid-19 pandemic demonstrated that a major incident does
have the ability to impact multiple locations over a protracted time
period. However, continued innovation and investment across the
Group have demonstrated that the ability to operate on a 100%
digital basis provides significant mitigatiaon to this risk.

The Group assesses the value of insurance cover for cancellations
on a case by case basis, to ensure the associated cost and reliability
of cover is considered econamical.

Mitigation

The Board maintains a zero-tolerance approach to non-adherence
with laws and regulations. This is clearly communicated to
employees and is reinforced through the Company's internal
communications.

The Board receives regular updates on changes to applicable
legislation and reguiation and plans, both in the UK and overseas, in
order to adopt them across the Group.

Individual bustnesses operate under specific independent brands,
and this helps mitigate the potential fall-out across the Group if there
was an issue in any specific business.

The Group also has a policy ta retain emails for a limit of two years
to prevent loss of key data.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 170E7873-B4544EA7-B371-35DD042E9327

Strategic report — Wilmington plc 30 June 2023

Viability statement

Assessing the future prospects of the Group is integral to the Board's bustness planning process, and is also closely aligned to the
risk management process as detailed on pages 27 to 28. The planning process includes detailed financial forecasting, regular
performance analysis, robust risk management assessment, and continued monitering of industry trends and wider economic
conditions.

In the context of the challenging economic environment in which the Group operates, the Board has performed a detailed
assessment to conclude on:
« The appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2023, as disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements; and
s The long-term viability of the Group, up to September 2026

Full details of the Group's financing arrangements are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

Viability

In accordance with Provision 31 of the UK Carporate Governance Code 2018, the Directors have considered the prospects of the
Group over a longer peried than the twelve months required under the geing concern provision. The Directars have determined that
a three-year period is an appropriate term over which to provide its viability statement, being consistent with that covered by the
Group's strategic planning process which includes broader consideration of the Group's principal risks and uncertainties over the
same period. The Directors also consider the business to be sufficiently agile to respond to volatility over a longer time frame in a
way that would mitigate potential unforeseen downside.

Assessment process

The Group's viability assessment has taken account of its current position and the potential impact of the principal risks
documented on pages 28 to 33. The review has focussed on the occurrence of severe but plausible scenarios in respect of every
principal risk and considered the potential of these scenarios ta threaten viability. The financial impact of each scenaria was
quantified where appropriate, and subsequently mapped to a set of mitigative actions that would be taken to manage the risk.
Stress testing analysis was also performed, illustrating the ability of the Group to manage the impact of severe downside scenarios
on its future financial position. The severe downside scenarios considered as part of this work were as follows:

»  Aggressive recessionary impacts on revenue across the whole product portfolio
« Nil growth within businesses projected to benefit from new product development
« Extreme events disrupting the workforce, customers and suppliers

« Cancellation of flagship events and assumed non-viahility of alternatives

The outcome of this assessment indicated that the Group’'s risk management process, control systems and current risk appetite are
sufficiently robust that a comprehensive response strategy could be actioned to protect the prospects of the Group in the event of
such scenarios oceurring.

On this basis the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the viability assessment period.

Internal control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and risk management, and for reviewing the effectiveness of
these systems. These systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve husiness objectives,
and to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

In line with the Turnbull Report recommendations, the Board regularly reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal
controt. The Board's monitoring covers all controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management.
It is based principally on reviewing reports from management to consider whether significant risks are identified, evaluated,
managed and controlled.

Further details of principal risks are given on pages 28 to 33 and details of financial risks such as interest rate risk, liquidity risk and
foreign currency nsk are given in the financial statements in note 17.

The key features of the internal financial control system that operated throughout the period are as follows:

22) Financial reporting

The Board reviewed the Annual Report, together with the preliminary and interim results announcements. The Board also reviews
and approves Trading Announcements (as appropriate}.

The Board, together with the Audit Committee, constdered the appropriateness of the Group's accounting policies, critical

accounting estimates and key judgments. It reviewed detailed accounting papers prepared by management on areas of financial
reporting judgment, as outlined in the Audit Committee report on pages 49 to 50.

39



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 170E7873-B454-4EA7-B371-36DD042E8327

Strategic report — Wilmington plc 30 June 2023

The Board together with the Audit Committee considered and is satisfied that, taken as a whole, the Annual Report is fair, balanced
and understandable, and that it provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s performance, business
model and strategy.

ii) Management information systems

Effective planning, annual budgeting and monthly forecasting systems are in place, as well as a monthly review of actual results
compared with forecast, budget and the prior year. The annual budget and monthly forecasts are reviewed by the Board. Risk
assessment and evaluation takes place as an integral part of this process. Monthly reports on performance are provided to the
Board and the Group reports resuits to shareholders twice a year.

Insurance cover for the Group, as well as individual operating companies, has been procured where it is considered appropriate.

iii) Acquisitions, disposals and treasury

The Board also discusses in detail the projected financial impact of proposed acquisitions and disposals, including their financing.
All such proposed investrnents are considered by all Directors. The Board is also responsible for reviewing and approving the
Group's treasury strategy, including mitigation against changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Organisations

There are well-structured financial and administrative functions at both the Group and operating company levei, staffed by
appropriately qualified individuals. The key functions at Group level include: Group accounting, corporate development, Group
treasury, Group legal, human resources, IT and data services, company secretarial and Group taxation.

Other matters

The Group has no known issues refating to human rights or modern slavery matters. The welfare of all the Group’'s stakeholders,
including the community, ts carefully considered to ensure that such parites are not adversely affected by the Grougp's actions in the
course of its day-to-day business. Further details of the Group’s stakeholder engagement processes can be found in the Section
172 statement on pages 13 to 14,

The information forming the Strategic report on pages 1 to 40 was approved and authorised for issue by the Board and signed on
its behalf on 22 September 2023.

Gy Millward

Guy Millward
Chief Financial Officer
22 September 2023
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Board of Directors

Martin Morgan

Chair

Appointment fo the Board
May 2018

Committee membership
NR

Skills and experience

Martin Morgan has over 30 years of media and B2B experience, having spent a large proportion of his career at Daily Mail and
General Trust plc (‘DMGT'). Martin was Chief Executive of DMG Information and subsequently held the position of Chief Executive
of DMGT from 2008 to 2016. He brings a wealth of experience from subsequent directarships, including the positions of Non-
Executive Directar of Euromoney Institutional Investor plc between 2008 and 2016 and Chair of Signal Media Limited between
2017 and 2019,

Cther appointments

Martin is currently an Adviscr to MMC Ventures and a Non-Executive Directar to Morgan Hartnell Limited.

Mark Milner

Chief Executive Officer
Appointment to the Board
July 2018

Committee membership
None

Skills and experience

Mark Milner joined Wilmington from the Daily Mail and General Trust plc (DMGT’) where since 2001 he held a number of senior
roles. These included Chief Executive Officer of Landmark Information Group, its property informatien division, from 2013 to 2018.
Prior to this, Mark was Chief Executive Officer of the Digital Property Group, responsible for running its consumer-focussed
property portals, Primelocation, Findaproperty and Globrix until its merger with Zoopla in 2012. Between 2001 and 2008 Mark held
a variety of positions at Associated Northcliffe Digital Ltd, becoming Managing Director of the specialist division. Whilst there he
was involved in the launch of Mail Online, which subseguently became the world's most visited English language news site. Mark's
early career was spent in commercial and sales roles in the newspaper industry.

Guy Millward

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
Appointment to the Board

November 2020

Cormmittee membership
None

Skills and expenience

Guy Millward has extensive experience in senior finrance positions at several pubiicly listed and privately held technology
companies. His previous roles include that of CFO at Imagination Technologies Group pic, Advanced Computer Software Group
plc, Quixant ple, Metapack Limited, Bighand Limited, and Group Finance Director at Alterian plc, Morse plc and Kewill plc. Guy is a
Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Other appointments
Guy is currently a Non-Executive Directar and Chair of the Audit Committee at Eckoh plc,

Helen Sachdev

independent Non-Executive Director
Appaintment to the Board

April 2020

Committee membership
ANR

Skilis and experience

Helen brings a wealth of experience to Wilmington via her Non-Executive and Executive career. She is a founding director of the
B2B executive coaching practice, WOMBA (Work, Me and the Bahy); a Non Executive Director and Chair of Lecughborough
Building Society; and a Non Executive Director and Chair of PPL PRS Ltd. She is a former executive of Tesco and Barclays Bank
PLC (where she also sat on the UK D&I Board). She is senior executive coaching practitioner (EMCC) and a Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (FCMA).
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Other appointments

Helen is a Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Loughborough Building Society, and a Non-Executive Director and Chair of PPL
PRS Limited.

Paul Dollman

Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointment to the Board

September 2015

Committee membership
ANR

Skills and experience

Paul Dollman is a Chartered Accountant and enjoyed a successful career in finance as the Group Finance Director of John
Menzies plc. He was also a Non-Executive Director of Air Partner plc, an aviation services business, where he was the Audit
Committee Chair until April 2022. Paul is the Senior Independent Director (‘SID").

Other appointments

Paul is the Audit Committee Chair of Verastar, a private equity owned business which provides essential business services
(telecoms, water and energy and insurance) to the small business market. He is also a member of the Competition Appeals
Tribunal. He is also a Non-Executive Director for Etihad Tepco Limited.

William Macpherson

independent Non-Executive Director
Appointment to the Board

February 2021

Committee membership
ANR

Skills and experience

William Macpherson brings a wealth of experience ta Wilmingtan following a successful executive career as CEO of a number of
professional education and skills development organisations. He was CEQ of QA between 2008 and 2019 during which time the
company achieved very significant growth. Prior to that he was CEO of Kaplan International, The Financial Training Company and
Woiters Kluwer Professional Training. William is the Director responsible for worker representation at Wilmington.

Other appointments

William is a Non-Executive Directar and Chair of Learning Curve Group Limited and a Non-Executive Director of the London Film
School.

Committee key
A Audit Committee

N Nomination Committee
R Remuneration Committee
C

Committee Chair
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Corporate governance report

Demonstrating good governance

Chair's introduction

Responsibility for good governance lies with the Board. As a Board we are committed to maintaining the highest standards of
corporate governance and believe that an effective, challenging and diverse board is essential to enabling the Group to deliver its
strategy and achieve long term value for its stakeholders. Further information on our strategy and business model can be found in

the Strategic report on pages 10ta 11.

The Board is dedicated to setting the right tone at the top by promoting an inclusive culture that fosters innovation, ambition and
curiosity whilst demonstrating the highest standards of integrity. Cur robust governance structure, combined with our commitment
to responsible business practice, sits at the heart of our approach to management at all levels, facilitating sustainable growth that
delivers positive outcomes for all of the Group’s stakeholders.

By promoting a responsible business culture we continue to demand the highest professional standards from all of our people all of
the time. To reinforce that we have a comprehensive portfolio of policies accessible to all staff to support their day-to-day decision
making. We have a zero tolerance approach to breaches of the conduct standards set out in these paolicies.

Further details of the work that undempins our approach to responsible business are set out in the Sustainability report on page 15.

Compliance with the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code

The Group abides by the 2018 UK Corporate Gavernance Code published by the Financial Reporting Council (‘FRC'). The Board
has put in place provisions to ensure compliance with the Code such that it believes it is fully compliant. Martin Morgan, the
Company Chair, stood down from the Audit Committee on 23 November 2022 to facilitate full compliance with the UK Code.

Stakeholder engagement (Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006)

The Board has always considered the potential impact of the Group's activities on its various stakeholders. The key stakeholders of
the Group are set out in the Strategic report on page 13, which also includes information about how the Company engages with
them and how the Directors, supported by the wider business, shaow regard for the matters set out under Section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006, The Board believes that the Company can only be successful when the interests of these stakeholders are
considered, and reflected accordingly in the Company’s decision making processes and strategic objectives.

The Board regards it as important to maintain an active dialogue with our shareholders. Further details regarding engagement with
shareholders are set out on pages 13 to 14, The Board receives regular reports from the Executives, the Chair and the advisors on

feedback from shareholder meetings.

Composition and independence

The composition of the Beard remained consistent during the year. The Board reviews Non-Executive Director independence on an
annual basis and takes into account the individual’'s professional experience, their behaviour at Board meetings and their
contribution to unbiased and independent debate. All of the Non-Executive Directors are considered by the Board to be
independent. The Chair was considered independent on appointment.

The Board consisted of a majority of Independent Non-Executive Directors throughout the year. Biographical details of all the
current Directors are set out on pages 41 to 42.

Chair
Board: Chair, two Executive Directors and three Non-Executive Birectors
Audit Committee Nomination Committee Chief Executive Officer Remuneration Committee

Executive Committee: Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer
and Chief People Officer

Business/Divisional operating boards

Length of tenure of Directors (years)
Number of complete years of service as a Director at 1 July 2023:

Martin Morgan 5
Mark Milner 4
Guy Millward 2
Helen Sachdev 3
Paul Doliman 7
William Macpherson 2
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Balance of Directors

Chair 17%
Executive 33%
Independent Non-Executive 50%
Diversity

The Board believes that an inclusive culture will enhance diversity within our business, which in turn is a key factor driving the
Group’s success. Qur vision is for Wilmington fo be a campany with rich diversity, experiences, knowledge and perspectives, which
powers our innovation and creativity to help our customers te do the right business in the right way. During the year we continued
ta make progress against our People Strategy, delivering initiatives and making changes to the way that we waork, so that we
continue to create an inclusive workplace to support, empower, develop and fairly reward all our people. This is reflected in our
progress implementing our Diversity and Inclusion strategy and by our investments in resources to create a positive environment
for all our people to reach their full potential at Wilmington.

This is underpinned by the data we collect about our people, which enables us to understand and measure diversity and inclusion
at Wilmington; using data to guide our strategy and areas of focus. By asking our people to share their diversity data, we are
building a rich picture of the characteristics that make our people unique, and this in turn is helping us to measure progress against
our amhition to create a truly inclusive working environment. The data we have collected to better understand what makes our
people unique is set out alongside details of the progress made against our Diversity and Inclusion strategy in the Sustainability
report on pages 16 to 15.

Diversity targets

The Board acknowledges the board diversity targets per listing rules LR 9.8.6R(9) and LR 14.3.33R(1). The Board has published
gender identity and ethnic diversity of the Directors and senior leadership team below. The comply or explain specific board
diversity targets have not been met as at 30 June 2023 because there has been no change in the composition of the Board during
the year. The Board recognises the impartance of ensuring that there is diversity of perspective, background, and approach in its
management team and on its Board and will take the diversity targets info consideration for future Board appointments. [t is the
Board's aspiration that it will meet the board diversity targets by FY25.

Senior Leadership composition

The table below outlines the gender identity and ethnicity as disclosed voluntarily by the Directars and the Senior Leadership
Team, including the Executive Committee. Data is collected via a survey for gender and ethnicity. The diversity characteristics of
the wider workforce and further information about the work we are doing to increase diversity at all levels across the Group are
disclosed in the Sustainability report on pages 16 and 19.

Gender Directors Senior Leadership Team
Male Female Non-binary Preferto Prefernot Male Female Non-binary Preferto Prefer not
self-describe to say self-describe to say
2023 83% 17% 0% % 0% 45% 56% 0% 0% 0%
2022 83% 17% 0% 0% 0% 64% 36% 0% 0% 0%
Ethnicity Directors
White Asian/ Black/African/ Mixed/ Other ethnic group, Other Prefer not
Asian British Caribbean/Black British Multiple Ethnic groups including Arab to say
2023 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
2022 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Ethnicity Senior Leadership Team
White Asian/ Black/African/ Mixed/ Other ethnic group, Other! Prefer not
Asian British Caribbean/Black British Multiple Ethnic groups  including Arah to say
2023 83% 8% 0% % 0% 8% 0%
2022 79% 7% 0% 0% 0% 14% 0%

' Cther includes individuals based in territonies where we were unable to collect data due to relevant local legislative factors.
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The Directors
As at the date of this report the Directors of the Company are:

Chair
Martin Morgan

Executive Directors

Mark Milner
Guy Millward

Independent Non-Executive
Paul Doliman {Senior Independent Director)

Helen Sachdev
Wiilliam Macpherson

Leadership

Executive and Non-Executive Directors

The Company is controlied through the Board of Directors which, at 30 June 2023, comprised a Chair, two Executives and three
Non-Executive Directors. Short biographies of each Director are set out on pages 41 to 42. The Board focusses on the formulation
of strategy, governance and the establishment of policies, stewardship of resources and review of business performance.

The Board may exercise all the powers of the Company, subject to the Company’s articles of association (the ‘Articles’), the
Companies Act 2006 and any directions given by the shareholders by speciat resolution. The Artictes may be amended by a special
resolution of the Company’'s shareholders.

The Board meets as often as necessary to discharge its duties effectively. In the financial year ended 30 June 2023, eight main
Board meetings were scheduled and the Directors’ attendance record is set out on page 46.

The Board has three formally constituted Committees, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, each of which operates with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the three Committees are available
on the Company's website, www.wilmingtonplc.com. The Audit Committee met three times during the year, the Nomination
Committee met once, and the Remuneration Committee met three times.

There is an Executive Committee that is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company’s business within a
framewaork of delegated responsibilities. It is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer and includes the Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Operating Officer and Chief People Officer.

Chair and Chief Executive Officer
The roles of the Chair and the Chiel Executive Officer are held by separate individuals and the Board has clearly defined their
responsibilities.

The Chair is primarily responsible for the effective working of the Board, ensuring that each Director, including the Non-Executive
Directors, is able to make an effective contribution and provide constructive comments on the business. The Chief Executive Officer
has responsibility for all aperational matters which includes the implementation of Group strategy and poiicies approved by the
Board.

Non-Executive Directors

All the Non-Executive Directors are independent of the Company’s executive management and free from any business or other
relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgment. The Chair was considered independent
on appointment, The Non-Executive Directors are responsible for bringing independent and objective judgment and scrutiny of all
matters before the Board and its Committees, using their substantial and wide-ranging experience.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection at the Company’s registered office
during normal business hours and at the Annual General Meeting.

Senior Independent Director
Paul Dollman is the Senior Independent Director {'SID'}. His role as SID includes:

+ being available ta shareholders if they have concerns which contact through the Chair, Chief Executive Officer or Chief
Financial Officer has failed to resolve (there were no requests from shareholders to meet the SID during the year), and

» meeting with the other Non-Executive Directors on the Board once a year to assess the Chair's performance, taking into
account the views of the Executive Directors.

Company Secretary

Guy Millward is the Company Secretary in addition to his role as an Executive Director. In his role as Company Secretary, he
supports the Board in its operation and ensures that board processes are followed and good corporate governance standards are
maintained. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. The Board recognises the potential
conflict in combining the roles of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary, but believes it is appropnate for a group of
Wilmington's size given the cother support available to the Directors.

Effectiveness
Meetings

The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to it for decision which it reviews periodically. This schedule
includes approval of acquisitions, disposals and items of major capital expenditure. The Board also reviews the Group's risk
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register, wider risk assessment and viability review. At each Board meeting the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
provide a review of the business and its performance, together with strategic issues arising. The Non-Executive Directors may meet
separately from the Executive Diractors usually either before or after Board meetings, to discuss relevant matters. In the year the
range of subjects discussed by the Board included:

+ the Group’s financial results and key business;

= progress on the angoing strategic reviews;

+ the Group's debt and capital structure including the arrangements for sufficient debt facilities;
+ dividend policy;

» regulatory and governance issues;

+ the development of the Group’s people including a quartery talent review;

+ the Group's risk register and its response to TCFD recommendations; and

+ insurance policy and cover,

In addition to the eight main meetings described above, the Board has two strategy meetings each year at which the Group's
strategic direction, viability plan and significant projects are discussed.

Where additional meetings are required between main Board meetings and a full complement of Directors cannot be achieved, a
Committee of Directors considers the necessary formalities.

Aftendance table

Main Board

Main Board meetings eligible

meetings attended to attend

Martin Morgan (Chair) 10 10
Mark Milner (Chief Executive Officer) 10 10
Guy Millward (Chief Financial Officer) 10 10
Paul Dollman (Non-Executive) 10 10
Helen Sachdev (Non-Executive) 10 10
William Macpherson (Non-Executive) 10 10

information flow

The Chair, together with the Company Secretary, ensures that the Directors receive clear information on all relevant matters in a
timefy manner. Board papers are circulated sufficiently in advance of meetings for thern to be thoroughly digested ta ensure clarity
of informed debate. The Board papers contain the Chief Executive Officer's and the Chief Financial Officer's written reparts, high
level papers on each business area, key metrics and specific papers relating to agenda items. The Board papers are accompanied
by a management information pack containing detailed financial and other supporting information. The Board receives updates
throughout the year and occasional ad hoc papers on matters of particular relevance or importance.

Time commitment

The Board is satisfied that the Chair and each of the Nan-Executive Directors committed sufficient time during the year to enable
them to fulfil their duties as Directors of the Company. None of the Non-Executive Directors have any conflicts of interest.

Induction and professional development
The Chair is responsible for ensuring that induction and training are provided to each Director and far organising the induction
process and regular updating and training of Board members.

Training and updates in relation to the business of the Group and the legal and regulatory responsibilities of Directors were
provided throughout the year by a variety of means including presentations by executives, visits to business operations, external
presentations and circulation of briefing material. Individual Directors are also expected to take responsibility for identifying their
training needs and ensuring they are adequately informed about the Group and their responsibilittes as a Director. The Board is
confident that all its members have the knowledge, ability and experience to perform the functions required of a Director of a listed
company.

Access to independent advice

Any Director who considers it necessary or appropriate may take independent. professional advice at the Company's expense.
None of the Directors sought such advice in the year,

Board evaluation and performance review

Towards the end of the financial year, the Board conducted an internal annual evaluation of its own performance, of each of its sub-
committees and of each individual Director. The Board considered the need for external facilitation of this process but decided it
was unnecessary at this stage in its development.

The Board evaluation was led by the Chair. He conducted one-to-one interviews with each of the Directors, and then reported to
the Nomination Committee where his findings were considered. The review concluded that the Board, its sub-committees and each
of the Directors continued to be effective. The Board recogrises D&l benchmarks and noted that its diversity did not fully reflect the
position across the Group and resclved to consider this when making new appointments,
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee and the Board seek to maintain an appropriate balance between the Executive and Non-Executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee Chair is William Macpherson. The Committee has full respansibility for reviewing the Board
structure and for interviewing and nominating candidates to serve on the Board as well as reviewing senior executive development.
Suitable candidates, once nominated, meet with the Chair and the Chief Executive Officer. The candidates are then put forward for
consideration and appointment by the Board as a wheole. The Committee has access to external professional advice at the
Company's expense as and when required.

The main roles and responsibilities of the Nomination Cammittee are set qut in written terms of reference which are availabie on the
Company's website, www.wilmingtonplc.com/investors/corporate-governance/roles-board. Details of the Nomination Committee's
activities can be found in the Nomination Committee report on page 51.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is composed of all the Non-Executive Directors excluding the Company Chair. Martin Morgan, the Company
Chair, stood down from the Audit Committee on 23 November 2022 to facilitate full compliance with the UK Code. The Audit
Committee Chair is Paul Dollman. The Board considers that Paul has the necessary recent and relevant experience to fulfil the
role.

The main roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are set out in written terms of reference which are available on the
Company’s website, www.wilmingtonplc.com/investors/corporate-govemance/rales-board. Details of the Audit Committee’s policies
and activities can be found in the Audit Committee report on pages 49 and 50.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Helen Sachdev and consists of all the Non-Executive Directors including the Chair. Itis
responsible for recommending to the Board the framewoerk and poficy for Executive Directors’ remuneration and for setting the
remuneration of the Chair, Executive Directors and senior management. Given the small size of the Board, the Committee
recognises the potential for conflicts of interest, and has taken appropriate measures to minimise the risk. The Committee meets at
least twice a year, and takes advice from the Chief Executive Officer and external advisors as appropriate. In carrying cut its work,
the Board itself determines the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors. The Committee has the power to seek external
advice, and to appoint consultants as and when required in respect of the remuneration of Executive Directors.

The main roles and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are set out in written terms of reference which are available on
the Company’s website, www.wilmingtenplc.com/finvestors/corporate-governancefroles-board. Further details of the Group's
policies on remuneration and service contracts can be found in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 52 to 64.

Risk management and internal controls

The Board maintains an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the Group. In line with
the recommendations of TCFD, Board level oversight of climate-related risks and opportunities sits with the Senior Independent
Director and the Chief Financial Officer. Further details on the key features of the risk management and internal controls can be
found in the section on risks and uncertainties facing the business on pages 27 to 33.

Relations with shareholders

Dialogue with institutional shareholders

The Directors seek to build on a mutual understanding of objectives between the Company and its institutional shareholders by
means of a programme of meetings with major shareholders, fund managers and analysts each year. The Company also makes
presentations to analysts and fund managers following publication of its half year and full year results. Copies of the presentations
are available on the Company's website, www.wilmingtonplc.com/investors/reports-and-presentations. The Board reguiarly
receives updates on investor relations matters.

The Chair is available on request to attend meetings with major shareholders. Since his appointment on 1 May 2018, the Chair
attended a number of such meetings. As referred to earlier, the SID is available to shareholders if they have concerns which other
contacts have failed to resolve.

The Group's website includes a specific and comprehensive investor relations section containing all RNS announcements, share
price information, annual documents available for download and similar materials.

Constructive use of the Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 22 November 2023 and a separate notice convening the meeting is being sent out with
this Annual Report and financial statements. Details of resolutions to be proposed and an explanation of the items of special
business can be found in the circular that accompanies the notice convening the meeting. Separate votes are held for each

proposed resolution.

All Directors attend the Annual General Meeting, at which they have the opportunity to meet with shareholders. After the formal
business has been concluded, the Chair welcomes gquestions from shareholders.
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Substantial shareholdings
As at 7 September 2023, the Company is aware of the following interests amounting to 3.0% or more in the Company's issued
ordinary share capitat:

Number of

ardinary shares Yo
Aberforth Partners 20,402,710 23.14%
Gresham House Asset Management 4,181,451 4.74%,
Chelverton Asset Management 3,845,000 4.36%
NFU Mutual 3,814,859 4.33%
Individuals 3,701,092 4.20%
Artemis Investment Management 3,409,476 3.87%
Herald Investment Management 3,214,632 3.65%
Columbia Threadneedle Investments 3,208,767 3.64%
BlackRock 3,167,135 3.59%
Odyssean Investment Trust 3,000,000 3.40%

Board leadership and Company purpose

The Board is responsible for setting and delivering the Group's strategy and monitoring how it is performing against the agreed
strategy for the benefit of all its stakeholders. The Board is also responsible for defining, monitoring and overseeing the Group's
culture and ensuring it is aligned to the purpose and strategy.

Division of responsibilities
The Board has clear written guidelines on the division of responsibilities between the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Board and
Committees

Composition, succession and evaluation

The Board has delegated responsibility to the Nomination Committee to keep under regular review the composition of the Board
and its Committees. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for succession planning and the Group's policy on diversity and
inclusion

Audit, risk and internal control
The Board has delegated responsibility to the Audit Committee to oversee the Group’s financial framework, financial controls and
internal controls, and that policies and procedures are in place to manage risks appropriately.

Remuneration

The Remuneration Commitiee is responsible on behalf of the Board for determining and monitoring the strategy and palicy on
remuneration, termination, perfermance-related pay, pension arrangements, share incentive plans to support the Group's strategy,
and remuneration reperting and disclosure.

By order of the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Martin Morgan
Chair
22 September 2023
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Audit Committee report

Supporting integrity and compliance
The Committee held three meetings in the year ended 30 June 2023 and members’ attendance at meetings is set out below:

Committee meetings
attended  Committee meetings eligible to attend

Paul Dollman (Chair} 3 3
Martin Morgan (stood down 23/11/2022) 1 1
Helen Sachdev 3 3
William Macpherson 3 3

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present this year's Audit Committee report. The Committee supports the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities in
respect of monitoring the integrity of the Group’s reporiing process and adherence to the Group’s accounting policies and
procedures, as well as ensuring that risks are carefully identified and assessed and that sound systems of risk management and
internal control are implemented.

Committee membership and meetings

The Audit Committee (the ‘Committee’) was in place throughout the financial year and is chaired by Paul Dollman. The Board
considers that Paul has the appropriate financial expertise, as required by Principle C3.1 of the UK Corporate Governance Code
(the 'UK Caode’), as he is a Chartered Accountant, has held executive roles in financial positions in other companies, including being
Group Finance Director of a FTSE 250 company, and chairs another company’s audit commitiee.

The UK Code states that the Company Chair should not be a member of the Audit Committee. Martin Morgan, the Company Charr,
stood down from the Audit Committee on 23 November 2022 to facilitate full compliance with the UK Code.

The Committee meets at least twice during the year and as and when required. Representatives of the extemnal auditor attend each
meeting along with the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the Deputy Chief Financial Officer, unless there is a
conflict of interest. Other relevant people from the business are also invited to attend certain meetings or parts of meetings to
provide a deeper level of insight into certain key issues and develcpments. Once a year, the Committee meets separately with the
external auditor and with management without the other being present.

Key activities
The key activities of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Financial reporting
«  Monttoring the integnty of the annual and interim financial statements, the accompanying reports to sharehalders and corporate
governance statements including any significant financial reporting judgments contained in them.

* Reporting to the Board the Company's assessment of any new or amended accounting standards.

*  Providing advice to the Board on whether the Annual Report and financial statements, when taken as a whole, is fair, balanced
and understandable and provides all the necessary information for shareholders to assess the Company’s performance,
business model and strategy.

Risk management and internal controls

« In conjunction with the Board reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk management
systems, including reviewing the process for identifying, assessing and reporting all key risks. See the risks and uncertainties
facing the business on pages 27 to 33.

*  To oversee the Group's whistleblowing provisions, Modern Slavery and ABC policies to ensure that they are operating
effectively.

External audit
= To make recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment and removal of the external auditor and to approve their
remuneration and terms of engagement.

+ To review and monitor the external auditor independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, taking tnto
consideration relevant UK professional and regulatory requirements.

« To develop and impiement policy on the engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services, taking into account
relevant ethical guidance regarding the provision of non-audit services by the external audit firm, and to report to the Board,
identifying any matters in respect of which it considers that action or improvement is needed and making recommendations as
to the steps to be taken.

Internal audit
«  To annually assess the internal audit requirements of the Company.

- To monitor and review the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function.

Activities of the Committee in relation to the year ended 30 June 2023
+ Assessed and reported to the Board on whether the Annual Repart and financial statements are fair, balanced and

understandable.
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+ Reviewed and discussed with the external auditor the key accounting considerations and judgments reflected in the Group's
results for the six month period ended 31 December 2022.

= Reviewed and agreed the external auditors audit plan in advance of their audit for the year ended 30 June 2023,

« Discussed the report received from the external auditor regarding their audit in respect of the year ended 30 June 2023 which
included comments on their findings on internal control and a statement on their independence and objectivity.

+ Considered key accounting matters and new accounting standards and amendments, including TCFD disclosures, with
particular focus on the significant areas below.

* Reviewed the Group's whistleblowing policy, ensuring that it met FCA rules and good standards of corporate governance.
» Reviewed internal audit reports.
+ Reviewed, together with the Board, the risk assessment and going concern and viability review.

Key discussions in the year
The significant areas considered by the Committee and discussed with the external auditor during the year were:

Key financial and IT controls

The Committee reviewed the adequacy and appropriateness of the Group's system of controls and its effectiveness with relevant
input from the Group’s external auditor. The Committee has continued to monitor the Group's emerging risks in relation to
technology and the suitability of its technology controls in response to this.

Goodwill and intangible asset impairment

The Committee received reports from management on the carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets. The Committee
reviewed management's recommendations, which were alse considered by the external auditor, including evaluation of the
appropriateness of the assumptions applied in determining asset carrying values and the appropriateness of the identification of
cash generating units. After review, the Committee was satisfied with the assumptions and judgments applied by management and
concluded that the carrying values were appropriate and no impairments were required.

Revenue recognition
The Committee considered the inherent risk of fraud in revenue recognition as defined by auditing standards and was satisfied that
there were no issues arising.

External audit

This year Grant Thornton UK LLP completed their fourth year as the Group’s external auditor. Sergio Cardoso completed his fourth
year as the external audit partner. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the independence and objectivity of the
external auditor and ensuring this is safeguarded notwithstanding any provision of any other services tc the Group.

The Committee recagnises the importance of safequarding auditor objectivity and has taken the following steps to ensure that
auditor independence is not compromised.

External auditor effectiveness

The Audit Committee carries out each year a full evaluation of the external auditor as to its complete independence from the Group
and relevant officers of the Group in all material respects and that it is adequately resourced and technically capable to deliver an
objective audit to shareholders. Based on this review the Audit Committee recommends to the Board each year the continuation, or
removal and replacement, of the external auditor.

The external auditor's, Grant Thornton UK LLP, report to the Directors and the Audit Committee confirming their independence in
accordance with Auditing Standards. In addition to the steps taken by the Board to safeguard auditor abjectivity, the Audit Practices
Board Ethical Standard 3 requires audit partner rotation every five years for listed companies.

Non-audit services

The Committee considers that certain non-audit services should be provided by the external auditor, because its existing
knowledge of the business makes this the most efficient and effective way for non-audit services to be carried out. The Audit
Committee gives careful consideration before appointing the auditor to provide other services. The Group regulary uses other
providers to ensure that independence and full value for money are achieved. Other services are generally limited to work that is
closely related to the annual audit or where the work is of such a nature that a detailed understanding of the business is necessary.

In the year the external auditor performed non-audit services tatalling £17k which represents 4% of the audit fee of £380k. These
services were in relation to the interim review. The Audit Committee approved the appointment of Grant Thornton on the basis that
it was best placed to provide the services and there was no conflict of interest with its role as external auditor.

internal audit

The Group operates a limited internal audit process which performs relevant reviews as part of a programme approved by the Audit
Committee. The Committee considers any issues or risks arising from internal audit in order that appropriate actions can be
undertaken for their satisfactory resclution.

Approved on behalf of the Audit Committee by:

Paul Dollman
Chair of the Audit Committee
22 September 2023
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Nomination Committee report

Maintaining a strong Board
The Committee met once during the year to 30 June 2023 and members’ attendance at meetings is set out below:

Committee Committee
meetings meetings
attendeg eligible to attend

William Macpherson {Chair) 1 1
Paul Doliman 1 1
Helen Sachdev 1 1
Martin Morgan 1 1

Dear Shareholder
| am pleased to present the Nomination Committee report for the year ended 30 June 2023.

Committee membership and meetings
The Nomination Committee ({the ‘Committee’) is comprised of the Company Chair and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Key responsibilities
The key responsibilities of the Committee are to:

- review the size, balance and constitution of the Board including the diversity and balance of skills, knowledge and experience of
the Non-Executive Directors;

= consider succession planning for Directors and other senior executives;
- identify and nominate for the approval of the Board candidates to fifl Board vacancies;
= review annually the time commitment required of Non-Executive Directors; and

+ make recommendations for the Board, in consultation with the respective Committee Chair regarding membership of the Audit
and Remuneration Committees.

Main activities of the Committee during the year and subsequent to the year end
The key matters considered at these meetings were:

i) Board composition

The Committee reviewed the composition of the Board including the range of skills, level of experience and balance between
Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The Committee also reviewed the membership of the various Board Committees. The
Committee concluded that the current membership of the Board and the Board Committees was appropriate for the needs of the

business.

ii) Board evaluation

Details of the Board and sub-committee evaluation process undertaken in this year are included in the Govermnance review on
pages 43 to 48. As part of that process the Non-Executive Directors met without the Company Chair present to evaluate his
parformance. The review of the Company Chair's effectiveness was led by the SID. The review concluded that the Company Chair
had been highly effective in his role.

iif) Succession planning
The Committee kept under review the succession plans for both the Executive and Non-Executive Directors and the level of senior
management immediately below Board level.

iv) Other senior management representation

The Committee maintained oversight over various senior management changes that cccurred across the Group over the year.
Regular updates were received from the executives on the progress of the searches and the pians for dealing with reperting line
changes that resulted from certain of the departures.

v) Worker representation
William Macpherson is the Directar responsible for worker representation.

Approved on behalf of the Nomination Committee by:

William Macpherson
Chair of the Nomination Committee
22 September 2023
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Directors’ remuneration report

Remuneration Committee Chair’'s Annual Statement

Dear Shareholder

Cn behalf of the Committee | am pleased to share our Directors’ Remuneration report for the year to 30 June 2023.

Qur Directors’ Remuneration report, which is subject to an advisory shareholder vote at the 2023 AGM, explains the work of the
Committee, how we have implemented our Remuneration Policy (the ‘Policy’} for the year to 30 June 2023 and how we intend to
apply it for the 2024 financial year.

Far ease of reference, a summary of the key elements of the Policy is included on pages 54 to 55. The full Palicy as approved at
the 2021 AGM with 98% of all votes cast in favour is included in the Directors’ Remuneration report for the year ended 30 June
2021, which is available on the Company's website at www wilmingtonplc.com/reparts-and-presentations.

In line with the usual timetable, we will review the Policy during the course of the current financial year to ensure that it continues to
support delivery of the business’ strategy in advance of seeking shareholder approval for a new Policy at the 2024 AGM. We wili
engage with shareholders as appropriate in relation to the new Policy during the course of the year.

2023 remuneration in the context of our business performance and outcomes for our key stakeholders

Our aim i to always consider the wider workforce, our shareholders and other stakeholders by taking a fair, prudent and balanced
approach to remuneration, in ling with the Board's wider stakeholder engagement strategy as disclosed in the Section 172
statement on pages 13 to 14.

As detailed in our Strategic report, we continue to deliver our strategy and our progress is reflected by the strong resulis we have
reported. The resilience of the business in response to challenging times demonstrates the Group's ability to adapt to change and
continue to deliver exceptional customer service under the guidance of the strong executive team. The Group's success also
reflects the ongoing motivation of our employees who continue to deliver to the highest standards in all areas of activity.

Wider workforce

We continue to engage regularly with our workforce on the issues that matter to them, particularly diversity, wellbeing and
development as well as reward and recognition. Qur employee engagement survey and performance review process offer the
opportunity to understand how employees feel about their own reward.

The Board embarked on a programme of work to meaningfully engage with our workforce, led by William Macpherson. As part of
this exercise, William Macphersan and Helen Sachdev attended a workshop led by Wilmington plc CPO on the topic of Reward.
The purpose of the session was to engage with the workforce on the Wilmingten plc wide Reward strategy and in particular the
alignment of executive remuneration and that of the wider workforce. Key to this are the strategic pillars of, paying fairly against
market, paying for performance, having clarity around the reasons for pay decisions and equipping the business to do apply these
principles to reward decisions. The session was attended by 12 employees chesen at random. The session was informative and
reinforced that the principles of executive remuneration are consistent with those of the wider workforce.

Annual bonus and PSP awards vesting in respect of the performance period to 30 June 2023

The Committee has reviewed performance against each of the previously approved measures to determine the bonus outturn and
PSP vesting in respect of the period ended 30 June 2023. Based on strong delivery against performance measures in the year, the
Committee approved a bonus outturn equal to 74% of salary for the Executive Directors.

The Committee also reviewed the outturn of the performance metrics applied to the PSP award granted to Mark Milner in
September 2020 and Guy Millward in February 2021. The performance over the three-year penod to 30 June 2023 was considered
and the Committee approved an outturn of 100% in respect of these awards.

The Committee reviewed the formulaic cutturm of both the bonus and the PSP award, and after careful consideration concluded
that these outturns were appropriate and reflected the performance of the Group in the perieds to which they relate. Details of the
performance measures and achievements against them in respect of the bonus and PSP awards are set out on pages 60 to 61
respectively.

Implementation of our Policy for the year ending 30 June 2024

Base salary and fees

Each of Mark Milner and Guy Millward's has been awarded a salary increase of 5% (to £417,000 in the case of Mark Milner and to
£294.000 in the case of Guy Millward) with effect from 1 July 2023. Reflecting our intended approach disclosed in last year's report,

these increases are in line with the average increase for the wider workfarce in the UK and take inte account the ongoing strong
performance of the Group and the Executive Directors in their roles.
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Pension

As disclosed in previous Directors’ Remuneration reports, Mark Milner agreed to a reduction in his pension / cash in lieu of pension
which has therefore been aligned with the wider workforce in the UK at 5% of salary with effect fram 1 January 2023. Guy Millward
already received a pension / cash in lieu of pensian of 5% of salary. This level of pension provision will apply for each Executive
Director for the year ending 30 June 2024,

Annual bonus

Each of the Executive Directors are eligible to earn a bonus of up to 125% of salary. Vesting is based on adjusted PBT (42.5% of
the opportunity), organic revenue growth {42.5% of the opportunity) and key strategic measures {15% of the opportunity). Details of
the performance measures and achievements against them will be set out in next year’'s Directors’ Remuneration report. 20% of the
bonus eamed will be deferred into shares for two years in line with the Policy.

PSP
The maximum PSP opportunity under our Policy is equal to 150% of salary. Awards in respect of the year to 30 June 2024 wiil be
granted at a level of 125% of salary for Mark Milner and 100% of salary for Guy Millward.

Vesting will be subject to performance measures based on adjusted EPS and organic revenue growth with targets being finalised in
the next few weeks. Vesting will also be subject to an underpin such that average ROCE over the performance period must be at
least 10%, and any awards that vest will be subject to a two-year post-vesting holding period in line with the Policy.

Chair fees and Non-Executive fees

Chair fees and non-executive fees have been increased with effect from 1 July 2023 by 5% in line with general workforce
increases. The Chair's base fee was increased from £140,000 to £147,000 and the NED base fee to £54,023. No additional fee is
paid for chairing board committees, but an additional £3,000 is payable with effect from 1 July 2023 to Paul Dollman to reflect the
additional time and responsibilities associated with his holding the position of SID.

Attendance

The Committee held three meetings in the year ended 30 June 2023 and members' attendance at meetings is set out below:

Committee

Committee meetings

meetings eligible to

attended attend

Helen Sachdev {Chair) 3 3
Martin Morgan 3 3
Paul Dollman 3 3
Wilhiam Macpherson 3 3

Conclusion

We remain committed to a responsible approach to executive remuneration, as | trust this Directors’ Remuneration report
demonstrates. We believe that the Policy operated as intended in respect of the year to 30 June 2023 and consider that the
remuneration received by the Executive Directors was appropriate, taking account of the Group’s performance during the year, their
personal performance and the experience of shareholiders and employees.

I look forward to receiving your support at our 2023 Annual General Meeting, where | will be pleased to answer any questions you
may have on this report or in relation to any of the Committee’s activities.

Helen Sachdev
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
22 September 2023
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Directors’ remuneration policy

The Remuneration Policy was approved by shareholders at the 2021 AGM on 3 November 2021, and became effective from this
date. The full Remuneration Policy as approved by shareholders is available in the 2021 Annual Report, found on our website at

www.wilmingtonplc.com/reports-and-presentatians.

We have set out @ summary below of those parts of the Remuneration Policy which we cansider shareholders will find most useful
in the context of the Directors’ reward for the year ended 30 June 2024,

When determining the Policy, the Committee considered clarity, simplicity, risk, predictability, propartionality and alignment to
culture as set out in the Corporate Governance Code. Further details are set out in the 2021 Directors’ Remuneration report.

Element Financial year 2023/24 operation and opportunity summary
Base salary The Committee has reviewed base salary taking into account:
« performance of the Group and pay conditions elsewhere in the workforce;
+« performance of the individual,
= changes in position or responsibility; and
+  market competitiveness.
The Committee considered all of these factors in concluding that Mark Milner's base salary will
increase by 5% and Guy Millward’s base salary will increase by 5%, effective 1 July 2023.
Pension The Committee has the discretion to pay cash supplements in lieu of some or all pension
contributions in appropriate circumstances.
Mark Milner's pension contribution reduced from 10% to 5% aof salary effective 1 January 2023
to align to the level available to the wider workforce. There will be no change to Guy Millward'’s
pensions contribution which already aligns to that available to the wider workforce.
Benefits Executive Directors receive benefits in line with market practice.
The Directors will continue to receive a car allowance, private medical insurance and income
protection benefit,
Bonus The maximum bonus is 125% of base salary.

The majerity of the bonus opportunity will be determined by financial measures, with stretching
targets set each year refiecting the business priorties which underpin Group strategy and align
to key performance indicators.

The measures set for 2023/24 and their relative weighting are:

s Adjusted PBT - 42.5%
* Organic revenue growth - 42.5%
«  ESG and strategic measures - 15%

Vesting of the maximum oppartunity will apply on a sliding scale up to 100% of maximum
potential for each element of the bonus based on the satisfaction of performance conditions,
with no more than 50% of the potential earned for achieving a target level of performance.

Performance share plan
(‘PSP*)

Awards in respect of the Company’s 2023/24 financial year will be at a level not exceeding
125% of base salary.

Awards under the PSP will be based on financial metrics with respect to at least 80% of the
award, and metrics chosen will be those which the Committee considers to be the most
appropriate measures of longer-term performance. Metrics chosen in respect of the 2023/24
award are:

Earnings per share — 65%
Compound annual organic revenue growth — 35%
The threshold pay-out level under the PSP is 25% of the maximum award

There will usually be straight line vesting between threshold and maximum performance.
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The level of vesting in respect of any metric is subject to the Committee’s discretion to override
formulaic outturns.

Shareholding guidelines
In-service

To further align the interests of Executive Directors with those of shareholders, we have adopted formal shareholding guidelines, in
accordance with which Executive Directors must retain 50% of the after tax shares they acquire on the vesting of PSP and DBP
awards until such time as a total personal shareholding equal to 200% of base salary has been achieved. Shares which are subject
to the two year holding period under the PSP or which are subject to a DBP award will count towards the requirement, on a net of
assumed tax basis where relevant.

Post-employment

The Committee has adopted a post-employment shareholding requirement. Shares are subject to this requirement only if they are
acquired from PSP and DBP awards granted after 1 July 2021. Following employment, an Executive Director must retain:

« for the first year after employment, such of their shares which are subject to the post-employment requirement as have a value
for these purposes equal to 100% of salary; and

« for the second year after employment, such of those shares as have a value for these purpases equal to 50% of salary,

* orin either case and if fewer, all of those shares.
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lllustration of the application of the Remuneration Policy
The following charts set out for each of the Executive Directors an illustration of the application for the financial year 2023/24 of the
Remuneration Policy set out above. The charts show the split of remuneration between fixed pay and variable pay in the Policy for:
- minimum remuneration receivable — salary, fees, taxable benefits and pension;
- the remuneration receivable if the Director was, in respect of any performance measures or {argets, performing in line with
the Company’s expectation;
- maximum remuneration receivable (not allowing for any share price appreciation); and
- maximum remuneration receivable assuming a 50% increase in the Company’s share price for the purposes of the PSP

element.
‘ Mark Milner
‘ 2,000 - £1,770k i
v 1,800 A !
; £1,508k .
i 1,600 A :
“
L& 1,400 +
)
L3 1,200 4
P g £901k
S 1,000
I £ 800
B
E 800 -+
LR 400
‘ 200
‘ 0
i T T |
‘ Mirimum Performance in hine Maximum Maximum i
performance with expeclations performance performance pius ‘
share price
; appreciation
| W Fixed pay ® Bonus # PSP
L -
| Guy Millward
|
P 1400 4
— £1,147k
1,200 A
§ £1,000k
P
| = 1.000
| &
@ 800
T
5
E 600
L
B 400 A
=
200
0
Minmum Parformance in line NMaximum Maximum
performance with expectations performance performance plus
share price

appreciation

& Fixed pay % Bonus = PSP

The Committee believes an appropriate proportion of the Executive Directors’ remuneration links reward to corporate and individual
performance and is aligned te the Group's strategic priarities.
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In illustrating the potential reward, the following assumptions have been made:

Basic
performance

In line with
expectations

Maximum
performance

Maximum performance plus share price
appreciation

Based on salary effective as at 1 July 2023, £417,000 for Mark Milner and £294,000 for Guy Millward. A

of salary).

Fixed pa
pay pension contribution of 5% of salary for both and benefits earned for the year ended 30 June 2023,
50% of the maximum |
Bonus Ne bonus. bonus is earned (i.e. 125% of salary. 125% of salary.
62.5% of salary).
— p
In the case of Mark In the case of Mark Itmlher. 125 /F of salary
. Milner: 125% of salary plus an assumed 50% increase in the
psp No PSP 33% of the PSP . - share price.
. awards vest (i.e.33%
vesting. In the case of Guy In the case of Guy Millward: 100% of

Millward: 100% of
salary.

salary plus an assumed 50% increase in
the share price.

Non-Executive Directors

Purpose and Operation Opportunity Performance
link to strategy metrics
Non- Fees are setat a | Fees are reviewed periodically and amended to Fees are based Not
Executive | level that reflects | reflect any change in responsibilities and time an the time applicable.
Director market conditions | commitments. Where appropriate external advice is commitment and
fees and and is sufficient to | taken on setting market competitive fees. responsibilities of
provision aﬁract II"IdIV|C.an|S The Non-Executive Directors do not participate in the role.
of with appropnriate , . . .
any of the Group's share incentive plans nor do they | Fees are subject
relevant knowfedge and . ) I
R . receive any benefits or pension contributions. to an overall cap
benefits experience.

Non-Executive Directors may be eligible to receive
benefits such as the use of secretarial support, travel
costs ar other benefits that may be appropriate.

as set qut in the
Company's
articles of
association.

Service Contracts and letters of appointment
Details of the Executive Directors’ service contracts and Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment are set out on below.
Contract commencement date

Executive Directors

Notice period

Mark Milner
Guy Millward

July 2019
November 2020

12 months
12 months

Non-Executive Directors

Date of initial appointment

Notice period

Expiry of current term

Martin Morgan May 2018 6 months 23 November 2025
Paui Dollman September 2015 3 months 16 September 2025
Helen Sachdev April 2020 3 months 23 November 2025
Whlliam Macpherson February 2021 3 months 23 Novemnber 2025
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Aanual Report on remuneration
Certain details set out on pages 58 to 62 of this report have been audited by Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Introduction (unaudited information)
The following section provides details of the remuneration earned by the Directors in respect of the year in line with the Directors’
Remuneration Policy approved by sharehaolders at the 2021 Annual General Meeting.

Single total figure of remuneration for each Director (audited information)
The tables below repart the total remuneration receivable in respect of qualifying services by each Director during the year.

Peansigns
Total salary Taxable related Total fixed Total variable

and fees®  benefits!®  benefits!? remuneration Annual bonus!® PSPie) remuneration Total
2023 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Executive Directors
Mark Milner 397 32 25 454 293 883 1,178 1,630
Guy Millward 280 32 11 323 207 163 370 693
Non-Executive Directors
Martin Morgan 140 — — 140 — — — 140
Paul Dollman 55 —_ — 55 — — — 55
Helen Sachdev 52 — — 52 —_ — — 52
William Macpherson 52 - — 52 — — —_ 52

Pensions
Total salary Taxable related Total fixed Annual Total variable

and fees®  benefits®  benefits!d remuneration bonus!? pSpiel remuneration Total
2022 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 E£'000Q £'000 £'000
Executive Directors
Mark Milner 368 32 32 432 459 175 834 1,066
Guy Millward 266 32 11 309 333 — 333 642
Non-Executive Directors
Martin Morgan 128 — — 128 — - — 128
Paul Doliman 49 — —_ 49 — - — 49
Helen Sachdev 49 — — 49 — — — 49
William Macpherson 49 — — 49 — — — 49

a) Total salary and fees — the amount of salary/fees received in the year.

b) Taxable benefits — the taxable value of benefits received in the year {i.e. car allowance. private medical insurance and income protection).

¢} Pensions related benefits — this is the amount of the cash payments in lieu of pension contributions made in the year.

d) Annual bonus — the value of the banus eamed in respect of the year, of which 20% will be deferred in shares. A description of performance
against the objectives, which applied for the year ended 30 June 2023, is provided on page 59,

e) PSP - the value of performance related incentives vesting in respect of the financial year. A description of performance against the targets
which applied for the awards vesting in respect of performance in the financial year is provided on page 60. The award will vest on 30
September 2023 and the estimated value of the award shown above is based on the three-month average share price to 30 June 2023 {£2.86)
and the value of dividends that would have accrued on vested shares during the performance period, which will be paid to Mr Milner and Mr
Millward.

Total salary and fees
Tetal salary and fees are based on the need to retain the skills and knowledge that the Executive and Non-Executive Directors bring to
the Company.

For the year ended 30 June 2023 {audited information)

For the year ended 30 June 2023 Mark Milners salary was increased by 8% to £397,000 and Guy Millward's salary was increased by
5% to £280,000. As disclosed in last year's Directors’ Remuneration report, Mark Milner's salary increase was awarded taking into
account that he had not received a salary increase since his appointment as Chief Executive Officer in June 2019, his strang
performance and contribution since his appointment and the fact that he has taken a reduction in his pension from 10% of salary to
5% of salary.

Pensions related benefits

For the year ended 30 June 2023 (audited information)

Neither Mark Milner nor Guy Millward participated in a pension scheme. They were paid an amount of £24 581 and £11,085
respectively in the year in lieu of pension centributions. reflective of 8% of his annual salary net of employers’ national insurance
contributions in the case of Mark Milner and 5% of his annual salary net of employers’ national insurance contributions in the case of
Guy Miliward.
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Annual bonus

For the year ended 30 June 2023 (audited information}

Each Executive Director was eligible to earn a bonus of up to 125% of their salary, with the performance measures weighted as
follows in respect of the maximum cpportunity.

Weighting (% of base

Measure salary)
Organic revenue growth* 53.1%
Adjusted Profit measure* 53.1%
Strategic and operational measures 18.8%

The following provides the Adjusted Profit and personal strategic objectives reference points together with the out-turns for
2022/2023.

Minimum target Maximum target Performance out- Bonus earned as

set set turna % of base salary
Organic revenue growth* 7.0% 11.0% 8.8% 23.9%
Adjusted Profit* £21.3m £26.0m £24.1m 31.2%

* Adfusted Profit is profit from continuing operations before adjusting ifems, impairment and other income. Organic revenue growth
is revenue growth excluding discontinued operations.

Strategic and operational measures

Objectives Weighting Assessment of performance Bonus earned
(% of base {% of base
salary) salary)

Improve customer engagement scores,
measured by NPS, of 5 businesses by 9.4%
more than 5%.

NPS scores were improved by more than 5%, objective

0,
achieved. 9.4%

Improve the employee engagement
measure, using the Peakon employee 8.4% Score of 7.4 recorded, objective achieved. 9.4%
engayenetl suore, 0 7.4,

The Executive Directors therefore eamed bonuses equal to 74% of salary {(equivalent to 59% of maximum opportunity):

Mark Milner: £293,179
Guy Millward: £206,828

20% of the amount earned will be deferred into shares for two years.
The Committee carefully considered the bonus outtumns in the context of overall performance, including the quality of earnings and

ROCE performance, and the sharehalder and employee experience. The Committee considered that the bonus outturns were
appropriate.
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PSP

Awards vesting in respect of the year ended 30 June 2023 {(audited information)

PSP awards were granted to Mark Milner and Guy Millward on 30 September 2020 and 26 February 2021 respectively that are due
to vest on 30 September 2023. The awards were subject to EPS growth, organic revenue growth and relative TSR performance
against the FTSE SmallCap index over a three-year period to 30 June 2023. The table below details the Company's performance
against these performance measures for the three-year performance period and the vesting out-turn.

Element Weighting (% of Target range Vesting
award) Minimum (25% of Maximum (100% of
maximum) maximum) Performance
Annual EPS 40% 15.7p 18.9p 21.49p 100%
Organic revenue o
9 aromth’ 20% 12.0% 14.0% 23.2% 100%
TSR versus FTSE o . . _
StnallCap 40% Median Upper quartile  Upper quartile 100%
Total vesting
outcome 100%

1. Organic revenue growth excludes the impact of changes In foreign currency exchange rates and excluding the impact of changes in the Company’s partfolio from

acquisitions and disposals.

Number of Number of shares vesting Dividend Total value of Amount of award attributable

shares granted? based on performance equivalents® award on vesting* to share price appreciation

since grant

Mark Milner 285714 285,714 22,977 £882,856 133%
Guy Millward 52,791 52,791 4,245 £163,123 54%

2. A share pnce af £1.225 for Mr Milner ang £1.854 for Mr Millward (five day average share price pnor to grant) were used to determine the number of shares granted.
The value of the vested shares is estimated based on a share price of £2.86. Therefare, the propartion of the total value of the award attributable to share price growth
since the grant date 15 estimated to be 133% and 54% respectively. The Committee did not consider that it was necessary to exercise discretion in respect of share price
appretiation since the grant date.

3. Calculated based on the value of divdends that would have accrued on vested shares dunng the perfermance penod.

4. Calculated based on the three month average share price to 30 June 2023 (£2.86).

Mark Milner and Guy Millward are required to hold no less than 50% of the vested shares (net of tax) for a minimum of two years post-
vesting.

The Committee carefully considered the PSP outturn in the context of overall performance, including the quality of eamings and ROCE

performance, and the shareholder and employee experience. The Committee considered that the PSP outturn was appropriate.

PSP Awards granted during the year
In respect of the year ended 30 June 2023 the following PSP awards were granted as detailed in the table below.

% of award

vesting at

Maximum Number of Face value at minimum

Narme Date of grant Type of award opporturity shares grant threshold
Mark Milner 30 Septernber 2022 PSP 100% of salary 175,726 £495,5471 25%
Guy Millward 30 September 2022 PSP 100% of salary 99.150 £279,603" 25%

1. The face value is based on a price of 282p, being the average share price from the five business days immediately preceding the award being
granted on 30 September 2022,

The performance measures are disclosed below:

65% of award — EPS in the 2024/25 financial year Percentage of Award Vesting

Less than 22.8p 0.0%

22.8p 25.0%

More than 22.8p but less than 26.8p On a straight line basis between 25.0% and 100.0%
26.8p or mere than 26.8p 100.0%

35% of award — Organic revenue growth over a performance
period from the 2021/22 financial year to the 2024/25 financial

year Percentage of Award Vesting

Less than 5.4% 0.0%

8.4% 25.0%

More than 8.4% but less than 10.4% On a straight line basis between 25.0% and 100.0%
10.4% or mare than 10.4% 100.0%
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The Curnillee may 1educe Lhe extent of vesting if the Committee considers that any value ot the vested award represents a windfall
gain caused by the impact an the share price due to the Covid-18 pandemic. In assessing this, the Committee will take into account
a number of factors, including share price performance over the vesting period on an absolute and relative basis against peer
companies, underlying financial performance of the Group during the performance period and the impact of any significant events
during the vesting period on the Group’s share price or the market as a whole.

The Executive Directars will be required to retain all of the vested shares (net of taxes) for a minimum of two years post-vesting.

Shareholding guidelines and statement of Directors’ share awards (audited information)

Shareholding guidelines for Executives have been adopted, linked to the outturn from the PSP. At the time awards vest under the
PSP {or any other Executive plan established in the future), Executive Directors will be expected to retain no fewer than 50% of
vested shares (net of taxes) until such time as a total personal shareholding equivalent to 200% of pre-tax base salary has been
achieved. This retention requirement also applies to 50% of the net vested shares under deferred bonus awards.

The holdings of those persons who served as Directors during the year, and of their families, are as follows:

Beneficial/ At 30 June 2023

non-beneficial At 30 June 2022 Movementin year At 30 June 2023 Percentage

Mark Milner Beneficial 45,000 34,759 79,759 0.08%
Guy Millward Beneficial —_ — —_ —_
Martin Morgan Beneficial 80,000 — 90,000 0.10%
Paul Doilman Beneficial 40,000 — 40,000 0.05%
Helen Sachdev Beneficial 10,000 — 10,000 0.01%
William Macpherson Beneficial 10,000 — 10,000 0.01%

As at 30 June 2023 the Company's share price was 274.00p and its highest and lowest share prices during the year ended 30 June
2023 were 356.00p and 231.00p respectively, Interests are shown as a percentage of shares in issue at 30 June 2023.

Executive Directors’ interests under share schemes (audited information)
Awards held under the PSP and SAYE scheme by each person who served as a Director during the year ended 30 June 2023 are

as follows:
Number of Granted Lapsed Exercised Number of

Type of sharesat  during the during the during the shares at 30 Date which
Award date award1 July 2022 year year year  June 2023 awards vest
Mark Milner 30 Sept 20194 PSP 168,269 — (99,828) {68,441) —30 Sept 2022
Mark Milner 30 Sept 20201 PSP 285714 _ _ _ 285,714 30 Sept 2023
Mark Milner 19 Oct 2020 SAYE 18,750 — . _ 18,750 1 Dec 2023
Mark Milner 30 Sept 20213 PSP 164,846 — — _ 164,94630 Sept 2024
Mark Milner 30 Sept 20223 PSP — 175,726 — — 175,726 30 Sept 2025
Guy Miltlward 26 Feb 2021! PSP 52,791 — — — 52,79130 Sept 2023
Guy Millward 30 Sept 20213 PSP 119,488 — — — 119,48830 Sept 2024
Guy Millward 30 Sept 2022° PSP — 89,150 — — 99,15030 Sept 2025

1. Performance conditions for awards granted on 30 September 2020 and 26 February 2021 are disclosed on page 60. The awards are expected to
vest at 100%.

2. Performance conditions for awards granted on 30 September 2021 are disclosed in the 2021/22 financial year Anrual Report and Accounts.

Performance conditions for awards granted on 30 September 2022 are disclosed on page 60.

Awards vested during the year are disclosed in the 2021/22 financial year Annual Repost and Accounts.

s

Dilution (unaudited information)

Awards under the Company's discretionary schemes which may be satisfied by a new issue of shares must not exceed 5.0% of the
Company's issued share capital in any rolling ten year period and the total of all awards satisfied via new issue shares under all plans
{both discretionary and all-employee) must not exceed 10.0% of the Company’s issued share capital in any rolling ten year period.

At 30 June 2023, the headroom under the Company’s 5.0% and 10.0% limits was 696 364 and 3,650,809 shares respectively, out of
an issued share capital of 88,168,807 shares.
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Payments for loss of office {audited information)
No paymenits for loss of office were made during the year.

Performance graph and table (unaudited information)
The following graph shows, for the year ended 30 June 2023 and for each of the previous nine years, the total shareholder return on
2 holding of the Company’s ordinary shares compared with a hypothetical holding of shares of the same kind and number as those by
reference to which the FTSE All-Share Media Index and the FTSE Small Cap Index are calculated. These indices have been chosen
as the appropriate comparators because the Committee believes they contain the most comparable companies against which to
appraise the Company’s share perfonmance.

Valuge (£} [rebasea)

2 T T T u
3G.un 2013 30:un 2013 30 Jun 2015 30Jun 2016 30.un 2017 3034n 2018 30Jun 2019 301un 2020 305un 2021 30un 2022 30 lun 2023

—
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Chief Executive Officer single figure (unaudited information)

2022/23 Mark Milner

2021/22 Mark Milner
2020/21 Mark Milner
2019/20 Mark Milner
2018/19 Pedro Ros
2017/18 Pedra Ros
2016/17 Pedro Ros
2015/16 Pedro Ros
2014/15 Pedro Ros

2013/14 Charles J Brady
Percentage change in remuneration of Directors and employees (unaudited information)
The year-cn-year percentage change in salary, taxable benefits and annual bonus on a rofling basis, for the Executive and Non-
Executive Directors and employees of the Company cn a full-time equivalent basis. The average employee change has been
calculated by reference to the mean of employee pay over the same period.

Salary/fees

Taxable benefits?

2022/23
2021/22
2020/21
2022/23
2021/22

Total remuneration
£'000
1,630

1,066
769
389
398
565
814
6877
671
943

Average
employee Mark Milner
9% 8%
1% 5%
0% 5%
0% 0%
0% (20%)
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Annual bonus as a % of
maximum opportunity

Guy
Millward’
5%

2%

0%

0%

4%

%
59.0%

100.0%
100.0%

21.8%
61.7%
73.1%

78.5%
88.6%

Martin

PSP as a % of maximum
number of shares

Morgan Paui Dollman

9%
0%
6%
0%
0%

12%
0%
4%
0%
C%

1

%
00.0%
40.7%

33.3%
80.9%
84.1%

91.8%

Helen William
SachdevMacpherson'
5% 5%

0% 0%

4% 0%

0% 0%

0% 0%
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2020/21 0% 34% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Annual bonus 2022123 7% (38)% (38)% 0% 0% 0% 0%
2021722 21% 31% 27% 0% 0% 0% 0%
2020721 60% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

1. In order to provide meaningful comparison with remuneration for 2021/22, Guy Millward and William Macpherson's remuneration for 2020/21 has
been annualised, to reflect the fact that both joined the Board during the year ended 30 June 2021.
2. The decrease in taxable benefits in the year 2021/22 awarded to Mark Milner relates to the grant of SAYE options in 2020/21.

The increase in average employee salary and fees in the year reflects an average salary increase for continuing employees offset by
the impact of restructuring and vacancies. The increase in Directars’ salaries in the year reflects a holistic view of performance and
other factors as outlined in the Remuneration Committee Chair's statement on pages 52 to 53. See previous Directors’ Remuneration
reports for explanations as regards the percentage change in salary, taxable berefits and annual bonus in respect of previous years.

Relative importance of spend on pay (unaudited information)

The difference in actual expenditure between 2021/22 and 2022/23 on remuneration for all employees in comparison to distributions
to shareholders by way of dividend is detailed in the table below. The significant increase in distributions to shareholders by way of
a dividend is primarily due to the final 2020 dividend being withheld in respanse to ongoing uncertainty around the impacts of the
Covid-19 pandemic, dividends are still below their pre-Covid-18 level, wages and salaries are not. There were no share buybacks

during the year.

2022/23 2021/22 Change

£'000 £'000 %

Expenditure on remuneration for all employees 48,060 47,374 1%
Distributions to shareholders by way of a dividend 7,462 5,492 36%

CEQ pay ratio

The following table discloses the ratios between the single total figure of remuneration {'STFR') of the Chief Executive Officer for
2020/21 and 2021/22 and the lower quartile, median and upper quartile pay of Wilmington's UK employees for those years. The
STFR of employees at each quartile has been calculated an a full-time eguivalent basis as at the final day of the relevant financial

year. Wilmington is committed to ensuring competitive pay for all colleagues.

25th 75th
percentile Median percentile
Method pay ratio pay ratio pay ratio
2022/23 Option B 54:1 41:1 22:1
2021/22 Option B 40:1 24:1 14:1
2020/21 Option B 281 21:1 13:1
Single total figures of remuneration used to calculate the above ratio
CEOQ 25% percentile pay ratio  Median pay ratio 75" percentile pay ratio
Total pay
and Total Total pay Total Total pay Total Total pay Total
benefits salary and benefits salaryand benefits salary and benefits salary
Method £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £°000 £000
2022123 Option B 1,630 397 30 28 40 37 73 60

Reporting regulations offer three methodologies to calcufate the CEQ pay ratioc — Options A, B and C. The above table has been
calculated by adopting Option B, which was determined as the mast appropriate methodology for Wilmington. It was decided that
Option B would be the most appropriate approach as Wilmington had already completed a comprehensive analysis of UK employees
for the purpose of gender pay gap reporting. As such, the most recent gender pay gap data, due to be published in September 2023,
was used to determine the employees at the 25" percentile, median and 75" percentile. A single total figure of remuneration was
then calculated for each of the relevant employees using a consistent approach to the calculation of the single total figure of
remuneration for the Chief Executive Officer on page 58 based on remuneration as at 30 June 2023. For example, variable bonus
payments and employer pension contributions were added to the gender pay data to ensure the STFR reflected all relevant
remuneration received in respect of the year ended 30 June 2023. The pay data for a sample of employees at each percentile was
then reviewed for accuracy and consistency and as such, Wilmington believes the selected employees are reasonably representative
of the 25" median, and 75" percentiles.

It is expected that the CEQ pay ratio has the potential to vary considerably year-on-year due to the significant variable remuneration
element included. 100% of the PSP award granted to the CEO on 30 September 2020 will vest on 30 September 2023 in respect of
three-year performance to 30 June 2023. No PSP award was capable of vesting in respect of three year performance ended 30 June
2021 for the CEQ. This variance in PSP vesting is the primary reason for an increase in the ratio relating to the year ended 30 June
2023.
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The Company believes that the median pay ratio is consistent with the pay, reward and progression policies for the Company’s UK
employees as a whole.

Implementation of the policy for the year ending 30 June 2024 (unaudited information)
The Committee Chair's statement on pages 52 and 53 describes how the paolicy will be implemented for the year ending 30 June
2024,

Details of the Remuneration Committee, advisors to the Committee and their fees (unaudited information)

Details of the Directers who were members of the Committee during the year are disclosed on page 64. The Committee has also
received assistance from the Chief Executive Officer with respect to the remuneration of the other Executive Director and on the
Company’s Remuneration Policy more generally. He is not in attendance when his own remuneration is discussed.

During the year, the Committee received independent advice from the following external consultants:

2022/23
Committee’s advisors £'000
Aon Hewitt Limited provided advice to the Committee on performance analysis. 4
Deloitte LLP provided advice to the Cammittee on executive remuneration, including annual bonus performance
measures. 5

Deloitte LLP was appainted by the Committee in 2013; the Group zlso engages Deloitte LLP to provide advice in relation to the
Company's share plans. Deloitte is @ member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and, as such, voluntarily operates under the
Code of Conduct in relation to executive remuneration consulting in the UK. Aon Hewitt Limited was appointed by the Committee in
previous years. The Committee took into account the Remuneration Consultants Group's Code of Conduct when reviewing the
appointment of Aon Hewitt Limited and Deloitte LLP.

The Committee is satisfied that all advice received was objective and independent.

Details of the attendance of the Committee are set out in the table below:

Committee meetings eligible

Committee member Member since Committee meetings attended to attend
Helen Sachdev (Committee Chair) April 2020 3 3
Martin Morgan May 2018 3 3
Paul Dollman September 2015 3 3
William Macpherson February 2021 3 3

Statement of voting at general meeting (unaudited information)
At the Annual General Meeting held on 23 November 2022 the Annual Report on remuneration received the following votes from
shareholders:

Annual Report on remuneration Total number of votes % of votes cast
For 69,715,844 97.79%
Against 1,572,641 221%
Total votes cast (for and agzinst) 71,288,485
Votes withheld 885,400
Total votes (including withheld votes) 72,173,885
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Directors’ report and other statutory information

The Directors present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements feor the year ended 30 June 2023. The
Directors’ report comprises page 65 and the sections of the Annual Report incorporated by reference are set out below which,
taken together, contain the information to be included in the Annual Report, where applicable, under Listing Rule 9.58.4.

Board membership p. 41
Dividends p.6
Directors’ long term incentives p. 54
Corporate governance report p. 43
Future developments of the business of the Group p. 4
Employee equality, diversity and involvement p. 16
Events after the reporting period p. 114
Subsidiaries of the Group p. 100
Financial risk management p. 102
Sustainability and greenhouse gas emissions p. 15
5172 statement and stakeholder engagement p. 13
Going concern p. 84
Viability statement p. 39

Notice concerning forward-looking statements

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements. Although the Group believes that the expectations reflected in such
forward-looking statements are reasonable, these statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to a
number of risks and uncertainties and actual results and events could differ materiatly from those currently being anticipated as
reflected in such forward-looking statements.

The terms ‘expect’, ‘estimate’, ‘forecast’, ‘target’, ‘believe’, ‘should be’, ‘will be’' and similar expressions are intended to identify
forward-looking statements. Factors which may cause future outcomes to differ from those foreseen in forward-looking statements
include, but are not limited to, those identified under ‘Principal risks and uncertainties’ on pages 27 to 33 of this Annual Report.

The forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report speak only as of the date of publication of this Annual Report and
the Group therefore cautions readers not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. Except as required by any
applicable law or regulation, the Group expressly disclaims any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or
revisions to any forward-looking statements contained in this document to reflect any change in the Group’s expectations or any
change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.

General information
The Company is public limited and is incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The Company is listed on the main market of the
London Stock Exchange. The Company's registered address is 10 Whitechapel High Street, Londan E1 8Q5.

Branches outside the UK
The Group does not operate any branches outside the UK.

Research and development activities
The Group invests in research and development to support the development of its businesses which can rely on technology to
deliver their data, information, education and training services. An example of investments undertaken in the year is the Digital

Transformation project.

Political donations
No political donations were made during the year (2022: £nil).

Directors and Directors’ interests

All Directors are equally accountable for the proper stewardship of the Company’s affairs. Executive and Non-Executive Directors
offer themselves for election or re-election at each Annual General Meeting as a result of the Company deciding to adopt best
practice guidelines and the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code, located on the FRC’s website at

www frc.org. uk/directors/corporate-governance-and-stewardship/uk-corparate-governance-code.

Details of the remuneration, service contracts, letters of appointment and interests in the share capital of the Company for the
Directors who have served during the year are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 52 to 64.

As disclosed in note 24 none of the Directors had any material interest in any contract, other than an employment contract, that was
significant in relation to the Group's business at any time during the year.
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Directors’ third-party indemnity provisions

Ta reduce the possibility of the Company incurring expenses which might arise from the need to indemnify a Director ar Officer
from claims made against them or the cost associated with their defence, the Group has in place Directors' and Officers’ qualifying
third-party liability insurance as permitted by the Companies Act 2006, which has been in force throughout the financial year and up
to the date of approval of these financial statements.

Inclusivity and employee engagement

The Group's recruitment policy ensures that all job applications are reviewed on a fair basis free from discrimination. This palicy
aligns strongly to our work to embed an inclusive culture across the Group, and to our accessibility agenda as set out in the
Sustainability report on page 15. The policy includes provision to ensure that any candidate or employee who has or develops a
disability, long term health condition or impairment is considered fairly in our recruitment and career progression processes. The
Group also has a palicy to ensure that it makes reasonable adjustments for all candidates or employees to reflect their needs and
allow them to participate fully, develop and thrive in our business.

Please refer to the Section 172 statement on page 13 for information regarding actions taken during the year to maintain employee
engagement.

Financial instruments
An explanation of the Group's treasury policies and existing financial instruments is set out in note 17 of the financial statements.

Purchase of own shares and sale of treasury shares

The Group has, in previous years, purchased its own shares and holds such shares in treasury. 60,762 shares held in treasury
were used to satisfy the Company’s obligations under the SAYE Plan during the year. At 30 June 2023, 5,208 shares were held in
treasury (2022: 85,970), which represents 0.1% (2022: 0.1%) of the share capital of the Company.

In October 2022 Wilmington issued 340,052 ordinary voting shares to satisfy the Company's cbligations under its Performance
Share Plan.

Contracts of significance with shareholders
The Company and its subsidiary undertakings do not have any contractual or other arrangements with any continuing shareholders

which are essential to the business of the Company.

Takeover directive disclosures

As at 30 June 2023, the Company had only one authorised class of share, namely ordinary shares of 5p each, of which there were
in issue 88,168 807 (2022: 87,828,755). There are no special arrangements or restrictions relating to any of these shares, whether
in terms of transfers, voting rights, or relating to changes in control of the Company. The Company does not have any special rules
in place regarding the appeintment and replacement of Directars, or regarding amendments to the Company's articles of
association.

Subject to various conditions, if the Company is taken over, all share awards and options will vest and may be exercised.

Except for share awards and options described above there are no special conditions or agreements in place which would take
effect, alter or terminate in the event of a takeover.

Apart from the interests of the Directers disciosed in the Directors’ remuneration report and the substantial interests listed on page
48 there are no individuals or entities with significant holdings, either direct or indirect, in the Company.

Annual General Meeting

A separate natice convening the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the head office, 10 Whitechapel High
Street, London E1 8QS, on 22 November 2023 will be circulated to shareholders with this Annual Report and financial statements.
Grant Thornton UK LLP, the Group’s auditors, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and, an the recommendation of
the Audit Committee and in accordance with Section 489 of the Act, a resolution to re-appoint them will be put to the 2023 AGM.
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are respensible for preparing the Annual Report and financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have
prepared the financial statements in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards {UK-adopted International
Accounting Standards). Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and profit or loss of the Company and Group for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the Directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
= make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

- state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the United Kingdom have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements and the Directors’ remuneration report comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors confirm that:
+ so far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit infermation of which the Company's auditors are unaware; and

+ the Directors have taken all the steps that they cught to have taken as Directors in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and te establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that informaticon.

The Directars are responsible for preparing the Annual Report in accordance with applicable law and regulations. Having taken
advice from the Audit Committee, the Directors consider the Annual Report and the financial statements, taken as a whole,
provides the information necessary to assess the Company’s performance, business model and strategy and is fair, balanced and

understandable.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislatian in other jurisdictions.

Ta the best of our knowledge:

= the Group financial statements, prepared in accordance with {FRSs as adopted by the United Kingdom, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole; and

« the Strategic report and Directors’ report include a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

Approved on behalf of the Board by:

Guy Millward
Chief Financial Officer
22 September 2023

Guy Millward
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Independent auditors’ report

Opinion

Our opinion on the financial statements is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Wilmington plc (the ‘parent company’} and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year
ended 30 June 2023, which comprise the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the Group and Company balance sheets, the Group and Company statements of changes in equity, the Group and
Company cash flow statements and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law
UK-adopted international accounting standards. The financial reparting framework that has been applied in the preparation of
the parent company financial statements is UK-adopted international accounting standards as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion:

» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at 30
June 2023 and of the group’s profit for the year ther ended,

+ the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards;

« the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed public
interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concem

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related ta events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the group’'s and the parent company’s ability to cantinue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in aur repaort to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify the auditor’'s opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the group or the parent company to cease to continue as a going concem.

Our evaluaticn of the directors’ assessment of the group’s and the parent company’s ability to continue to adapt the going concern
basis of accounting included:

» evaluating the Group's and the parent company's cash position and performance throughout the year, considering the parent
company's ability to pay dividends, concluding that the Group’s and the parent company's ability to continue as a going
concern was not a significant risk;

» obtaining management's base case forecasts for the going concern period to 30 September 2024 and evaluating their integrity
and suitability as a basis for management to assess going concern;

« assessing mathematical accuracy of management's forecasts, and corroborating to supporting documentation and board
approval where appropriate;

« challenging the key inputs underpinning the farecasts including agreeing the opening net cash position as 30 June 2023 to
audited balances;

= following the cancellation of the Group's loan facility cn 8 August 2023, the focus of the audit team’'s assessment shifted from
covenant compliance to liquidity, reviewing forecast cash reserves throughout the gaing cencern pericd and challenging the
underlying assumptions;

= considering the severity and plausibility of management's downside scenarios, and evaluating the assumptions regarding
revenue reductions and increased costs under each of these scenarios;
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« considering the severity and plausibility of management'’s reverse stress test scenario prepared to identify the conditions which
would result in the exhaustion of cash reserves, and evaluating the mitigating actions available to management;

» assessing whether the assumptions are consistent with our understanding of the business obtained during the course of the
audit and the changing external circumstances arising from the global economic environment;

» evaluating the accuracy of management's historical forecasting and the impact of this on management's assessment;

« inspecting unaudited post year end performance data and minutes of meetings of the board of directors and all of its
committees to corroborate that any relevant post-year end events have been factered into management’s forecasts; and

= evaluating the appropriateness and adequacy of disclosures in respect of going concern made in the financial statements.

In our evaluation of the directors’ conciusions, we cansidered the inherent risks asscciated with the group's and the parent
company’s business model including effects arising from macro-economic uncertainties such as the wider recessionary and
inflationary environment, we assessed and challenged the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and the related
disclosures and analysed how those risks might affect the group’s and the parent company's financial resources or ability to
continue operations over the going concern period.

In auditing the financial staterments, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concermn basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s and the parent company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In relation to the group's reporting on how it has applied the UK Comporate Governance Code, we have nothing material to add or
draw attention to in relation to the directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether the directors considered it
appropriate to adopt the going cencern basis of accounting.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concemn are described in the relevant sections of
this repart.
Qur approach fo the audit

Overview of our audit approach

Overall materiality-

o GrantThornton Group: £1,080,000, which represents 5% of the Group’s normalised profit before
tax, determined at the planning stage of the audit.

Parent campany: £594,000, which represents 1% of the parent company's total
assets capped at its companent materiality, being 55% of Group materiality.

Key audit matters were identified as:

»  Occurrence and accuracy of revenue recognition and completeness of
deferred revenue within complex revenue streams {new in the current year)

» Valuation of goodwill associated with the Compliance Week cash-
generating unit (new in the current year)

Our auditor's report for the year ended 30 June 2022 included a key audit
matter entitled ‘Recognition of Revenue’ with the risk being highest in the final
quarter of the year. The key audit matter in the current year is focussed on to
the occurrence and accuracy of revenue recognition and completeness of
deferred revenue within complex revenue streams.

We performed full scope audit procedures on the financial statements of
Wilmington plc and on the financial information of Wilmington Shared Services
Limited, Wilmington Healthcare Limited, Axco Insurance Information Services
Limited, International Compliance Training Limited, Mercia Group Limited and
Wilmington FRA Inc.

Full scope or specified audit procedures were performed on the financial
information of components representing 75% of the Group's revenue and 63%
of the Group’s profit before tax.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in aur audit of the financial
statements of the current peried and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to

fraud) that we identified. These matters included those that had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of

resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Description

Disclosures

Audit
response

Our results

In the graph below, we have presented the key audit matters, significant risks and other risks relevant to the audit.
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Key Audit Matter = Group

How our scope addressed the matter = Group

Occurrence and accuracy of revenue
recognition and completeness of deferred
revenue within complex revenue streams

The Group has reported revenues of £123.5m
(2022: £121.0m), and deferred revenue at the
year-end of £33.7m (2022: £31.4m).

Under International Standard on Auditing (UK)
240 The Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to
Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements', there
is a presumption that there are risks of fraud in
revenue recagnition.

We identified the occurrence and accuracy of

revenue recognition as one of the most significant

assessed risks of matenal misstatement due to
fraud. Linked to this is a significant sk over the

In responding te the key audit matter, we

performed the following audit procedures:

« assessed the design effectiveness of controls
related to revenue;

+ assessed the revenue accounting policies
against the criteria of Intemmational Financial
Reporting Standard ('IFRS’) 15 'Revenue from
Contracts with Customers' to determine
appropriate recogniticn and treatment of
revenue;
selected a sample of revenue transactions in
the year and agreed to underlying support
(such as signed customer contracts) to
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Key Audit Matter ~ Group

How our scope addressed the matter — Group

completeness of deferred revenue at the year-
end.

The nature of the Group’s revenue involves the
delivery of services which are recognised either
at a point in time, or evenly aver time. The audit
team’s assessment is that the vast majority of
revenue transactions are non-complex with no
judgement applied over the amount recorded.
Revenue recognised eguates to the value of the
service, spread evenly over the peried of each
contract.

However, there are more complex revenue
streams within the Group component, Wilmingtan
Healthcare Limited (“WHC"} and a single revenue
stream in Mercia Group Ltd ("MCA"), where
revenue is recognised based on stage of
completion. Management also cannot accurately
disaggregate the total revenue within WHC
between the different revenue streams. This may
give rise to an incentive and opportunity to
manipulate the amount of revenue and deferred
revenue recognised in the year.

We have therefore focussed our significant fraud
risk on revenue to the occurrence and accuracy
of revenue recognised in WHC, and the
occurrence and accuracy of the specific revenue
stream in MCA.

There is also an associated risk relating to the
completeness of deferred revenue relating to
WHC.

Relevdaul disclosures in Lhe Armudal Repurl
and Financial Statements for the year ended
30 June 2023

» Financial statements: Note 3, Revenue

» Audit committee report: Revenue Recognition

Valuation of goodwill associated with the
Compliance Week cash-generating unit

We identified valuation of goodwill associated with
the Compliance Week cash generating unit (CGU)
as one of the most significant assessed risks of
matenal misstatement due to error.

In accordance with International Accounting

Standard (‘IAS") 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’,
goodwill is subject to an annual impaimment test.

The Group holds £60.5m of goodwill on its balance

sheet, including £4.7m relating to the Compliance

Week CGU.

We performed a risk assessment across all CGUs
in the Group to identify any individual CGUs which
showed indicators of impaiment or low headroom.

We identified that the carrying value of the goodwill

intangible asset associated with the Compliance
Week CGU is a significant risk. This was based on
multiple risk factors, namely:

s the low headroam for this CGU,

« the sensitivity of the carrying value to key
assumptions, and

corrcborate key information used in
determining recognition of revenue and
deferred revenue balances;

+ for each sample item, calculated an expected
amount of revenue based on contract temms ta
confim that revenue has been accurately
recognised in the year and the amount
deferred at the balance sheet date was
accurately calculated based on the progress
of the contract; and

» tested prior period deferred income balances
by comparing a sample of items to the current
year revenue listing to determine whether the
correct amount of revenue was recognised in
the current year.

Ouwr resulls

Based on our audit work, we did not identify
material misstatements in relation to the
occurrence and accuracy of revenue recognised
or the completeness of deferred revenue.

In responding to the key audit matter, we

performed the following audit procedures:

» obtained management's impatrment
assessment model for Compliance Week and
tested the mathematical accuracy;

» assessed the appropriateness of the asset
amounts included in the carrying value of this
CGU by agreeing to underlying accounting
records;

+ gbtained and challenged the key assumptions

relating to the Compliance Week cash flow

forecasts, including short and medium-term
growth rates, and contribution margins;
evaluated the appropriateness of the growth
rates applied within the cash flow forecasts, by
reference to industry and market data;

= tested the accuracy of management's historic
forecasting for this CGU through a comparison
of budget to actual data,

« assessed the discount rate applied to the
forecast cash flows for this CGU, including an
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Key Audit Matter — Group

How our scope addressed the matter - Group

» the level of management judgement
included in the inputs into the impairment
calculation, such as the rate used to
discount future cash flows, the cash flow
forecasts and the growth rates.

assessment by our valuation specialists, and
benchmarking the rate against that used by
competitors;

» performed sensitivity analysis on the value-in-
use calcuiation prepared by management; and

+ assessed the accuracy and completeness of
financial statement disclosures relating to the
impairment of goodwill for Compliance Week,
and the sensitivity of this impairment to key
variables.

Relevant disclosures in the Annual Report and
Financial Statements for the year ended 30
June 2023

+ Financial statements: Note 11, Goodwiill

Our results

Based on our audit work, we did not identify
material misstatements in relation to the valuation
of goodwill associated with Compliance Week

e Audit Committee report: Goodwill CGU.

We did not identify any key audit matters relating to the audit of the financial statements of the parent company.

Qur application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing the audit, and in evaluating the effect of identified
misstatements on the audit and of uncorrected misstatements, if any, on the financial statements and in forming the opinion in the

auditor's report.

Materiality was determined as follows:

Materiality measure  Group

Parent company

Materiality for We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial
financial statements  statements that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be
as a whole expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of these financial

statements. We use materiality in determining the nature, timing and extent

of our audit work.

Materiality threshold £1,080,000, which is 5% of the
Group’s narmalised profit before tax,
determined at the planning stage the
audit.

Significant judgements In determining materiality, we made
made by auditor in the following significant judgements:

determining matenality )
« Normalised profit before tax was

cansidered the most appropriate
benchmark because the
movement in profit before tax
continues to exhibit a strong
correlation with the activity of the
business.

= The impact of any material non-
racurring items were removed,
namely the gain on disposal in
the year. We then determined
materiality at 5% of this
normalised profit before tax
amount.

Materiality for the current year is
higher than the level that we
determined for the year ended 30
June 2022 due to the greater

Wilmington ple Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023

£594 000, which which represents
1% of the parent company's total
assets capped at its component
materiality, which is 55% of Group
materiality.

In determining materiality, we made
the following significant judgements:

« Total assets was considered the
maost appropriate benchmark
because the parent company’s
purpose is to hold matenal
investments in its subsidiary
companies and in the amounts
receivable from subsidiary
cempanies, and as it does not
trade.

* Parent company materiality was
initially determined at 1% of total
assets, however this has been
capped at its component
materiality of £594,000 to provide
sufficient assurance at the Group
level.

Materiality for the current year is
higher than the ievel that we
determined for the year ended 30
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Materiality measure  Group Parent company

June 2022 to reflect the increase in
the parent company's total assets in
the current year and the capping at
55% of Group materiality referred to
above, which was higher this year.

normalised profit that was incurred in
the current period.

We set performance materiality at an amount less than materiality for the
financial statements as a whole to reduce to an appropriately low level the
probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements

Performance
materiality used to
drive the extent of

our testing

Performance
materiality threshold

Significant judgements
made by auditor in

exceeds materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

£810,000, which is 75% of financial
statement materiatity.

In determining performance
matenality, we made the following

£445 500, which is 75% of financial
statement materiality.

In determining performance
materiality, we made the following

determining significant judgements: significant judgements:
performance . . ” . . i
materiality « Qur experience with auditing the = Our experience with auditing the

financial statements of the Group
in previous years — based on the
number and quantum of identified
misstatements in the prior year
audit and management’s attitude
to correcting identified
misstatements;

+ QOur assessment of the strength
and effectiveness of the control
environment; and

+ The number of components
within the Group and the extent
of audit procedures planned and
performed at these components.

Specific materiality

Specific materiality

Communication of
misstatements to the
audit committee

Threshold for
communication

The graph below illustrates how performance materiality interacts with our overall materiality and the tolerance for potential

We determine specific materiality for on

financial statements of the parent
company in previous years —
based on the number and
quantum of identified
misstatements in the prior year
audit and management’s attitude
to correcting identified
misstatements; and

» Qur assessment of the strength
and effectiveness of the control
environment.

e or more particular classes of

transactions, account balances or disclosures for which misstatements of
lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of the financial statements.

We determined a lower level of
specific materiality for the following
areas:

s Related party transactions; and

+ Directors’ remuneration.

We determined a lower level of
specific materiality for the following
areas:

s Related party transactions; and

» Directors’ remuneratian.

We determine a threshold for reporting unadjusted differences to the audit

committee.

£54,000 and misstatements below
that threshold that, in our view,
warrant reporting on qualitative
grounds.

uncorrected misstatements,

Overall materiality — Group
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Qverall materiality — Parent company

£29 700 and misstatements below
that threshold that, in our view,
warrant reporting on qualitative
grounds.
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PM PM
£B10,000, £445,500,
FSM 5% — 5%
" N £1.080.000, ™ £534.000.
5% 1% (capped)
TFRUM
£270,000. Jigg%
5% "%

FSM 'Fin;nic'iél staternents materiality, PM: Performance mate-;iaii_i-)(_,_TFPUM: Tolerancé fdr potéhﬁal uncorrected misstatements

An overview of the scope of our audit
We performed a risk-based audit that requires an understanding of the group’s and the parent company’s business and in particular

matters related to:

Understanding the group, its components, and their environments, including group-wide controls

« abtaining art understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls, and assessing the risks of material
misstatement at the group level

= evaluation of the design and implementaticn of controls over the financial reparting systems and the effectiveness of the control
environment as part of our risk assessment; and

= evaluation by the Group engagement team of identified components to assess the significance of each component and to
determine the planned audit response based on a measure of materiality.

identifying signfficant components
« in setting our audit scope we assessed qualitative and quantitative factors to identify components which are significant to the

Group;

» with regards to gquantitative measures, we determined any individual component with significant contribution to consolidated
revenues ar consolidated underlying profit or loss before tax to be financially significant to the Group;

+ other significant components were identified as Wilmington plc and Wilmington Shared Services Limited, based on qualitative
factors. Wilmington Heaithcare Limited was also identified as a financially significant companent due to quantitative factors.
These three components were subject to full scope audit procedures and represent 17% of the Group's revenue and 18% of
the Group’s profit before tax. All work in refation to these components was performed by the Group engagement team;

+ four further components were identified as not being financially significant but matertal and therefore subject to full scope audit
procedures, being International Compliance Training Limited, Axco Insurance Information Services Limited, Mercia Group
Limited and Wilmington FRA Inc. All work in relation to these components was performed by the Group engagement team;,

« two further components were identified for which specified audit procedures on specific balances were performed, being
Wilmington Publishing & Information Limited and Bond Solon Training Limited. The work on these components was targeted
according to the nature of the balances within these components. All work in relation to these companents was performed by
the Group engagement team.

= the remaining 24 components were subject to analytical procedures commensurate with their significance to the Group’s results
and financial position.

Type of work to be performed on financial information of parent and other components (including how it addressed the key audit

malters)

» for the parent company and other firancially significant components requiring full-scope audit procedures, we evaluated the
design and implementation of controls over the financial reporting systems identified as part of our risk assessment and
addressed critical accounting matters. We then undertook substantive testing on significant ransactions and material account
balances;

» for components identified as not being financially significant but still requiring ful-scope audit procedures, the financial
infarmation of each component was subject to procedures that were performed to compenent materiality;
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« for companents subject to specified audit procedures, audit procedures were performed on revenue balances to provide us with
assurance for the refated key audit matter of the recognition of revenue,

Performance of our audit

» work performed aver full scope components and specified procedures components covered 75% of the Group's revenue and
63% of the Group's profit before tax; and

« the remaining components of the Group were subject to analytical procedures commensurate with their significance ta the
Group's results and financial position.

Communications with component audilors
» No work was undertaken by component auditors for Group audit purposes.

Changes in approach from provious period
s The subsidiary Axco Insurance Information Services Limited has been identified as not financially significant but stilf
requiring a full scope audit in the current year, whereas it was identified as being financially significant in the previous

year,

¢ The subsidiary Wilmingten FRA Inc. has been identified as being not financially significant but material and therefore
subject to a full scope audit in the current year, whereas it was identified as requiring specific audit procedures in the
previous year.

Audit approach Na. of components % coverage % coverage
Revenue Profit Before Tax
Full-scope audit I 7 64% 63%
Specified audit procedures 2 11% 0%
Analytical procedures 24 25% 37%

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report®, other than the financial statements and our auditor's

report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report'®. Qur opinion on the
financial staterments does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowtedge abtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify
such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based an the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Qur opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 are unmadified
In our opinian, the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the

Companies Act 2006.
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the infarmation given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements,; and

« the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal reguirements.

Matter on which we are required fo report under the Companies Act 2006
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategtc report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nathing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion:

s adequate accounting recards have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for gur audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; cor

2 The term used to describe the annual report should be the same as that used by the directors.
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» the parent company financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration repert to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

= certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Carporate governance statement

We have reviewed the directors’ statement in relation to going concern, longer-term viability and that part of the Corporate
Governance Statement relating to the group’s compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for
our review by the Listing Rules.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate
Governance Statement is materially consistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit:

» the directors’ statement with regards ta the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any material
uhcertainties identified as set out on page 76;

» the directors’ explanation as to their assessment of the group’s prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the
period is appropriate as set out on page 68;

» the directar's statement on whether they have a reasonable expectation that the group will be able to continue in operation and
meet its liabilities as set out on page 76;

« the directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable as set out on page 40;
+ the board’s confirmation that it has carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and principal risks as set out on page 27,

+ the section of the annual report that describes the review of the effectiveness of risk management and internal controt systems
as set out on page 27; and

« the section describing the work of the audit commitiee as set cut on page 43.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities set out on page 67, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appiicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilifies for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes pur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with iSAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irrequiarities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The extent to which our procedures are
capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud. is detailed below:

+ We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks applicable to the Group and the parent company and the
sector in which they operate. We determined that the following laws and regulations were most significant: UK-adopted
international accounting standards, the Companies Act 2006, the Listing Rules, the UK Comorate Governance Code and UK
corporate taxation laws.

* We obtained an understanding of how the Group and the parent company are complying with those legal and regulatory
frameworks by making inquiries of management and of the Group’s head of legal department. We corroborated our inquiries
through our review of board minutes and papers provided to the Audit Committee.

* \We assessed the susceptibility of the Group’s and the parent company’s financial statements to material misstatement,
including haw fraud might acour. Audit procedures performed by the Group engagement team included:

- identifying and assessing the design and implementation of controls maragement has in place to prevent and detect fraug;

— obtaining an understanding of how those charged with governance considered and addressed the potential for guerride of
controls or applied other inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process;
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— challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting estimates;
— identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any jeurnal entries pested with unusual account combinations; and
- assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

* These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud or
error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from
error and detecting irreguiarities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we
would become aware of it.

« The engagement partner assessed whether the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence and capabilities
to identify and recognise non-compliance with laws and regulations through an assessment of the engagement team’s:

- understanding of, and practical experience with, audit engagements of a similar nature and complexity, through appropriate
training and participation; and
— knowledge of the industry in which the Group and parent company operate.
« Team communications in respect of potential non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud included the potential for
fraud in revenue recognition through manipulation of deferred income. This is also reported as a key audit matter in the key

audit matters section of our report, where the matter and specific procedures performed in response to this matter are described
in more detail.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's
website at: www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Other matters which we are required to address
We were appointed by the Board on 23 November 2022 on to audit the financial staterments for the year ending 30 June 2023. Our
total uninterrupted period of engagement is 5 years, covering the years ended 30 June 2019 to 30 June 2023.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC'’s Ethical Standard were not provided to the group or the parent company and we
remain independent of the group and the parent company in conducting our audit.

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit committee.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone ather than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

S
P

S

Sergio Cardoso

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thorntor UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London

22 September 2023
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Notes £000 £000
Continuing aperations
Revenue 3 123,497 121,028
Operating expenses before amortisation of intangibles excluding computer software,
impairment and adjusting items {99,391) {99,407
Impairment of property, plant and equipment _— (597
mortisation of intangible assets excluding computer software 4b (2,381) (2,368
djusting items 4b (147) (66)
Operating expenses 5 (101,918) (102,438)
Other income — gain on disposal of subsidiaries 10 2,212 16,328
Other income — gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment —_ 1,289
Other income — net gain on financing activities —_ 840
Operating profit 23,790 37,048
Finance income 6 478 113
Finance expense 6 {246} (1,041)
Profit before tax 24,022 36,120
Taxation 7 (3,827) {3,295)
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent 20,195 32,825
Earnings per share:
Basic (p) g 22.94 37.46
Diluted (p} 9 22.38 36.98

The notes on pages 84 to 114 are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

£'000 £000

Profit for the year 20,195 32,825

Other comprehensive {expense)/income:

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to the income statement

FCurrency translation differences (991) 2,353

FFair value movements of net investment hedges, net of tax —_— {193)

Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year, net of tax (991) 2,160

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the parent 19,204 34,985

Items in the statement above are disclosed net of tax. The income tax relating to each compaonent of other comprehensive income

is disclosed in note 7. The notes on pages 84 to 114 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance sheets
as at 30 June 2023

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
Nates £00a £00a £000 £000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 11 60,561 61,128 — —_
Intangible assets 12 5,734 9,427 — —
Property, plant and equipment 13 7,015 6,876 3,384 4,108
Investment in subsidiaries 14 — — 49,420 49 420
Deferred consideration receivable 1,152 1,448 — —
Deferred tax assets 18 825 1,041 845 504
75,387 79,820 53,649 54,032
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 27,391 27,097 114,857 118,741
Deferred consideration receivable 752 250 351 —
Current tax assets — 1,262 — —
Cash and cash equivalents 42173 19,785 27,483 15,734
Assets of disposal group held for safe — 1,450 — _
70,316 49 844 142,691 134 475
Total assets 145,703 129,764 196,340 188,507
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 {55,966) (50,258) {66,510) (53,314)
Lease liabilities 21 (975) (648) (202) (118)
Current tax liabilities (44) —_— {170) {170)
Provisions 22 {307) (307) — —
Liabilities of disposal group held for sale — (1,332) — —

(57,292) _ (52,545) (66,882)  (53,602)

Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities 21 (6,235) {6,862} {4,445) (6,107)
Deferred tax liabilities 18 (607) (2,040) — —
Provisions 22 (921) (1,228) —_ —
(7,763) (10,130) {4,445) (6,107)
Total liabilities {65,055) {62,675) (71,327) (59,709)
Net assets 80,648 67,089 125,013 128,798
Equity
Share capital 19 4,408 4,391 4,408 4381
Share premium 19 45,553 45 553 45,553 45 553
Treasury and ESOT reserves 19 (786) (1,093) (30) (183)
Share based payments reserve 2,635 2,141 2,635 2,141
Translation reserve 3,431 4422 — —
Retained earnings 25,407 11,675 72,447 76,806
Total equity 80,648 57.089 125,013 128,758

Wilmingten pic, the parent company, recorded a profit of £2 014,000 (2022: £14,959,000) during the year.

The ncotes an pages 84 to 114 are an integral part of these consolidated financial staternents. The financial statements on pages 78
to 114 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board and signed on their behalf on 22 September 2023.

Mart: Mibarr A Millward
Mark Milner Guy Millward
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Registered number: 03015847
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Statements of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Share capital,
share premium,
treasury shares

Share based

and ESOT shares payments Translation Retained
(nate 19) reserve reserve earnings Total equity
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £000

Group
At 1 July 2021 48,904 1,390 2,069 {15,696) 36,667
Profit for the year — —_ —_ 32,825 32,825
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year — — 2,353 (193) 2,160

48,904 1,350 4,422 16,936 71,652
Transactions with owners:
Dividends paid — — — (5,492) (5,492)
Performance share plan awards vesting settled via
ESOT 84 (105) —_ 21 —
ESQOT share purchases {371) — —_ — (371)
Sale of treasury shares 49 — —_ — 49
Purchase of treasury shares {154) — — — (154)
Issue of share capital 11 — _ —_ 11
Issue of share premium 328 —_ — —_ 328
Save As You Eam options settlement — (180) — 152 (28)
Share based payments — 1,036 — _ 1,036
Tax on share based payments — — — 58 58
At 30 June 2022 48,851 2,141 4,422 11,675 67,089
Profit for the year — — —_ 20,195 20,195
Other comprehensive expense for the year — — (991) — (991)

48,851 2141 3431 31,870 86,293
Transactions with owners:
Dividends paid —_ — — (7,482) (7,.462)
Issue of share capital 17 — — — 17
Performance share plan awards vesting — (717) —_ 354 137
Save As You Earn options setllement via ESOT 154 (11) —_ (16) 127
Save As You Earn options settlement via treasury
shares 153 _ — (64) 89
Share based payments — 1,222 — —_ 1,222
Tax on share based payments — — — 225 225
At 30 June 2023 49,175 2,635 3,431 25,407 80,648
Wilmington plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023
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Share capital,
share premium Share based
and treasury payments Retained
shares (note 19) reserve earnings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Company

At 1 July 2021 49,527 1,390 67,198 118,115
Praofit for the year — — 14,959 14,959
49,527 1,390 82,157 133,074

Transactions with owners:
Dividends paid — — (5,492) (5,492)
Perfermance share plan awards vesting settled via ESOT —_ (105) 21 84)
Sale of treasury shares 49 — — 49
Purchase of treasury shares (154) — — (154)
Issue of share capital 11 — — 11
Issue of share premium 328 — - 328
Save As You Earn options settlement —_ (180) 152 (28)
Share based payments — 1,036 — 1,036
Tax on share based payments — — 58 58
At 30 June 2022 49,761 2,141 76,896 128,798
Profit for the year — — 2,014 2014
49,761 2,141 78,910 130,812

Transactions with owners:
Dividends paid — — (7,462) (7.462)
Issue of share capital 17 — —_ 17
Performance share plan awards vesting — (717) 854 137
Save As You Earn options settlement via ESOT — (11} (18) {27)
Save As You Earn options setlement via treasury shares 153 — (64) 89
Share based payments - 1,222 —_ 1,222
Tax on share based payments — — 225 225
At 30 June 2023 49,931 2,635 72,447 125,013

The nates on pages 84 to 114 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Cash flow statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Group Company
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 2623 30 June 2022 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Notes £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from/(used in) operations before adjusting items 26 33,205 24 570 19,331 {8,715)
Cash flows for adjusting items — operating activities (375) {342) {375) {(342)
Cash flows from tax on share based payments {2) (4) (2) (4)
Cash generated from/{used in) operations 32,828 24,224 18,954 (7,061)
Interest received/(paid) 344 (479) 324 (318)
Tax paid (3,268) {3,397) {2,906) (2,393}
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 29,904 20,348 16,372 (9,772}
Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of subsidiaries net of cash 10 1,549 22,792 —_ —_
Proceeds from sale of group entity _ —_ 2,286 23,345
Deferred consideration received 250 250 — —
Cash flows for adjusting items — investing activities (6) (43) (6) (43)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (461) (440) —_ —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 13 3,493 — 3,439
Purchase of intangible assets {595) (1.292) — —
Net cash generated from investing activities 750 24,760 2,280 26,741
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to owners of the parent (7.462) (5,492) (7,462) (5,492)
Cash received from sale of shares for share vesting 573 340 573 340
Share issuance costs (14) (28) {14) {28)
Purchase of shares by ESOT — (371) — —
Payment of lease liabilities (2,108} {3,752) _ —
Cash flows for adjusting items — proceeds on disposal of interest
rate swap — 1,243 — 1,243
Decrease in bank loans —_ {21,198) — —
Net cash used in financing activities {8,012) (29,258) {6,903) (3,837)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents, net of bank
overdrafts 21,642 15,850 11,749 13,032
Cash and cash equivalents, net of bank averdrafts at beginning
of the year 20,543 3,730 15,734 2,702
Exchange {loss)/gain on cash and cash equivalents {12) 205 —_ —_
Cash classified as held for sale — 758 — —
Cash and cash equivalents, net of bank overdrafts at end of
the year 42,173 20,543 27,483 15,734
Reconciliation of net cash
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 19,785 7,374 15,734 2,702
Cash classified as held for sale 758
Bank overdrafts at beginning of the year _ (3,644) — —
Bank loans at beginning of the year — (20,960) — —
ILease liabilities at beginning of the year (7.510) {10,742) {6,225) (8,963
Net cash/{debt) at beginning of the year 13,033 {27,972) 9,509 (6,261
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents, net of bank
overdrafts 21,630 16,813 11,749 13,032
Net repayment in bank loans _— 21,198 — —
Exchange loss on bank loans —_ {238) —_ —
Movement in lease liabilities 300 3,232 1,578 2,738
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 42173 19,785 27,483 15,734
Cash classified as held for sale at end of the year —_ 758 — —
Lease liabilities at end of the year {7,210) (7,510} {4,647) (6,225
Net cash at end of the year 34,963 13,033 22,836 9,509

The notes on pages 84 to 114 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

General information
The Company is a public company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The address of its registered office is 10
Whitechapel High Street, London E1 8QS.

The Company is listed on the Main Market on the London Stock Exchange. The Company is a provider of data, information, education
and training in the global Governance, Risk and Compliance (GRC’) markets.

1. Statement of accounting policies
The significant accounting policies appiied in preparing the financial statements are outlined below. These policies have been
consistently applied for all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

a) Basis of preparation
The Group and Company consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.

The Group have taken the Section 408 exemption and therefore not included the Company income staternent.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except in respect of certain financial
instruments that have been measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Sterling, the functional
currency of Wilmington plc, the parent company. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000) except where
otherwise indicated.

Pursuant to Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company’s own income statement and statement of other comprehensive
income are hot presented separately in the Company financial statements, but they have been approved by the Board.

Going concem

Management prepared forecasts for the assessment pericd to provide a ‘base case’ scenario, considered to reflect the most likely
outcome based on detailed analysis of current trading, expected future trends, and potential impact of known risks. The results of
this base case scenario modeiling demonstrate adequate resources to continue in operational existence and meet liabilities as they
fall due at all relevant testing dates. The subsequent analysis focussed on applying the ‘reverse stress test’ to the base case in order
to demonstrate the conditions under which a threat to business continuity could materialise and its impact.

The Group has also performed a detailed analysis to support the use of the geing concern basis in preparing its consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2023, covering an assessment period to 30 September 2024,

Going concem assessment process

Management prepared forecasts for the assessment period to provide a ‘base case’ scenario, considered to reflect the most likely
outcome based on detailed analysis of current trading, expected future trends, and potential impact of known risks. The results of
this base case scenario modelling demanstrate adequate resources to continue in operational existence and meet liabilities as they
fall due at all relevant testing dates. The subsequent analysis focussed on applying ‘reverse stress testing' to the base case to
demonstrate the conditions under which a threat to business centinuity could materialise.

All scenarios modelled in the stress testing exercise demonstrated that the Group remains in a net cash position throughout the going
concern period, and it is therefore ot considerad plausible for the Group to be in a scenario where it was unable to meet its liquidity
needs. The review therefore focussed on other potential scenarios that would create a going concern risk. The reverse stress testing
exercise demonstrated that there would need to be a significant and sustained drop in the Group's profitability in combination with an
associated demand for cash, that will create a shift towards a net debt position. To determine the likelihood of this scenario occurring,
extreme downside assumptions were applied to the base case as follows:

+ cancellation of flagship events;
= significant custamer disruption causing material revenue loss; and
+ significant inflationary pressures and supply disruption with associated material cost impact.

The application of these downside assumptions did not trigger a net debt scenario at any relevant testing date. To gain further
assurance over this conclusion, it has however, considered a range of mitigative actions that could be applied to protect the Group’s
position as follows:

- reduce controllable costs, for example discretionary reward, recruitment freezes and travel restrictions;
+ optimise working capital by negotiating longer payment terms whilst cantinuing to pay suppliers in full;
= limit capital expenditure on new product develocpment; and

» implement strategic action in respect of the Group’s asset base.

Based on the assessment performed, tagether with the perfarmance of the Group to date in the financial year ended 30 June 2023,
the Directors consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence and meet its liabilities as they fall
due over the going concern assessment period. Accerdingly the Directors have concluded that it was appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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b) New standards and interpretations
There was no material impact from the adoption of any new standards or interpretations in the year ended 30 June 2023, including:

Effective for
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards accounting
(IFRS/AS) Description periods starting after
Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Reference to the Conceptual 1 January 2022
Combinations Framework
Amendments to IAS 16 Propenty, Plant  Proceeds before intended use 1 January 2022
and Equipment
Amendment to IAS 37 Provisions, Cast of fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

New standards and inferpretalions not yet effective
Amended standards and interpretations not yet effective are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2024,

¢) Critical accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported for income and expenses during the year and that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities at the reporting date.
At the 2023 annual reporting date there are na critical accounting judgments ar significant estimation uncertainties.

Accounting judgments and significant estimation uncertainties have been considered in relation to climate change including the risks
identified on pages 34 to 35. Management considered any impact on forward looking information and estimates such as those used
in going concern and viability, the carrying value of assets including goodwill, and the useful economic lives of assets. No material
impact has been identified. Management will continue to regularly assess judgments and estimation uncertainties in relation to climate
change.

Goodwill and inlangibie assets

Management makes estimates in measuring the carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets. in considering whether goodwill
and intangible assets have been impaired, the recoverable amount of cash generating units has been determined based on value
in use calculations. These calculations require management to estimate future cash flows, a long term growth rate and an
appropriate discount rate. The sensitivity of the carrying amount of goodwill to these variables is considered in note 11.

Tax

Management make judgements as to whether certain tax deductions claimed will be allowable when tax authorities review tax
filings. Some legislation is hard to interpret and practicai application of legislation will vary based on precise circumstances. The
group has made claims based on tax advice from advisors in each jurisdiction where it is required to file tax retums and the
outcome of these claims bears a degree of uncertainty until review periods are complete. Significant adjustments to tax charges in
future periods are therefore possible depending en the outcome of tax authorities’ reviews.

d) Basis of consolidation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements incorporate the results and net assets of Wilmington plc and all its subsidiary
undertakings made up to 30 June each year. Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power gver the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consoclidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group.

They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used inta line with those used by the Group. All inter-group transactions, balances,
income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation; however, for the purposes of segmental reporting, internal arm’s length
recharges are included within the appropriate segments.

e) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is applied in accounting for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date. Goodwill arising on acquisition ts recognised as an asset and
measured at cost, representing the excess of the aggregate of the consideration, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the fair values of
the identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition. The consideration is measured at fair value, which is the aggregate of
the fair values of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred or assumed and the equity instruments issued in exchange for control of
the acquiree.

f) Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives and property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When an impairment test is performed, the recoverable
amount of the asset is assessed and its carrying amount is reduced to that amount if lower, and any impairment losses are recognised
in the income statement. The recoverable amount is the higher of the value in use and of the fair value less costs to seli, where the
value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset.

if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases due to a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to
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the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. The reversal of an impaimment loss
is recognised in the income statement.

Goodwill is not amortised, but it is reviewed for impairment at least annually. Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units (CGUs")
for the purpose of impairment testing, sc that the value in use is determined by reference to the discaunted cash flows of the CGU.
The cash flows considered are the expected pre-tax cash flows of the CGU, for projections over a three year period extrapolated
using estimated long term grawth rates. The recoverable amount of the CGU, as for any asset, is the higher of the value in use and
the fair value less costs to sell. If a CGU is impaired, the impairment losses are allocated firstly against goodwill, and then on a pro-
rata basis against intangible and other assets. An impairment of goodwill is not reversed.

g} Foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary ecanomic
environment in which the entity operates {the 'functional currency’). The consclidated financial statements are presented in Sterling,
which is the Company’s functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setflement of transactions and the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at period end exchange rates are recognised in the income statement.

On consolidation, assets and liabilities of foreign undertakings are translated into Sterling at year end exchange rates. The results of
foreign undertakings are transiated into Sterling at average rates of exchange for the year (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effects of the rates prevailing cn the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
transiated at the dates of the transactions). Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation are recognised directly in a separate
compenent of equity, the translation reserve.

In the event of the disposal of an undertaking with assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency, the cumulative translation
difference in the translation reserve that is associated with the undertaking is charged or credited to the gain or loss on disposal
recognised in the income statement.

Further information is provided in the financial instruments accounting policy in relaticn to loans and borrowings in foreign currencies
that are designated as a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation,

In preparing the Group’s financial statements consideration has been given to the impact of both physical and transition climate
related risks, as described in the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) section on page 36.

Climate scenario analysis was used as a tool to identify and assess a potential range of future outcomes, by capturing different
assumptions about policies and physical climate conditions.

There is inherent uncertainty over the assumptions used within these scenariog and how they will impact the Group’s operations,
cash flows and profitability.

The climate-related estimates and assumptions have been applied primarily to going concern, impaimment of non-financial assets,
property plant and equipment, indefinite life intangible assets and provisions.

h) Revenue
Revenue is measured at the transaction price and represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal
course of business, net of discounts, VAT and cther sales related taxes.

The Group's revenue comprises different types of product and services across the two divisions as follows:

- Subscription income for online services, information and journals is nomally received in advance and is therefore recorded as
deferred revenue on the balance sheet. Revenue is then recognised evenly over time as the perfarmance cbligations are satisfied
over the term of the subscriptian. These revenue streams relate to one performance obligation that is settled over time using the
outputs method on a straight line basis as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit from the service.

» Revenue is recognised on the sale of training material, research projects and similar publications once the product has been
delivered to the customer. These revenue streams relate to one performance abligation that is settled at a point in time as
Wilmingten has a right to payment ance control of the asset i1s transferred to the customer.

= Advertising in hard copy publications is recegnised on the issue of the related publication. This revenue stream relates to one
petformance obligation that is settled at a point in time as Wilmington has a right to payment once the advertising is published in
the hard copy publication.

+  Marketing and advertising services revenues are recognised over the period of the advertising subscription or over the period
when the marketing service is provided. When payment is received in advance it is recorded on the balance sheet as deferred
revenue and revenue is then recognised over time as the performance aobligations are satisfied over the term aof the contract.
These revenue streams relate to one performance obligation that is settled gver time using the outputs method on a straight line
basis as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit from the service.

= Revenue from the licence of static data reports is recognised once the data has been delivered to the customer. This revenue
stream relates to one performance obligation that is settled at a point in time as Wilmingten has a right to payment once control
of the asset is transferred to the customer.

* Revenue from the licence of static data reports where the customer has access to the data for a finite period of time and the
reports have significant updates during that period is recognised over the pericd of the contract. When payment is received in
advance it is recarded on the balance sheet as deferred revenue and revenue is then recognised over time as the performance
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ohligations are satisfied over the term of the contract. This revenue stream relates to one performance obligation that is settled
over time using the outputs method on a straight line basis as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit
from the service.

+ Revenue from licences to dynamic data that is updated on an ongoing basis is recognised over the period of the contract. When
payment is received in advance it is recorded on the balance sheet as deferred revenue and revenue is then recognised over
time as the performance obligations are satisfied over the term of the contract. This revenue stream relates to one performance
cbligation that is settled over time using the outputs method on a straight line basis as the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefit from the service.

» Revenue from training courses where the training is delivered as an ongoing process i1s recognised on a straight line basis over
the period that the training is provided to the customer. When payment is received in advance it is recorded on the halance sheet
as deferred revenue and revenue is then recognised over time as the performance obligations are satisfied over the term of the
contract. This revenue stream relates to one performance obligation that is settled over time using the outputs method on a
straight line basis as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit from the service.

*  Revenue from training courses where the Group provides in-house training to corporate customers is recognised on completion
of the training course. This revenue stream relates to one perfarmance obligation that is settled at a point in time as Wilmington
has a right to payment once the service has been delivered to the customer.

« Revenue from the memberships of professional organisations is recegnised an a straight line basis over the period of membership.
When payment is received in advance it is recorded on the balance sheet as deferred revenue and revenue is then recognised
over time as the performance obligations are satisfied over the term of the contract. This revenue stream relates to one
performance cbligation that is settled over time using the outputs method on a straight line basis as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit from the service.

Revenue from consulting projects is recognised on delivery of the work. . This revenue stream relates to one performance
obligation that is settled over time using the outputs method on a stage of completion basis, as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit from the service.

» Event revenue (including revenue from conferences) typically includes attendee fees, event sponsorship and advertising and s
recognised when the event is held. Customers and sponsors are often required to pay in advance before commencement of the
event, and these advance receipts are recoghised as deferred revenue on the balance sheet from the point at which they become
due. This revenue stream relates to one performance obligation that is settled at a point in time as Wilmington has a right o
payment once the service has been delivered to the customer.

Deferred revenue represents consideration received for performance obligations not yet satisfied, the revenue deferred at the current
financial year end is expected to be recognised in the foliowing financial year.

i) Operating expenses

In accordance with IAS 1 paragraph 102, expenses are presented in the accounts based on their nature. The nature of our operating
expenses is that they split into costs to fulfil revenue contracts and administrative costs and therefore are shown in this split in the
financial statements. Distribution costs are not separately identified due to the digital nature of the Group’s products as they are
censidered immaterial. Fulfilment costs are associated directly with the production of a product, event or service and are charged to
the income statement as incurred. At each reporting date a prepayment is recognised for any third-party costs which are paid for in
advance of the relevant event being run except in relation to marketing costs. Administrative costs are additional operational costs
that are not directly associated with the production of a product, event or service. These include expenses relating to central
administrative and management functions and are expensed to the income statement as incurred. Material items within operating
expenses are disclosed in the financial statements and include staff costs, depreciation and amortisation and fulfilment costs.

j) Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Executive Board of Directors (the
‘Board’) which is considered as the Group’s chief operating decision maker and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, The two divisions (Training & Education and Inteliigence) are the Group’s segments and
generate all of the Group's revenue. The Board considers the business from both a geographic and product perspective.
Geographically, management considers the performance of the Group between the UK, Europe (excluding the UK), North America
and the Rest of the World.

k) Adjusting items

The Group's income statement separately identifies adjusting items. Such items are those that in the Directors' judgment are one off
in nature and need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size and incidence. In determining whether an item or transaction
should be classified as an adjusting item, the Directors consider guantitative as well as gualitative factors such as the frequency,
predictability of occurrence and significance.

This focus on quantitative and qualitative factors may result in the classification of an item as adjusting, where one of apparently
similar nature is not. The Group distinguishes between restructuring costs that are recurring and those that relate to one off or
transformational Group programmes that impact many operations. Recurring restructuring costs that are incurred in the normal course
of business are recorded as part of the Group's underlying trading results within profit before tax. Restructuring costs that are one off
and individually material or relate to programmes linked to the Group’s wider transfommation and require approval at executive level
are disclosed separately iis the Consolidated income statement. When these adjusting items relate to a transformational programme
to the business, the cost may apply to multiple years.
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This is consistent with the way that financial performance is measured by management and reported to the Board. Adjusting items
may nat be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies. Disclosing adjusted items separately provides additional
understanding of the performance of the Group.

) Current and deferred tax

Current and deferred tax is recognised as income or an expense and included in the income statement for the period, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in
other camprehensive income or equity, respectively.

The tax effect of adjusting items is caloulated by applying the relevant prevailing rate of taxation to the adjusting expense or income
to the extent it is taxable or tax deductible.

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company's subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected ta be paid to the tax autherities.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognitian of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss. Deferred tax is deterrnined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the
deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

m) Dividends

Dividend distributions are recognised in the consolidated financial statements when the shareholders' right to receive payment is
established. Final dividend distributions are recognised in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders, whilst interim
dividend distributions are recognised in the period in which they are declared and paid.

n) Intangibie assets
Intangible assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation.

Intangible assets are recorded at cost and are amortised through the income statement on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Their estimated useful lives depend on the classification of the assets as follows:

Computer software 20-33% per annum
Databases 8-20% per annum
Customer relationships ~ 8-33% per annum
Brands 5-20% per annum
Publishing rights and tittes 5-10% per annum

Computer software that is integral to a related item of hardware is classified as computer eguipment within property, plant and
equipment. Other computer software and internally developed software and databases are classified as intangible assets if they meet
the definition and recognition criteria set out in IAS 38. Costs associated with the production of internally developed software are
capitalised once it is probable that they will generate future economic benefits and satisfy the other criteria set outin IAS 38. Computer
software intangible assets (inciuding the cost of internally developed software and databases) are initially recognised at cost. They
are subsequently amortised through the income statement on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives up to five years.
Assets that are not in use at the reporting date (assets under development) are recognised at cost and amortisation commences
when those assets begin to generate economic benefit.

o) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the onginal purchase price of
the asset plus any costs of bringing the asset to its working condition fer its intended use. Depreciation is not provided on freehold
land. On other assets it is provided at the following annuai rates, on a straight line basis, in order to write down each asset to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

Land, freehoid and leasehold buildings (excluding freehaold land) 2—-10% per annum
Fixtures and fittings 10-33% per annum
Computer equipment 25-33% per annum
Motar vehicles 25% per annum

Leasehold improvements are included in land, freehold and leasehold buildings.
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Gains and losses arising on disposal are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
the income staterment. When the gain or loss arising on disposal is significant or material, it is disclosed separately on the income
statement within other income or expenses.

p) investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for any impairment in value.

q) Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets {(or disposat groups} are classified as held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell.

r} Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Group classifies its non-derivative financial assets as ‘amortised cost for the purposes of IFRS 9. Management determines the
classification at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

Loans and other receivables

Loans and other receivables are measured based on the Group’s business medel for managing the financial asset and its contractual
cash flow characteristics. Loans and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. They are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any expected credit losses, with changes in carrying
value recognised in the income statement.

Loans and other receivables are classified as current assets if they mature within twelve months of the reporting date, but are
otherwise classified as nan-current assets.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at the transaction price, which is usually the invoiced amount. They are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method (if the time value of maney is significant), less provision for expected credit
losses. Provisions are made specifically, where there is evidence of a risk of non-payment taking into account ageing, previous losses
experienced and general economic conditions.

The Group assesses for impairment using the expected credit losses model as required by IFRS 8. For trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from the initial recognition of the receivables.

The Group measures its trade receivables at amaortised cost for the purposes of IFRS 9 and are presented as current assets as all
collections are due in one year or less.

Cash and cash cquivaicnts

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, current balances with banks and similar institutions, and other short term highly
liguid investments which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and have original maturities of three months or less.
Cash and cash equivalents are offset against bank overdrafts and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts. Bank overdrafts are otherwise shown as borrowings within current liabilities
on the balance sheet. There were no averdrafts used for the year ended 30 June 2023.

The Group measures cash and cash equivalents at amortised cost for the purposes of IFRS 9.

Impairment of financial assels

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets carried at amortised
cost and debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income. Expected credit losses are updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk.

The expected credit loss is based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the financial
assets, general economic conditions and an assessment of the current and forecast conditions at the reporting date.

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, which is usually the invoiced amount. They are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method (if the time value of money is significant).

If due within twelve months or less, the trade or other payable is classified as a current liability. it is otherwise classified as a non-
current liability.

The Group measures trade and other payables at amortised cost for the purposes of IFRS 9.

Loans and other borrowings

Loans and other borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the amounts received net of transaction costs. They are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with changes in carrying value recognised in the income
staterment.

Further information is provided below in relation to loans and borrowings in foreign currencies that are designated as a hedge of a
net investment in a foreign operation.

Loans and other borrowings are classified as current liabilities if they mature within twelve months of the balance sheet date, but are
otherwise classified as non-current liabilities.
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The Group measures loans and other borrowings at amortised cost for the purposes of IFRS 9.

Financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group manages its capital and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. The Group makes use of derivative financial instruments if doing so reduces exposure to interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk,

To qualify far hedge accounting under IFRS 9, a financial instrument must be designated as a hedging instrument at inception, hedge
documentation must be prepared and the hedge must be expected to be effective using the hedge ratio. The effectiveness of the
hedge is then tested at each reporting date prospectively, and hedge accounting is continued if the hedge remains effective. Hedge
accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated or ne longer qualifies for hedge accounting,
or if the Group chooses to end the hedge relationship.

To the extent that the hedge is effective, changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments in cash flow
hedges and net investment hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income. Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

At the time the hedged item affects profit ar loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in equity is reclassified to the income
statement. If a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, any related gain or foss recognised in other comprehensive income
and equity Is transferred immediately to the income statement. [f the hedging relationship ceases to meet the effectiveness conditions,
hedge accounting is discontinued.

s) Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resuit of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be reguired to settle it. If the effect is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at an appropriate discaunt rate.

t) Retirement benefits
The Group does not operate a defined benefit pension scheme.

The Group contributes to defined contribution pension schemes for a number of employees. Contributions to these arrangements
are charged in the income statement in the peried in which they are incurred. The Group has na further payrent abligation once the
contributions have been paid.

u) Share based payments

The Group aperates an equity-settled, share based compensaticn plan, under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (share awards and options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of share awards and options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the share awards and options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market service and performance
vesting conditions (for example profitability and remaining as an employee of the entity over a specified time period). Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of share awards and options that are expected to vest. The total
amount expensed is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period aver which all of the specified existing conditions are to
be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of share awards and options that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to the share based payments reserve within equity.

The payment in lieu of dividend payable in connection with the grant of the share awards is considered an integral part of the grant
itself, and the charge will be treated as an eqguity-settled transaction. The cumulative share based payment charge held in reserves
is recycled into retained earnings when the share awards or options lapse or are exercised. The social security contributions payable
in connection with the grant of the share awards will be treated as a cash-settled transaction.

v) Leases
The Group recognises a night-of-use asset and corresponding liability at the date the leased asset is made available for use by the
Group.

The liabllity is measured at the present value of future lease payments over the lease term including fixed payments, in-substance
fixed payments, and variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. Lease
liabilities are remeasured to include any payments to be made under extension options which are reasonably certain to be exercised.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, where this rate cannot be determined an incremental
borrowing rate is used. The incremental borrowing rate is determined with reference to the rate that the lessee would pay to borrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value, in a similar economic environment, with similar terms and conditions, adjusted
for the country-specific risk of the lessee. The Group records an interest charge in respect of the lease liability over the lease term.

The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, based on the value of the initial measurement of the associated lease liability, adjusted
for any lease payments already made less any lease incentives received, initial direct costs incurred, and any dilapidation or
restoration costs required by the terms and conditions of the lease. The right-of-use asset is depreciated aver the term of the lease
on a straight hne basis, or if shorter, over the leased asset's useful economic life.

Lease liabilities are remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a change
in the estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or as appropriate, changes in the assessment
of whether a purchase or extension optian is reasonably certain to be exercised.

The Group recognises an expense in the Cansolidated income staterment in respect of short term leases (being those with an initial
term of twelve months or less) and leases of low-value items on a straight line basis over the life of the lease.
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w) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. The share premium reserve represents the amount paid to the Company by
shareholders above the nominal value of shares issued.

Where any Group cornpany purchases the Company’s equity share capital {'treasury shares’), the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders until
the shares are cancelled or reissued,

2. Measures of profit

Reconciliation to profit on continuing activities before tax

To provide shareholders with additional understanding of the trading performance of the Group, adjusted EBITA has been calculated
as profit before tax after adding back:

» impairment of property, plant and equipment;

+ amortisation of intangible assets excluding computer software;

« adjusting items (included in operating expenses),

+ other income — gain on disposal of subsidianes;

» otherincome — gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment;
other income — net gain an financing activities; and

« net finance income/expense.

Adjusted profit before tax, adjusted EBITA and adjusted EBITDA reconcile to profit on continuing activities before tax as follows:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

£000 £000

Profit before tax 24,022 36,120
Impairment of property, plant and equipment — 597
Amortisation of intangible assets excluding computer software 2,381 2,368
Adjusting items {included in operating expenses) 147 66
Other income - gain on disposal of subsidiaries {2,212) (16,329)
Other income — gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment — (1,289)
Other income — net gain on financing activities o (840)
Adjusted profit before tax 24,338 20,693
Net finance (income)/expense (232) 928
Adjusted operating profit (‘adjusted EBITA’) 24,106 21,621
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment included in operating expenses 2,321 2412
Amortisation of intangible assets — computer software 1,690 3,721
Adjusted EBITA before depreciation (‘adjusted EBITDA’) 28,117 27,754
Adjusted profit before tax 24,338 20,693
Remove operating profit from sold and closed businesses (212) {2,089)
Continuing adjusted profit before tax 24126 18,604
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3. Segmental information
In accordance with IFRS 8 the Group's operating segments are based on the operating results reviewed by the Executive Board,

which represants the chief aperating decision maker.

The Group's dynamic portfolio provides customers with a range of information, data, training and education solutions. The two
divisions (Training & Education and Intelligence) are the Group's segments and generate all of the Group's revenue. The Board
considers the business from both a geographic and product perspective. Geographically, management considers the performance
of the Group between the UK, Europe (excluding the UK), North America and the Rest of the World,

a) Business segments

Revenue Profit Revenue Profit
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 2023 30 June 2023 30 June 2022 30 June 2022
£000 £'000 £000 £600
Training & Education 64,872 16,066 61,464 15,988
Intelligence 58,625 13,258 59,564 11,359
Group total 123,497 29,324 121,028 27,357
Unallocated central overheads — (3,703) — {4,5086)
Share based payments - (1,515) — {1,230)
123,497 24,106 121,028 21,621
Impairment of property, plant and equipment — (597)
Amortisatioh of intangible assets excluding
computer software {2,381) (2,368)
Adjusting items (included in operating
expenses) (147) (66)
Gther income — gain on disposal of
subsidiaries 2,212 16,329
Other income — gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment — 1,289
Other income - net gain on financing activities — 840
Net finance income/(expense) 232 (928)
Profit before tax 24,022 36,120
Taxation (3,827) (3,295)
Profit for the financial year 20,195 32,825

There are no intra-segmental revenues which are material for disclosure. Unallocated central overheads represent central costs that
are not specifically allocated to segments. Total assets and liabilities for each reportabie segment are not presented, as such
information is not provided to the Beard.

b) Segmental information by geography
The UK is the Group's country of domicile and the Group generates the majerity of its revenue from external customers in the UK.
The geographical analysis of revenue is on the basis of the country of origin in which the customer is invoiced:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

£'000 £000

UK 70,573 64,320

USA 24,465 21,304

Eurcpe (excluding the UK) 19,224 25,809

Rest of the Warld 9,235 g 585

Total revenue 123,497 121,028

c) Timing of revenue recognition

The timing of the Group's revenue recognition is as follows:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

£000 £'900

Revenue from products and services transferred at a point in time 39,551 39725

Revenue from products and services transferred over time 83,946 81,303

Total revenue 123,497 121,028

During the year the Group recognised £31,405 000 of reverue that was held as a contract liability 30 June 2022 {2022: £30.124,000
related to amounts held at 30 June 2021}.
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4, Profit from continuing operations

a) Profit for the year from continuing operations Is stated after charging/{crediting):

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
£'000 E'000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — included in operating expenses 2321 2,412
Short term and low-value leases 94 114
Amortisation of intangible assets — computer software 1,690 3,721
Non-adjusting profit on dispesal of property, plant and equipment (36) (71
Share based payments (including social security costs) 1,515 1,230
Amortisation of intangible assets excluding computer software 2,381 2,368
Adjusting items (included in operating expenses) 147 66
Adjusting item ~ gain on disposal of subsidiaries {2,212) (16,329)
Adjusting item — gain on sale of property, plant and equipment — (1,289)
Adjusting item — net gain on financing activities — (840)
Research and development expenditure credit (200) (183)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment — 597
Fareign exchange loss 179 446
Fees payabie to the auditor for the audit of the Company and consolidated financial statements 153 107
Fees payable to the auditor and their associates for other services:
- The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 240 205
— Audit related other services 17 15
b) Adjusting ifems
The following items have been charged to the income statement during the year but are considered to be adjusting so are shown
separately:
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Expense relating to strategic activities 147 66
Other adjusting items {included in operating expenses) 147 686
Impairment of property, plant and equipment — 597
Amortisation of intangible assets excluding computer software 2,381 2,368
Total adjusting items {classified in profit before tax) 2,528 3,031
5. Operating expenses
Year ended 30 June 202] Year ended 30 June 2022
Fulfilment Fulfiiment
costs Administration Total cosls  Administration Total
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Operating expenses before
depreciation and amortisation 90,750 4630 95380 88,746 4 528 93,274
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 2,321 — 231 2412 —_ 2,412
Amortisation of intangible
assets — computer software 1,690 — 1,690 3,721 — 3,721
Qperating expenses before
amortisation of intangibles
excluding computer
software, impairment and
adjusting items 94,761 4630 99,391 94,879 4,528 99,407
Amortisation of intangible
assets — databases 184 — 194 187 — 187
Amortisation of intangible
assets — customer
relationships 1,059 — 1,059 1,016 — 1,016
Amartisation of intangible
assets — brands 683 — 683 660 — 660
Amortisaticn of intangible
assets — publishing rights
and titles 445 — 445 505 — 505
Impairment property, plant
and equipment (note 4b) — —_ — — 597 597
Other adjusting items (note
4b) — 147 147 66 66
Operating expenses 97,142 4,777 101,919 97,247 5,191 102,438

Wilmington plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023

93



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 170E7873-B454-4EA7-B371-35DD042E9327

Financial Statements — Wilmington plc 30 June 2023

6. Net finance income/(expense)

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Net finance income/{expense) comprise:
Interest receivable/(payable) on cash and cash equivalents/(bank
loans and overdrafts) 373 (748)
Unwinding of the discount on royally payments receivable 105 113
Interest on lease liabilities {246) {293)
232 {928)
7. Taxation
Year ended Year ended
30 June 33 June
2023 2022
£000 £'000
Current tax
UK corporation tax at current rates on UK profits for the year 3,263 2,817
Adjustments in respect of previous years (54) (870)
3,209 1,947
Foreign tax 1,634 969
Adjustments in respect of previous years 89 —_
Total current tax 4,932 2,916
Total deferred tax {1,105) 379
Taxation 3,827 3,295

Factors affecting the tax charge for the year:

The effective tax rate is lower (2022 lower) than the average rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20.5% (2022: 18.0%). The differences

are explained below:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

Profit before tax 24,022 36,120
Profit before tax multiplied by the average rate of corporation tax

in the year of 20.5% (2022: 19.0%) 4,925 6,863

Tax effects of:

Impairment property, plant and equipment —_— 13

Foreign tax rate differences 338 201

Adjustment in respect of previous years 35 (870)

Other items not subject to tax {366) (3,012)

Deferred tax UK intangibles and capital allowances movement {904) —

Effect on deferred tax of a change in the corporation tax rate (83) —_

Other deferred tax movements {118) —

Taxation 3,827 3,295

Deferred tax assets and liabiliies are measured at the rates that are expected to apply in the periods of the reversal.
The Company’s profits for this accounting year are taxed at an effective rate of 15.9% {2022: 9.1%).
Included in other comprehensive income is a tax charge of £nil (2022: credit of £45,000) refating to the net investment hedges.

The tax effect of adjusting items as disclosed in note 9 is a credit of £1,598,000 (2022: £1,050,000).
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8. Dividends
Amounts recognised as distributions to owners of the parent in the year:

Year ended  Year ended

30 June 30 June Year ended  Year ended
2023 2022 30 June 30 June
Pence Pence 2023 2022
per share per share E'000 £'000
Final dividends recognised as distributions in
the year 5.8 3.9 5,091 3,399
Interim dividends recognised as distributions
in the year 2.7 2.4 2,31 2,083
Total dividends paid 7,462 5,492
Final dividend proposed 7.3 5.8 6,410 5,070

9. Earnings per share
Adjusted earnings per share has been calculated using adjusted earnings calculated as profit after taxation attributable to owners of

the parent but before:

« impairment of property, plant and equipment;

= amartisation of infangible assets excluding computer software;

+ adjusting items (included in operating expenses);

+ other income — gain on disposal of subsidiaries;

+ other income — gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment; and
= other income - net gain on financing activities.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June
2023 2022
£°000 £000
Earnings from continuing operations for the purpose of basic
earnings per share 20,195 32,825
Add/(remove):
Impairment of property, plant and equipment — 597
Amortisation of intangible assets excluding computer software 2,381 2,368
Adjusting items (included in operating expenses) 147 66
Qther income — gain on disposal of subsidiaries {2,212) {16,329)
Other incame — gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment — (1,289)
Other income — net gain on financing activities -_ (840)
Tax effect of adjustments above and deferred tax {1,598) (1,050)
Adjusted earnings for the purposes of adjusted earnings per share 18,913 16,348
2023 2022
MNumber Number
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of
basic and adjusted eamings per share 88,027,119 87,632,022
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Future exercise of share awards and options 2,217,174 1,126,918
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of
diluted and adjusted diluted earnings per share 90,244,293 88,758,940
Basic earnings per share 22.94p 37.46p
Diluted earnings per share 22.38p 36.88p
Adjusted basic earnings per share {'adjusted earnings per share’) 21.49p 18.66p
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 20.96p 18.42p
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10. Disposals
On 30 December 2022 the Group disposed of its Spanish insurance business, Wilmington Inese SL., for a consideration of
£2,637,131 (€3,000,000) and recognised a gain on disposal of £2,211,523 presented within other income.

Wilmington received cash of £2,285,714 (€2,600,000) on 2nd January 2023 and the remaining £351,417 (€400,000) is payable on
30 December 2023.

The disposal was executed by way of the sale of 100% of the equity shares and as at the disposal date, the net assets of
Wilmington Inese SL. were as follows:

£000
Intangibles 34
Property, plant and eguipment 236
Deferred tax asset 121
Trade and other receivables 536
Cash and cash equivalents 737
Trade and other payables (814)
Deferred income (525)
Lease liability 173}
Net assets disposed 152
Directly attributable costs of disposal 405
Recycling of deferred foreign exchange loss (132)
Gain gn disposal 2,212
Fair value of consideration 2,637
Satisfied by:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,286
Deferred consideration 351

2,637

The disposals were executed in line with the Group's strategy to simplify its structure and to focus attention on businesses that
operate in the GRC markets. Wilmington Inese SL. was classified as continuing operations until the date of disposal due to it not
being a separate major line of business or geographical area.
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11. Goodwill

£000
Cost
At 1 July 2021 108,096
Disposals (8,935)
Exchange translation differences 1,532
At 30 June 2022 100,693
Exchange translation differences (567)
At 30 June 2023 100,126
Accumulated impairment
At 1 July 2021 42,263
Disposals (2,698)
At 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2023 39,565
Net book amount
At 30 June 2023 60,561
At 30 June 2022 61,128
At 30 June 2021 65,833

Goodwill arising on business combinations is not amortised but reviewed for impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently if
there are indications that goodwill may be impaired. Determining whether the carrying value of acquired goodwill is recoverable is a
significant judgment given the material nature of the gocdwill balance and the significant assumptions underpinning management’s
impairment assessment of the Group’s cash generating units (‘CGUs'). The Group identifies its CGUs on a business operation and
geographic level. This is consistent with the way the chief operating decision maker reviews performance.

Annual impairment review

The recoverable amaount for each CGU has been determined using value in use calculations. These calculations use the post-tax
future cash flow forecasts covering a three year period based on Board approved budgets. Cash flow projections in these budgets
have been based on growth assumptions that reflect anticipated market trends in the range of industries served by the brands within
each CGU. Overall these projections assume stable profit margins reflecting market presence expansion, whilst managing the impact
of projected inflationary and recessionary pressures. Post-tax cash flows beyond the three year period are then extrapolated using
an estimated long term growth rate of 2.0% (2022: 2.0%), providing a ‘base case’ scenario for the purpose of the impairment review.
Key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding discount rates, three year cash flow forecasts and long term
growth rates.

As part of the impairment assessment all CGU’s indicated significant levels of headroom with the exception of Compliance Week,
which resulted in an impairment of £43k. Management have considered this to be immaterial for adjustment, therefore no impairment
charge has been recognised for the year ending 30 June 2023,

Discount rates

Management have opted to use the post- tax discount rates for discounting the value in use cashflows due to the linkage with
observable market data. A reconciliation has been performed to ensure the same outcome is principally reached when using either
the pre-tax or post-tax rate approach. The pre-tax and post-tax discount rates have been calculated as follows:

Pre-tax discount rates Post-tax discount rates

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

30 June 2023 30 June 2022 30 June 2023 30 June 2022

Territory % % % %
United Kingdom 18.4 15.2 13.8 15.2
United States 19.0 15.7 13.7 15.7
Spain — 15.4 —_ 15.4
France 18.7 15.8 13.4 15.8

Post-tax discount rates are calculated on a company specific participant basis, movements in the post-tax discount rates for CGUs
since the prior year are driven by changes in company specific market-based inputs. Management considers the peost-tax discount
rates to be calculated using appropriate methodology. The rates are in in line with its peers, and the Board views the rates as
accurately reflecting the return expected by a market participant.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The Group has performed sensitivity testing to assess the impact of changes in assumptions on the value in use of each CGU. The
sensitivity analysis performed assessed the impact of pessimistic but reasonably possible changes to future cash flows, long term
growth rates and pre-tax discount rates. All CGUs apart from Compliance Week retained significant headroom even in these
sensitised calculations, leading to the conclusion that there is no realistic change of assumption that would result in the carrying value
to exceed its recoverable amount. Below are the calculated sensitivities for Compliance Week.

« |f the post-tax WACC rate increased/ decreased by 1 percentage point, the overall impairment would respectively increase
by £0.4m/ result in headroom of £0.5m

« If long term growth rate was increased/ decreased by 2% with a lower/ higher post-tax WACC rate movement of 1%, will
respectively result in headroom of £1.6m or an increase in impairment of £1.0m

e If the VIU cashflows were reduced by 15% each year, the overall impairment would increase by £0.8m. Equally a 15%
increase in cashflows would result in headroom of £0.8m
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Cash generating units
The following table details the net book value of goodwill allocated to each CGL:

348 June 30 June
2023 2022
ceu £/000 £000
UK Healthcare 11,885 11,885
Axco and Pendragon 11,150 11,150
Accountancy 8,307 8,307
Legai 6,796 6,796
Compliance 7,972 7,972
Compliance Week 4,719 4,941
FRA 7,341 7.686
Business Intelligence 2,391 2,391
60,561 61,128
12, Intangible assets
Computer Customer Publisting
software Databases relationships Brands rights and titles Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £0600 £000
Cost
At 1 July 2021 15,138 13,765 9,156 9,948 9,685 57,692
Additions 1,292 — — —_ — 1,292
Assets transferred to held for sale (245) —_ — — — (245)
Write-off of fully amortised intangible
assets (9,986) — — — — (9,986)
Disposals (51) — — — — {51}
Exchange translation differences 103 105 466 275 — 948
At 30 June 2022 6,251 13,870 9,622 10,223 9,685 49,651
Additions 595 — — — — 595
Disposals (1,213) — —_ — —_ (1.213)
Exchange translation differences (48) {39) (173) (99) — (359)
At 30 June 2023 5,585 13,831 9,449 10,124 9,685 48,674
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 July 2021 10,329 13,312 5,329 6,761 7,961 43692
Charge for the year 3721 187 1.016 660 505 6,088
Assets transferred to held for sale (210} — — _ — (210}
Write-off of fully amortised intangibie
assets (9,986) — — — - {9,986)
Disposals (26} —_ — — — {26)
Exchange translation differences 48 82 334 201 — 665
At 30 June 2022 3,876 13,581 6,679 7,622 8.466 40,224
Charge far the year 1,690 194 1,059 683 445 4,071
Disposals (1,058) — — - —_ (1.056)
Exchange translation differences (25) {32) (144) (98) — (299)
At 30 June 2023 4,485 13,743 7,594 8,207 8,911 42,940
Net book amount
At 30 June 2023 1,100 38 1,855 1,917 774 5734
At 30 June 2022 2,375 289 2,943 2,601 1,219 9,427
At 30 June 2021 4,809 453 3,827 3,187 1,724 14,000

The potential physical risks ansing from climate change to the Group's key operaticnal sites in the shert to medium term have been
assessed and no assets have been impaired as a result of this exercise.
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13. Property, plant and cquipment

Right-of-use
Land, freehold assets
and leasehold Fixtures and Computer Motor Land and
buildings fittings equipment vehicles buildings Total
Group £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 July 2021 3,482 3,122 4,050 Kl 13,278 24,249
Additions —_ 169 271 — 464 904
Disposals _ (280) (127) (208) {64) (677)
Assets transferred to held for sale (67) (101) (88) — (205) (461)
Assets transferred from held for sale 162 — — — — 162
Exchange translation differences — 22 47 — 50 119
At 30 June 2022 3,577 2,932 4,153 111 13,623 24,296
Additions - 250 21 — 396 857
Lease modifications —_ —_ — — 1,529 1,529
Disposals (24) (754) (2,206} {(111) {567) (3.662)
Exchange translation differences — {10) (6) — (8) (24)
At 30 June 2023 3,553 2,418 2,152 —_ 14,873 22,996
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2021 1,856 2,541 3,645 203 6,727 14,972
Charge for the year 353 236 342 38 1,443 2,412
Disposals — (279) (123) {156) (60) (618)
Impairment 597 — — — — 597
Assets transferred to held for sale (34) (64) (54) — (38) (190)
Assets transferred from held for sale 142 — - - — 142
Exchange translation differences — 16 37 — 52 105
At 30 June 2022 2,914 2,450 3,847 85 8,124 17,420
Charge for the year 352 199 321 12 1,437 2,321
Disposals (29) (759) (2,198) (97) (567) (3,650)
Exchange translation differences -— (39} {33) — (38) {110}
At 30 June 2023 3,237 1,851 1,937 — 8,956 15,981
Net book amount
At 30 June 2023 316 567 215 — 5,917 7,015
At 30 June 2022 663 482 306 26 5,399 8,876
At 30 June 2021 1,626 581 405 114 6,551 9,277

The potential physical risks arising from climate change to the Group’s key operational sites in the short to medium term have been
assessed and no assets have been impaired as a result of this exercise,

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is charged to operating expenses within the income statement.

Right-of-use
assets
Land and
puildings
Company £000
Cost
At 1 July 2021, 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2023 9,889
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2021 5,056
Charge for the year 725
At 30 June 2022 5,781
Charge for the year 724
At 30 June 2023 6,505
Net book amount
At 30 June 2023 3,384
At 30 June 2022 4,108
At 30 June 2021 4,833
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14. Investments in subsidiaries

Shares in

subsidiary

undertakings

Company £'000
Net book value as at 1 July 2022 and 30 June 2023 49,420

The following table gives brief details of the entities controiled and included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group at
30 June 2023. Except where indicated, all of the entities are incorporated in and principally operated in the UK. Subsidiaries
marked * are directly owned by Wilmington plc; all other subsidiaries are indirectly owned. Subsidiaries marked ** are companies
limited by guarantee, have ho ordinary shares and are controlled indirectly by Wilmington plc. Subsidiaries marked + have claimed
audit exemptions for the year to 30 June 2023 under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006. During the year the Group
disposed of the following subsidiary company: Wilmington Inese SL. Wilmington Publishing & Information Ltd held the investment in
this company. During the year there were no additions, impairments or dissolutions during the year (2022: nil),

Name of company UK company Registered Business Percentage
number address awned

APM International SAS (incorporated and n/a AVE News information services to the 100

operates in France) healthcare industry

APM Media SARL (incerporated and operatesn/a AVE News information services to the 100

in France) healthcare industry

Axco Insurance Information Services Limited+03073807  WCH Provision of international compliance 100

and regulatory information far the
global insurance industry
Bond Solon Training Limited+ 02271977 WCH Witness training and conferences 100
CLT International Hong Kang Limited n/a PRU Certified professional training 100
(formerly International Compliance Training
Hong Kong Limited}
CLT International Limited+ 06309789  WCH Certified professional training 100
ICA Commercial Services Limited+ 04363296 WCH Training courses in international 100
compliance and
money laundering

ICA Risk Management Limited (formery ICA 04519229  WCH Facilitation of 1ISO certification for 100
Audit Limited)+ businesses
Interactive Medica AB (incorporated n/a ALF Pan-European provider of cloud 100
and operates in Sweden) based insight, CRM and KAM

offerings to the pharmaceutical

industry
Interactive Medica Limited+ 05947851 WCH Pan-European provider of cloud 100

based insight, CRM and KAM
offerings to the pharmaceutical

industry
Interactive Medica SL (incorporated and nfa CRE Pan-European provider of cloud 100
operates in Spain) based insight, CRM and KAM
offerings to the pharmaceutical
industry
International Compliance Association 04429302 WCH Professional association; a not for 100
Limited**+ profit erganisation
International Compliance Training Academy n/a SHE Training courses in international 100
PTE Limited (incorporated and cperates in compliance and
Singapore) money laundering
International Compliance Training n/a GAT Training courses in international 100
(Middle East) Ltd (incorparated compliance and
and operates in the UAE) money laundering
International Compliance Training SDN. BHD n/a VER Training courses in international 100
(incomporated and operates in Malaysia) compliance and
money laundering
Mercia Group Limited+ 01464141 WCH Training and support services to the 100
accountancy profession
Mercia Ireland Limited {incorperated and nfa BAG Training and support services to the 100
cperates in lreland) accountancy profession
Mercia NI Limited+ NI038428 ADE Training and support services to the 100
accountancy profession
MiExact Limited (formerly Smee and Ford 01964639  WCH Provision of legacy information 100
Limited)+
SWAT UK Limited+ 03041771 WCH Training and support services to the 100
accountancy profession
Wilmington Compliance Week Inc, n/a ORA Provision of international compliance 100
(incorporated and operaies in the US) and regulatory information in the US
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Name of company UK company Registered Business Percentage
number address owned
Wilmington FRA Inc. {incorporated and n/a ORA Conference and networking provider 100
operates in the US) of specialist events in healthcare and
finance
Wilmington Healthcare Limited+ 02530185 WCH Provision of reference information to 100
the healthcare industry
Wilmington Holdings No.1 Limited™ 08313253 WCH Holding company 100
Wilmington Holdings US Inc. (incorporated  n/a ORA Holding company 100
and operates in the US)
Wilmington IBT Limited (formerly The 01221570 WCH Dormant 100
Matchett Group Limited)+
Wilmington Insight Limited+ 02691102 WCH Holding company 100
Wilmington Legal Limited+ 02522603 WCH Holding company 100
Wilmington plc Employee Share Ownership  n/fa WCH Trust n/a
Trust+
Wilmington Publishing & Information Limited (3358442 WCH Provision of information and events for 100
professional markets
Wilmington Shared Services Limited 08314442 WCH Provision of shared services 100

The registered company addresses for each subsidiary undertaking are abbreviated as shown below.

Registered address Abhbreviation
clo, Nytorget 7, Box 577, 611 10, Nykoping, Sweden ALF
33 Avenue de la Republique, 75011 Paris AVE
13 Baggot Street Upper, Dublin 4, lreland BAG
Titanic Suites, 55-59 Adelaide Street, Belfast, United Kingdom ADE
C/Recoletos, 3 — 1°, 28001 Madrid CRE
Gate Village, Building 10, Dubai International Financial Centre, PO Box 506745, Dubai GAT
1209 Orange Street, Delaware 19801, United States ORA
Suite 2111, 21/F., Prudential Tower, The Gateway, Harbour City, 21 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloan, Hong PRU
Kong

6 Shenton Way, #17-08 OUE Downtown 2, Singapore 068809 SHE
Unit 30-01, Vertical Business Suite Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No.8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200, Kuala Lumpur VER
10 Whitechapel High Street, London E1 8Q8, United Kingdom WCH

15. Trade and other receivables

Group Company

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £'000 £'000 £000

Current
Trade receivables 22,577 22,290 —_ —_
Prepayments and other receivables 3,758 3,272 76 71
Accrued income 1,056 1,535 —_ —
Amounts due from subsidiaries —_ —_ 114,781 118,670
27,391 27,097 114,857 118,741

Amounts due from all subsidiaries are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand with the intention to repay within the year.
Expected credit losses on amounts due from subsidiaries are not material.

16. Trade and other payables

Group Company

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

2023 2022 2023 2022

£'060 £000 £'000 £'000

Trade payables 3,039 2,734 — —
Social security and other taxes 3,418 2,106 742 533
Accruals 15,425 13,936 2,851 2,730
Subscriptions and deferred revenue 33,659 31,405 —_ —_
Other payables 425 77 202 58
Amounts due to subsidiaries — — 62,715 49 993
55,966 50,258 66,510 53,314

Wilmington plc has loans to the value of £4,053,029 (2022: £3,098,640) due to APM International SAS which incur interest at 2% per
annum; these loans are unsecured and repayable on demand. All other amounts due to subsidiaries are interest free, unsecured and
repayable on demand.
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47. Financial instruments and risk management

The Group’'s financial instruments arise from its operations (for example trade receivables and trade payables), from the financing of
its operations (for exampie loans and borrowings and equity) and from its risk management activities {for example interest rate swaps
and forward currency contracts). The risks to which the Group is exposed include liquidity and capital risk, foreign currency risk, and
credit risk.

Interest rate risk

Risk

During the year and as at 30 June 2023 The Group had access to a £20m revolving credit facility; however, during the year it was
not in use due to the Group’s net cash position. The Group would only be exposed to cash flow volatility arising from fluctuations in
market interest rates if the facility was in use; in this case interest would be charged on the amount drawn down at a rate of SONIA
plus a margin of between 1.50% and 2.25% depending upon leverage. The Group incurred a commitment fee for access to the facility
at a rate of 40% of the applicable margin. Due to the growing net cash position the Board have decided to cancel the revolving credit
facility in August 2023.

The Group has available an undrawn revolving credit facility as follows:

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

£'000 £060

Expiring less than one year 20,000 —_
Expiring after more than one year — 20,000

Group policy for interest rate risk management

The Group policy for interest rate risk management is to enter into interest rate swap contracts if beneficial to do so. This decision is
based on whether the contract would maintain the ratio of fixed to variable rate debt at a level that achieves a reasonable cost of debt
whilst reducing the exposure to ¢ash flow volatility arising from fluctuations in market interest rates.

There were no financiat instruments in place during the year ended 30 June 2023 or as at 30 June 2022.

Amounts related to items designated as hedging instruments during the year ended 30 June 2022 were as follows:

Change in value Line item
of hedging Line item in affected in
mstrument profit or loss that profit or foss

During the year ended recognised in OCI includes hedge because of the
30 June 2022 £'000 ineffectiveness reclassification
— n/a 1,185

Ligquidity and capital risk

Risk

The Group’s activities give rise to working capital obligations and other operationat cash outflows. The Group is consequently exposed
to the risk that it cannot meet its obligations as they fall due or can anly meet them at an uneconomic price.

Group palicy
The Group policy is to preserve a strong capital base in order to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to safeguard
the future development of the business and to balance these objectives with the efficient use of capital.

Risk management arrangements

The Group determines its liquidity requirements by the use of short and fong term cash forecasts. The Group enters into short,
medium and long temm financial instruments when deemed necessary to support operational and other funding requirements.

The fallowing tables provide a maturity analysis of the remaining contractually agreed cash flows for the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities on an undiscounted basis, which therefore differ from the carrying value and fair value:

Group

Within More than

1 year 1=2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total
AL 3D June 2023 £'7000 £900 E'000 000 £'000
Bank loans including
interest 120 —_ — — 120
Lease liabilities 774 1,976 3,993 990 7,733
Trade payables and
accruals 18,889 — — — 18,889

19,783 1,976 3,993 990 26,742
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Within More than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years S years Taotal
At 30 June 2022 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Bank loans including
interest 120 120 — — 240
Lease liahilities 507 1,972 4777 662 7,918
Trade payables and
accruals 16,747 — _— — 16,747
17,374 2,092 4777 662 24 905
Company
Within More than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total
At 30 June 2023 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Bank loans including
interest 120 — — -— 120
Lease liabilities 202 1,556 2,888 353 4,999
Trade payables, accruals
and amounts due to
subsidiary undertakings 65,768 — — — 65,768
66,090 1,556 2,888 353 70,887
Within Mecre than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total
At 30 June 2022 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans including
interest 120 120 — — 240
Lease liabilities — 1,606 4242 554 6,402
Trade payables, accruals
and amounts due to
subsidiary undertakings 52,781 — — — 52,781
52,901 1,726 4,242 554 58,423

Foreign currency risk

Risk

The currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates is Sterling, and this is also the currency in which the
Group presents its financial statements. However, the Group has US Dallar linked cash flows arising from international trading and
overseas operations. The Group is consequently exposed to cash flow volatility arising from fluctuations in the applicable exchange
rates for converting US Dollars to Sterling.

Group policy

The Group palicy is to manage foreign currency risk, and to fix the exchange rate when deemed necessary to manage the exchange
rate risk relating to foreign net cash inflows. Decisions are approved by the Board as part of the budgeting process and upon the
acquisition of foreign operations.

There were no forward contracts entered into during the year ended 30 June 2023 due to the Group deeming the risk is not significant.
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Market risk
A foreign currency exposure can arise from the Group’s net investment in two of its US subsidiaries (Wilmington Compliance Week
Inc. and Wilmington FRA Inc.) that have a US Dollar functional currency.

Batances
remaining in the
foreign curmrency

translation

reserve from

hedging

Foreign relationships
currency for which hedge
translation accounting is no
reserve  longer applied

During the year ended 30 June 2023 £'000 £'000
{1,552) —
Balances

remaining in the

foreign currency

translation

reserve from

hedging

relationships

Foreign currency  for which hedge
translation accounting is no
reserve  longer applied

During the year ended 30 June 2022 £'000 £000
{1,552) —

Credit risk

Risk

The Greup's principal financial assets are receivables and bank baiances. The Group is consequently exposed to the risk that its
customers ar the banks cannot meet their obligations as they fail due.

Graup policy

The Group palicy is to assess the creditworthiness and financial strength of customers at inception and on an ongoing basis. The
Group also reviews the credit rating of its banks. Cash is held in banks with a credit rating between AA o A per Fitch at 22 September
2023, with the exception of £0.1m which is held in Allied Irish, with a rating of BBB.

Risk management arrangements

The Group's credit risk is primarily attibutable to its trade receivables. However, the Group has no significant exposure to credit risk
because its trading is spread over a large number of customers. The payment terms offered to customers take into account the
assessment of their creditworthiness and financial strength, and they are set in accordance with industry standards. The
creditworthiness of customers is considered before trading commences. Most of the Group's customers are large and well-established
institutions that pay on time and in accordance with the Group’s standard terms of business.

The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of the expected credit loss allowance. The Group applies a simplified approach
to measure the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables classified at amortised cost, using the lifetime expected loss
provision.

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets carried at amortised
cost and debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income. Expected credit losses are updated at each reporting
date tc reflect changes in cradit risk.

The expected credit loss on trade receivables is estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience and credit
rating, taking into account forward-looking facters including general economic conditions and an assessment of the current and
forecast conditions at the reporting date.

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables based on the Group’s provision matrix.

Not due 0-30 days 30-60 days &1-90 days91-120 days 120+ days Total
At 30 June 2023 £'000 £°000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £:000
Gross carrying
amount 14,924 3,816 1,754 1,121 600 1,521 23,736
Expected credit loss
rate 0.05% 0.25% 0.41% 311% 2.24% T71.34%  4.88%
Expected credit loss 8 10 7 35 13 1,088 1,159
Net carrying
amount 14,916 3,806 1,747 1,086 587 435 22,577
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Set out below is the mavement for the year in the expected credit loss relating to trade receivables.

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

£000 £'000

Allowances at 1 July 875 811
Additions charged to income statement 1,101 731
Allowances used (146} (57}
Allowances reversed (671) (610)
Allowances at 30 June 1,159 875

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The table below sets out the accounting classification and the carrying and fair values of all of the Group’s financial assets and

financial liabilities. The carrying value and fair value are equal in all cases.

Group
Amortised
cost
At 30 June 2023 £'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 42,173
Trade and other receivables 22,951
Deferred consideration receivable 1,904
67,028
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (18,890)
Lease liabilities {7,210)
(26,100)
Amortised
cost
At 30 June 2022 £000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 19,785
Trade and other receivables 22,729
Deferred consideration receivable 1,698
Financial assets included within disposal group held for sale 1,108
——45318—
Financial liahilities
Trade ang other payables (16,747)
Lease liabilities {7,510)
Financial liabilities included within disposal group held for sale (376)
(24,633)
Company
Amortised
cost
At 30 June 2023 £'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 27,483
Trade and other receivables 114,781
142,264
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables {65,768)
Lease liabilities (4,647)
{70,415)
Amortised
cost
At 30 June 2022 £'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15,734
Trade and other receivables 118,670
134,404
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (52,781)
Lease liabilities {6,225)
(59,006)
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Fair value measurement

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of financial assets and liabilities are as follows:

= the carrying amount of trade receivables and payables approximates to fair value due to the short maturity of the amounts

receivable and payable; and

« the fair value of the Group's borrowings are estimated on the basis of the discounted value of future cash flows using approximate

discount rates in effect at the balance sheet date.

18. Deferred tax
Movements on deferred tax assets are as follows:

Fair value UK intangibles
Share based interest LS deferred Tax  and capitat us

payments rate swap consideration logsses ailowances  intangibles Total
Group £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
At 1 July 2021 450 (11 196 729 (1,260) (794) {690}
Deferred tax
credit/(charge) in the
income statement for the
year (186) 11 (23) 191 123 (79) 211
Deferred tax credit
included directly in equity
for the year 70 — — — — — 70
Utilisation of deferred tax
asset —_ — — (631) — —_ (631)
Exchange translation
difference — — 75 — — (34) 41
At 30 June 2022 504 — 248 289 (1,137) (903) (999)
Deferred tax
credit/(charge} in the
income statement for the
year 89 — (25) — a04 21 989
Deferred tax credit
included directly in equity
for the year 212 — — — — — 212
Effect on deferred tax of a
change in the corporation
tax rate 40 — 20 23 — — 83
Exchange translation
difference — — (77) o -— 110 33
At 30 June 2023 845 — 166 312 (233) (772) 318

The Group has concluded that the deferred assets relating to tax losses will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable income.
The losses can be carried forward indefinitely and have no expiry date.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances after offset:

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

Deferred tax assets 925 1,041

Deferred tax liabilities (607)  (2,040)

318 {999)

Share based Fair value interest

payments rate swap Total

Company £'000 £'000 £'00000

Asset at 1 July 2021 450 (11) 435

Deferred tax charge in the income statement for the year (16) 11 {5)

Deferred tax credit included directly in equity for the year 70 — 70

Asset at 30 June 2022 504 —_ 504

Deferred tax charge in the income statement for the year 89 —_ 89

Deferred tax credit included directly in equity for the year 212 — 212
Effect on deferred tax of a change in the corporation tax

rate 40 — 40

Asset at 30 June 2023 845 — 845
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19. Share capital

Number of Treasury
ordinary Share premium shares and
shares of Ordinary shares account ESOT reserves Total
Group 5p each £300 £000 £000 £'000

Issued and fully paid

ordinary shares

At 1 July 2021 87,603,917 4,380 45,225 {701) 48,904
Performance share

plan awards vesting

settled via ESOT — - — 84 84
ESOT share purchases — — — {371 (371)
Issue of shares 224 838 11 328 _ 339
Purchase of treasury

shares —_ — — {154) (154}
Sale of treasury shares — — — 49 49
At 30 June 2022 87,828,755 4,391 45,553 (1,093) 48,851
Issue of shares 340,052 17 — — 17

Save As You Eamn

options settlement via

ESOT _— —_ —_ 154 154
Save As You Eamn

options settlement via

treasury shares — — — 153 153
At 30 June 2023 88,168,807 4,408 45,553 (786) 49,175
Number of
ordinary Share premium Treasury
shares of Ordinary shares account shares Total
Caompany Sp each £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Issued and fully paid
ordinary shares

At 1 July 2021 87,603,917 4,380 45,225 (78) 49 527
Issue of shares 224,838 11 328 — 339
Purchase of treasury

shares — — — (154) (154)
Sale of treasury shares — — — 45 49
At 30 June 2022 87,828,755 4331 45 553 (183) 49 761
Issue of shares 340,052 17 —_— — 17

Save As You Earn

aptions settlement via

treasury shares — — — 153 153
At 30 June 2023 88,168,807 4,408 45,553 (30) 49,931

In October 2022 Wilmington issued 340,052 ordinary voting shares of £0.05 to satisfy the Company’s obligations under its
Performance Share Plan,

During the year 30,215 shares held by the Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT'} were used to satisfy the Company’s cbligations
under the SAYE Plan. At 30 June 2023, the ESOT held 352,651 shares (2022: 403,782) in the Company, which represents 0.4%
(2022: 0.5%) of the called up share capital.

During the year 60,762 shares held in treasury were used to satisfy the Company's obligations under the SAYE Plan. At 30 June
2023, 5,208 shares (2022: 65,970) were held in treasury, which represents 0.1% (2022: 0.1%]) of the share capital of the Company.
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20. Share based payments

The Group’s share based payment arrangements are as follows:

a) Performance Share Plan ('PSF’) awards, applying to Executives;

b) Performance Share Plan (PSP’) awards, applying to the Senior Leadership Team;
c) Share Option Plan (‘Options’), applying to the Senior Leadership Team; and

d) An employee Save As You Earn (‘SAYE') scheme, for UK based employees.

An expense of £1,515,000 (2022: £1,230,00C) was recognised in the income statement of the Group for share based payments. Of
this expense £1,515,000 (2022: £1,230,000) was recognised in the parent company incormne statement.

Dburing the year ended 30 June 2023, the following events have occurred in respect of each scheme,

a) PSP awards, applying to Execatives
Details of Directors’' share awards are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration report.

Under the Wilmington plc 2017 Performance Share Plan:

Number of Number of

shares for shares for

Exercise which awards Awards Awards Awards which awards

pnce per Date of outstanding at granted vested lapsed autstanding at

Date of grant award vesting 1 July 2022 during year during year dunng year 30 June 2023
September 2019 Nil September 2022 103,405 — (97,757) (5,648) —_
September 2020 Nil September 2023 455,102 — — {27,669) 427,433
February 2021 Nil September 2023 52,971 — — — §2,971
September 2021 Wil September 2024 383,177 — — {30,002) 353,175
February 2022 Nil September 2024 27,307 —_ — —_— 27,307
September 2022 Nil September 2025 — 358,162 — — 359,162

57,757 awards vested on 30 September 2022 at a share price of £2.856. 359,162 awards were granted to Executives in September
2022 with a fair value of £2.47 per award.

The performance conditions of the awards granted in September 2020 and February 2021 are based on the proportions below:
*  40.0% total sharehoider return (‘'TSR’);

= 40.0% earnings per share (‘EPS’), and

+ 20.0% organic growth {{ORG’).

The performance conditions of the awards granted in September 2021 and February 2022 are based on the proportions below:
+  65.0% eamings per share (‘EPS'); and

+  35.0% organic growth ('ORG’).

The performance conditions of the awards granted in September 2022 are based on the proportions below;

= 65.0% earnings per share ('"EPS’); and

+  35.0% organic growth {{ORG’).

The awards granted to Executives in Septernber 2022 were valued using the Black Scholes and Stochastic methods with the following
assumptions:

+  expected volatility (%): 26.73;
expected life (years): 3.0; and
= expected dividends {%). Nil.

Expected volatility was determined by reference to the historical volatility of the Group’s share price. The expected life used in the
model is the mid-point of the exercise pericd. Expected dividend assumptions reflect the impact of dividends in lieu in respect of
awards made to Executives. These do not apply to awards or options made to the Senior Leadership Team.
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b) PSP awards, applying to the Scnior Leadership Team
Under the Wilmington ple 2017 Performance Share Plan:

Number of Number of

shares for shares for

Exercise which awards Awards Awards Awards which awards

price per Date of outstanding at granted vested lapsed outstanding at

Date of grant award vasting 1 July 2022 during year during year during year 30 June 2023
September 2019 Nil September 2022 144 177 —  (144177) — —
September 2020 Nil September 2023 215,711 —_ —_ (58,858) 155,853
September 2021 Nil September 2024 151,870 —_ — {46,045) 105,825
February 2022 Nil September 2024 7,270 — — — 7,270
September 2022 Nif September 2025 — 105,598 — — 105,598
December 2022 Nil September 2025 — 5,299 — — 5,299
April 2023 Nil September 2025 — 2,569 — — 2,569

The fair value of the awards granted on 30 September 2022 was £2.37, the fair value of the awards granted on 1 December 2022
was £2.41 per award and the fair value of the awards granted on 3 April 2023 was £2.54 per award.

The performance conditions of the awards granted in September 2022, December 2022 and April 2023 are based on the proportions
shown below:

»  65.0% earnings per share {'EPS’), and

» 35.0% organic growth ({ORG').

The awards granted in September 2022 were valued using the Black Scholes method with the folfowing assumptions:
+ expected life (years): 3.0; and

+  expected dividends (%): 3.15.

The awards granted in December 2022 were valued using the Black Scholes method with the following assumptions:
= expected life (years): 3.0; and

+ expected dividends (%) 3.15.

The awards granted in April 2023 were valued using the Black Scholes method with the following assumptions:

«  expected life (years) 3.0; and

» expected dividends (%): 3.15.

¢} Options

On 30 September 2022, 1 December 2022 and 3 April 2023, the Company awarded share options to selected key management. This
is a discretionary scheme which enables a company to grant share options to selected employees. The exercise price of the granted
options is equal to the market price of the shares on the date of the grant. Options are conditional on the employee completing three
years’ service (the vesting period) so act as a lock-in incentive; the options have a contractual option term of ten years. The options
are exercisable starting three years from the grant date, subject to the Group achieving growth in earnings per share in line with the
targets set out in the deed of grant. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options tn cash.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related weighted average exercise price are as follows:

Number of Number of

Average shares for shares for

exercise price which options Cptions Options Options which options

per option outstanding at granted exercised lapsed outstanding at

Date of grant E Date of vesting 1 July 2022 during year during year during year 30 June 2023
September 2015 2.625 September 2018 160,726 —_ — {160,726) —
September 2016 2.455 September 2019 — — — — —
September 2017 2.150 September 2020 -— —_ — — —
September 2018 1.848 September 2021 — — — — —
September 2019 2.080 September 2022 216,148 —  {155,679) —_ 60,4689
Septemnber 2020 1.225 September 2023 310,571 — — (79,027} 231,544
September 2021 2.228 September 2024 216,323 — — (58,758) 157,525
February 2022 2,420 September 2024 10,905 —_ —_ — 10,905
September 2022 2.820 September 2025 —_ 158,396 —_ — 158,396
December 2022 2.862 Septermber 2025 — 7,949 — — 7.949
April 2023 3.016 September 2025 —_ 3,854 —_ — ) 3,854

The fair value of the options granted aon 30 September 2022 was £0.70, the fair value of the options granted on 1 December 2022
was £0.71 per option. and the fair value of the options granted on 3 April 2023 was £0.75 per option.

Wilmington plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023 109



DocuSign Envelope ID: 170E7873-B454-4EA7-B371-356DD042E9327

Financial Statements — Wilmington plc 30 June 2023

The options granted in September 2022 were valued using the Black Scholes method with the following assumptions:
+  expected volatility (%} 33.34;

»  expected life (years): 6.50; and

- expected dividends (%) 3.15.

Expected volatility was determined by reference to the historical volatility of the Group's share price. The expected life used in the
model is the mid-point of the exercise period.

The options granted in December 2022 were valued using the Black Scholes methad with the following agsumptions:
+  expected volatility (%) 33,34,

+  expected life (years): 6.50; and

» expected dividends (%). 3.15.

Expected volatility was determined by reference to the histerical volatility of the Group’s share price. The expected life used in the
model is the mid-paint of the exercise period.

The options granted in April 2023 were valued using the Black Scholes method with the following assumptions:
expected volatility (%) 33.34;

« expected life (years): 6.50; and

«  expected dividends (%): 3.15.

Expected volatility was determined by reference to the historical volatility of the Group’s share price. The expected life used in the
model is the mid-point of the exercise period.

d) Save As You Earn Options

On 29 March 2019, Save As You Earn Options with a per share exercise price of £1.52 over 688,612 ordinary shares in Wilmington
plc {the ‘Company’) were granted under the Wilmington SAYE Plan 2018 to employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. In May
2022 the SAYE Options vested, and can be exercised within six months following vesting; 47,127 shares vested during the year. At
30 June 2023 there were no (2022: 47,127) shares for which options were outstanding.

On 19 October 2020, Save As You Earn Options with a per share exercise price of £0.86 over 984,973 ordinary shares in the
Company were granted under the Wilmington SAYE Plan 2018 to employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. At 30 June 2023
there were 644,324 (2022 784,949) shares for which options were outstanding.

On 6 April 2023, Save As You Earn Options with a per share exercise price of £2.45 over 426,206 ordinary shares in the Company
were granted under the Wilmington SAYE Plan 2018 to employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. At 30 June 2023 there were
421,065 (2022: nil) shares for which options were outstanding.

The exercise prices of £1.52, £0.96 and £2.45 relating to the 2019 SAYE Options, the 2020 SAYE Options and the 2023 SAYE
Options respectively were calculated in accardance with the rules as set out in the SAYE Scheme. The SAYE Options wili normally
vest and become exercisable over a three year vesting period from the date of grant and can be exercised within six months following
vesting.

21. Lease liabilities

The Group enters into leases of buildings in relation to offices and business premises in the geographical locations in which they
operate.

The following table shows the discounted lease liabilities included in the Group and Company balance sheets:

Group Company
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2023 2022 2023 2022
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Current 975 648 202 118
Nan-current 6,235 6,862 4,445 6,107
7,210 7,510 4,647 6,225

A reconciliation of the movement in the right-of-use assets is included in note 13. The maturity analysis of lease liabilites on a
contractual undiscounted cash flow basis is included in note 17. The interest expense in relation to lease liabilities is inciuded in note
6. Amounts recognised through the Consolidated income staterment in respect of short term leases and low-value teases are included
in note 4. The total cash outflow for leases was £2,203,000 (2022: £4,166,000) with the year-on-year decrease relating to a difference
in the timing of payments, There are no leases with variable payments.

Contracts entered into by the Group have a wide range of terms and conditions but generally do not impose any additional covenants.
Extension and termination options provide the Group with additional operational flexibility.

These options are included in the lease term if the Group considers it reasonably certain that the lease will be extended or terminated.
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22. Provisions

Property and other £000
At 1 July 2022 1,535
Utilised in the year (307)
At 30 June 2023 1,228
30 June

2023

£000

Included in current liabilities 307
Included in non-current liabilities 921
1,228

The provision is in respect of anticipated costs expected to be incurred in relation to the closed proportion of the head office until the
end of the contractual lease term, including service charge, insurance and, repairs and maintenance. The year on year movement in
the provision reflects unwinding of the provision aver the lease term until May 2027.

The provision is based on assumptions and estimates where the ultimate outcome may be different from the amount provided. The
provision reflects the Group's best estimate of the probable exposure as at 30 June 2023. This assessment has been made having
considered the sensitivity of the provision for possible changes in key assumptions. The greup has reviewed the provisions held and
concluded no adjustments are required for climate change risks.

23. Commitments
The Group had no (2022: none) capital commitments contracted but not provided for in relation to property, plant and equipment at

30 June 2023,

24. Related party transactions
The Company and its wholly owned subsidiary undertakings offer certain Group-wide purchasing facilities to the Company's other
subsidiary undertakings whereby the actual costs are recharged.

The Company has made no recharges (2022: £503,896) to its fellow Group undertakings in respect of management services.
Amaunts due from and to subsidiary undertakings by the Company are set out in notes 15 and 16 respectively.

During the year, the Company received dividends of £1,359,172 from subsidiaries (2022: £15,416,584).

There were no (2022: £nil) transactions with related parties of key management personnel during the year.

25. Staff and their pay and benefits
a) Employee costs (including Directors) were as follows:

Group Company
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2023 2022 2023 2022
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Wages and salaries” 48,060 47,374 3,736 2,930
Social security costs 5,318 5,164 401 255
Other pension costs 1,370 1,384 52 46
Share based payments {including social security costs} 1,515 1,230 1,515 1,230
56,263 55,152 5,704 4 461

*  Excluded from wages and salaries in the Group figures are redundancy costs in the year of £859,547 (2022° £1,072 371). Compary mil (2022 nil)

b) Remuneration of key management personnel that held office for part or all of the year (2023: 10 people; 2022: 9 people), which
includes the Directors and other key management personnel, is shown in the table below:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

£°000 £000

Short term employee benefits 2,860 2,226
Compensation for loss of office 123 ——
Post-employment benefits 80 72
Share based payments 673 302
3,736 2,600

All key management personnel are part of the Executive Committee. More detailed information concerning Directors’ remuneration,
shareholdings, pension entitlement, share options and ather Long Term Incentive Plans {'LTIPs') is shown in the audited part of the
Directors' Remuneration report on pages 58 tc 62 which forms part of the consolidated financial statements.
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¢} The average monthly number of employees (including Directors) employed by the Group was as follows;

Group Company
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2023 2022 2023 2022
Number Number Number Numiber
Revenue delivery 494 520 —_ —
Administration 362 381 17 17
856 901 17 17

Tota! full time equivalents at 30 June 2023 were 797 (2022: 779).
d) Retirement benefits:

The Group contributes to defined centribution pension schemes. Total contributions to the schemes during the year were £1,370,000
(2022: £1,384,000).
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26. Cash generated from operations

Group Campany
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2023 2022 2023 2022
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Profit from continuing operations
before tax 24,022 36,120 2,986 14,964
Adjusting item — gain on disposal of
subsidiaries (2,212) {16,329) — —
Adjusting item — gain on sale of
property, plant and equipment — (1,289) —_ _
Adjusting item — net gain on
firancing activities —_ (840) — (840)
Adjusting items 147 66 29 {6,061)
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment included in operating
expenses 2,321 2412 — —
Amortisation of intangible assets 4,071 6,089 — —
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment —_ 597 — —
Non-adjusting profit on disposal of
property, plant and equiprment (36) {(71) — —
Share based payments (including
social security costs) 1,515 1,230 1,615 1,230
Net finance {income)/expense {232) 928 (314) 663
Operating cash flows hefore
movements in working capital 29,596 28,913 4,216 8,956
{Increase)/decrease in trade and
other receivables (107) 1,621 5,010 {9,396)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and
other payables 4,023 (5,657) 10,105 (7,275)
Decrease in provisions (307) (307) — —
Cash generated from/{used in}
operations hefore adjusting items 33,205 24,570 19,331 (6,715)

Cash conversion is calculated as a percentage of cash generated by operations to adjusted EBITA as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
£7000 £'000
Funds from operations before adjusting items:
Adjusted EBITA {note 2) 24,106 21,621
Share based payments {including social security costs) 1,515 1,230
Amortisation of intangible assets — computer software 1,690 3,721
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment included in
operating expenses 2,321 2412
Non-adjusting profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment {36) (71)
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital 29,596 28,913
Net working capital movement 3,609 {4,343)
Funds from operations before adjusting items 33,205 24,570
Cash conversion 138% 114%
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Free cash flow:
Operating cash flows before mavement in working capital 29,596 28 913
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 13 3,493
Net working capital movement 3,609 (4,343)
Interest received/(paid) 344 (479)
Payment of lease liabilities {2,109) (3,752)
Tax paid {3,268) (3,397)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (461) {440)
Purchase of intangible assets (595) (1,292}
Free cash flow 27,129 18,703
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27. Events after the reporting period
Due to the growing net cash position the Board have decided to cancel the revolving credit facility in August 2023.
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Pro forma five year financial summary (unaudited)

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
£m £'m £m £m £'m

Revenue 1225 113.1 113.0 121.0 123.5
QOperating expenses {before adjusting items) (101.0) (99.1) {86.4) (89.4) (99.4)
Adjusted EBITA 215 14.0 16.6 216 24.1
Other adjusting items (1.4) {0.8) (3.0) 0.1 (0.1}
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment —_ — — 1.3 —
Gain on disposal of business operations — — 34 — —
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 1.9 — 0.8 16.3 22
Net gain on financing activities _ _ — 0.8 —
Amartisation of intangible assets exciuding computer
software (5.1} (4.8) (3.4) (2.5) (2.4)
Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant
and equipment — — (14.8) (0.6) —
Operating profit/(loss) 16.9 86 (0.4) 37.0 23.8
Net finance income/(expense) (2.1} (2.2) (1.6) (0.9) 0.2
Share of loss of equity accounted investment (0.1} - — — —
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before tax 14,7 6.4 (2.0 36.1 24.0
Taxation (3.5) (1.8) (2.5) (3.3) (3.8)
Profit/(lass) on ordinary activities after tax 11.2 4.6 (4.5) 32.8 20.2
Adjusted profit before tax 19.3 11.9 15.0 20.7 24.3
Cash generated from operations before adjusting items 26.4 26.5 17.3 246 33.2
Basic eamings/{loss} per ordinary share from continuing
operations (pence) 12.74 5.33 (5.18) 37.46 23.54
Diluted earnings/(loss) per ordinary share from continuing
operations (pence) 12.64 5.26 {5.18) 36.98 22.96
Adjusted earnings per ordinary share from continuing
operations (pence) 17.44 10.71 13.62 18.66 21.49
Interim and proposed final dividend per share (pence) 9.1 — 6.0 8.2 10.0
Dividend cover (times)’ 1.9 — 23 23 2.1
Return on sales {%)? 17.5 12.4 14.7 17.9 19.6

The result for the financial year 2019 has not been adjusted for IFRS 16.

1. Dividend cover - adjusted eamings per ordinary share from continuing operations divided by the intenm and proposed final dividend per share.
2. Retumn on sales — adjusted EBITA divided by revenue.
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